Public Document Pack
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council
Civic Centre
Southend-on-Sea
24 February 2021
Dear Sir or Madam,
I hereby summon you to attend the meeting of the Southend-on-Sea Borough
Council to be held virtually on the Microsoft Teams platform in accordance
with Part 2 of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 on, Thursday 4th March
2021 at 6.30pm for the transaction of the following business.
A Griffin
Chief Executive
AGENDA
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declarations of Interest

3

Communications

4

Questions from Members of the Public

5

Questions from Members of the Council

6

Minutes of the meeting of Health and Wellbeing Board held on 2nd
December 2020 (Pages 1 - 6)
Minutes attached

7

Minutes of the meeting of Development Control Committee held on
Wednesday, 9 December 2020 (Pages 7 - 56)
Minutes attached

8

Minutes of the meeting of Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
held on Monday, 14 December 2020 (Pages 57 - 58)
Minutes attached

9

Minutes of Licensing Sub Committee A held on Monday, 14 December
2020 (Pages 59 - 60)
Minutes attached

10

Minutes of the meeting of Appeals Committee A held on Wednesday, 16
December 2020 (Pages 61 - 62)
Minutes attached

11

Minutes of the meeting of Appeals Committee B held on Monday, 21st
December 2020 (Pages 63 - 64)
Minutes attached

12

Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held on Tuesday, 5
January 2021 (Pages 65 - 68)
Minutes attached

13

Minutes of the meeting of Development Control Committee held on
Wednesday, 6 January 2021 (Pages 69 - 96)
Minutes attached

14

Minutes of the meeting of Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
held on Tuesday, 12 January 2021 (Pages 97 - 98)

15

Minutes of the meeting of Audit Committee held on Wednesday, 13
January 2021 (Pages 99 - 102)
Minutes attached

16

Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on Thursday, 14 January 2021
(Pages 103 - 120)
Minutes attached

17

Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet Committee held on Tuesday, 19
January 2021 (Pages 121 - 122)
Minutes attached

18

Minutes of the meeting of Place Scrutiny Committee held on Monday, 1
February 2021 (Pages 123 - 128)
Minutes attached

19

Minutes of the meeting of People Scrutiny Committee held on Tuesday, 2
February 2021 (Pages 129 - 132)
Minutes attached

20

Minutes of the meeting of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday, 4 February 2021 (Pages 133 - 136)
Minutes attached

21

Minutes of the meeting of Development Control Committee held on
Wednesday, 3 February 2021 (Pages 137 - 166)
Minutes attached

22

Minutes of the meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee B held on Tuesday,
16 February 2021 (Pages 167 - 170)
Minutes attached

2

23

Notice of Motion - Traffic Emissions Reduction in Southend-on-Sea
(Pages 171 - 172)
Notice of Motion attached

24

Notice of Motion - to Reduce Fuel Poverty in Southend-on-Sea (Pages
173 - 174)
Notice of Motion attached

25

Notice of Motion - Sustainable Future Funding for Local Welfare
Assistance (Pages 175 - 176)
Notice of Motion attached

26

Notice of Motion - Government Levelling Up Fund (Pages 177 - 178)
Notice of Motion attached

27

Notice of Motion - Development Control Committee Members
Representation (Pages 179 - 180)
Notice of Motion attached

28

Notice of Motion - Death Certificate Compassionate Fund (Pages 181 182)
Notice of Motion attached

29

Notice of Motion - North-South Public Transport Service (Pages 183 184)
Notice of Motion attached

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Health & Wellbeing Board
Date: Wednesday, 2nd December, 2020
Place: Virtual Meeting - MS Teams
Present:

6

Councillor T Harp (Chair)
J Garcia-Lobera (Vice-Chair),
Councillors M Davidson, D Jarvis, A Jones, *B Hooper, I Gilbert,
A Griffin, T Forster, K Ramkhelawon, M Marks K Jackson, J Currell,
P Scott, O Richards, P D’orsi and Y Blucher.
*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In Attendance:

Councillor Salter (observer: Chair of People Scrutiny Committee).
R Harris, B Pollard, G Halksworth, B Martin, B Leigh, S Baker, K
Read, J Thompson, H Johnston and J Banks.

Start/End Time:

5.00 - 7.35 pm

640

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mulroney (substitute: Cllr
Hooper), C Panniker, S Dolling and A Khaldi.

641

Declarations of Interest
(a) Councillor Hooper – Minute 648 (A Better Start Progress Update) – Nonpecuniary interest: has undertaken work for and on behalf of A Better Start
Southend;
(b) Councillor T Harp - Minute 648 (A Better Start Progress Update) – Nonpecuniary interest: Friend employed by ‘A Better Start Southend’;
(c) O Richards - (Healthwatch Southend) - Minute 648 (A Better Start Progress
Update) – Non-pecuniary interest: Employed by Family Action to run Healthwatch
Southend, Family Action run children’s centres within the Borough;
(d) K Jackson (SAVS) - Minute 648 (A Better Start Progress Update) – Nonpecuniary interest: SAVS is a delivery partners for A Better Start Southend.

642

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 8th September 2020
Resolved:That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 8th September 2020, be
confirmed as a correct record and signed.

1

643

Drug and Alcohol Commissioning and Treatment: Transfer of
responsibility from the Community Safety Partnership Board
The Board considered a report from the Principal Democratic Services Officer
setting out a proposal to transfer the management responsibility for the regulation,
performance monitoring and commissioning of drug and alcohol treatment
services/provision in the Borough from the Community Safety Partnership Board
to the Health and Wellbeing Board.
The Board noted that a wider review of the Terms of Reference and membership
was required to bring the Board up-to-date and ensure that it is fit-for-purpose (i.e.
changes in the CCG and NHS England).
The Board also noted the concerns from Healthwatch regarding the potential
conflict of interest and their ability to hold partners to account. In response it was
emphasised that the Board would not be directly involved in commissioning
services and its role is to provide challenge and have oversight in terms of the
delivery and performance of the commissioned services.
Resolved:
1. That the responsibility for the delivery and performance management of drug
and alcohol treatment services be transferred from the Community Safety
Partnership Board to the Health Wellbeing Board, with the effect date
commencing at the next formal HWB meeting.
2. That the HWB Terms of Reference be reviewed to ensure they are fit-forpurpose and that the revised Terms of Reference be presented to the next Board
meeting for approval and submission to Full Council.

644

Covid-19 Pandemic Updates (Health Protection Board and Local
Outbreak Control Plan Oversight and Engagement Board)
The Board considered a report of the Director of Public Health providing an update
on the COVID-19 Local Outbreak Control Plan implementation of the national
Test, Trace, Contain and Enable (TTCE) programme, which was a central part of
the governments COVID-19 recovery strategy to manage the rate of reproduction
and reduce the spread of infection through coordinated effort from local and
national organisations, the voluntary sector and community partners, and the
general public.
The Board was advised that Southend Hospital was seeing an increase in the
number of people attending with COVID-19 symptoms which was putting
significant pressure on respiratory and critical care services, particularly in the last
7 days.
Resolved:
1. That progress and the on-going implementation of the Local Outbreak Control
Plan by the Local Health Protection Board and the Outbreak Control Oversight
and Engagement Board, be noted.
2. That the current position with regard to COVID-19, be noted.

2

3. That the Board’s appreciation be extended to all staff, volunteers, communities,
etc for their work and efforts pulling together in these most difficult circumstances.
645

Sexual Health Service Update
The Board considered a report presented by the Director of Public Health
providing an update on the impact of the pandemic on access to the Sexual
Health services in Southend and an overview of the progress with the
procurement plan for a new service from April 2021.
The Board asked a number of questions relating to the procurement plan which
were responded to by the Director.
Resolved:
,
1. That it be noted that, despite the restrictions introduced to manage the spread
of the coronavirus since March 2020, the providers of the Sexual Health services
have adopted a successful approach in maintaining a high level of access to their
services since April 2020.
2. That it be noted that the procurement of a new Sexual Health service was
progressing, with a view that the new provider will be announced before Christmas
2020.

646

Children and Young People with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) Progress Update
The Board considered a report presented by the Director of Education and Early
Years, with regard to children and young people with Special Educational Needs
and Disabilities (SEND), setting out progress in key areas and the role of the
Board in the strategic oversight and governance of SEND on an ongoing basis.
In response to questions concerning the Parent./Carer Forum the Director advised
that the Department of Education determines who is awarded the Parent/Carer
Forum and a decision was expected shortly.
The Board also discussed the status of the Lighthouse Centre and noted that a bimonthly report is provided to the CCG Board. It was also noted that there had
been a number of concerns and complaints about the Centre and a planning
workshop was being arranged before Christmas to look at some of the issues and
address them in a positive way.
Resolved:
1. That progress on leadership and governance, self-evaluation and areas of
significant improvement, be noted.
2. That an update paper on the Lighthouse Centre be provided to the next meeting
of the Board.

647

Winter Planning (Mental Health, ASC and SEE Winter Plans)
3

The Board received a PowerPoint presentation providing an overview of the
Winter Plan 2020/21 across the system (MSE HCP NHS and SBC Adult Social
Care). A copy of the presentation slides would be circulated following the
meeting.
The Board asked a number of questions which were responded to by system
leads from respective partners. The Board commented that this was a very
comprehensive winter plan across the system.
Resolved:
That the presentation/overview of the Winter Plan 2020/21 across the system, be
noted.
648

A Better Start Progress Update
The Board considered a report presented by the Director of A Better Start
Southend providing an update from the ABSS Chair on key developments since
the last meeting of the Board.
The Board commented that it would be beneficial to arrange an informal workshop
session to explore the legacy of the ABSS Strategy.
Resolved:
1. That the report be noted.
2. That an HWB workshop to review the ABSS Sustainability and Legacy Plan be
arranged, prior to formal approval at a future HWB.

649

LIveWell Southend
The Board considered a report presented by the Director of Public Health
providing an update on the development of the Livewell Southend Website..
Resolved:
That the report and the next steps set out in Section 4, be noted.

650

Key Worker Housing
The Board received a PowerPoint presentation providing an overview of Key
Worker Housing initiative in Southend. The scheme was a way in which workers
in certain eligible organisations can access local housing for a reduced outlay.
Resolved:
That the PowerPoint presentation be noted and that Key Worker Housing be a
topic for in-depth discussion at a future informal Board workshop.

4

651

School Sport and PE Update
The Board considered a report presented by the Council’s Leisure Contracts and
Development Manager providing an update on the recent progress made through
working with Active Essex and both School Sports Partnerships, including the
successes, challenges and future opportunities to promote physical and mental
wellbeing following the consequential impact of the pandemic.
Resolved:
That the update report be noted, including the successes, challenges and future
opportunities.

652

Better Care Fund (BCF) Progress Update
This item was deferred.

653

Exclusion of the Public
Resolved:That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the items of business set out below, on the grounds
that they would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

654

Integrated Care System Application
The Board considered confidential papers presented by the Programme Director,
Mid and South Essex providing an overview of the Integrated Care System (ICS)
application.
The Board noted that a further report would be presented to the Board in
February/March 2021 on progress.
Resolved:
1. That the letter of support be noted and that on behalf of the Health and
Wellbeing Board the Chair, Councillor Harp, be the co-signatory on the ICS
application.
2,. That the draft nature of the ICS application pack, be noted and that the Mid &
South Essex Partnership Board will be approving the final pack at its meeting on
10 December 2020.
Chair:

5

This page is intentionally left blank

6

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Development Control Committee
Date: Wednesday, 9th December, 2020
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

7

Present:

Councillor N Ward (Chair)
Councillors M Borton (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, K Buck*, A Chalk,
D Cowan, A Dear, F Evans, N Folkard*, D Garston, A Jones,
K Mitchell*, C Mulroney, A Thompson, S Wakefield and C Walker
(*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.)

In Attendance:

Councillor D Burzotta
G Gilbert, K Waters, C Galforg, P Keyes, S Mouratidis, C White,
M Warren, T Row, E Cook, J Girnary, M Mercer, A Wate and
A Smyth

Start/End Time:

2.00 pm - 6.25 pm

655

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Beck (substitute: Councillor
Mitchell), Dent (no substitute), Habermel (substitute: Councillor Folkard) and
Jarvis (substitute: Councillor Buck).

656

Declarations of Interest
The following interests were declared at the meeting:
(a)

Councillors Borton, Cowan, Jones and Mitchell – Application Ref. No.

19/02255/FULM - 245 Sutton Road, Southend-on-Sea – Non-pecuniary interest: The
Labour Party office is located opposite the application site;

(b) Cowan – Application Ref. No. 20/01227/OUTM - Land Between Barge Pier Road and
Ness Road – Non-pecuniary interest: Has given advice to residents on the planning
process;
(c) Councillor Cowan – Application Ref. No. 20/01180/FUL - St Stephens Church,
Alton Gardens – Non-pecuniary interest: Donated/shared fundraising details for St
Stephens Church prior to being elected as local ward Councillor;
(d) Councillor Jones – Application Ref. No. 20/01227/OUTM - Land Between Barge Pier
Road and Ness Road – Non-pecuniary interest: Cabinet Member with the responsibility
for school placements;
(e) Councillor Jones and Mulroney – Application Ref. No. 20/01641/BC3 - Garages Rear
Of 40, 42, 44 and 46 Anson Chase, Shoeburyness – Non-pecuniary interest: Cabinet
Member;
(f) Councillor Mulroney – Application Ref. No. 20/01332/FUL - Flat 1, 1 Leigh Park Road,
Leigh-on-Sea and Application Ref. No. 20/01362/FULH - 13 Fairleigh Drive, Leigh-on-Sea
– Non-pecuniary interest: Non-Planning Member of Leigh Town Council; and

7

(g) Councillor Walker – Application Ref. No. 20/01180/FUL - St Stephens Church, Alton
Gardens – Non-pecuniary interest: Used to attend the Church Hall regularly for LCM
meetings
657

Supplementary Report
The Committee received a supplementary report by the Deputy Chief Executive
and Executive Director (Growth and Housing) that provided additional information
on the items referred to elsewhere on the Agenda.

658

20/01227/OUTM - Land Between Barge Pier Road and Ness Road
(Shoeburyness Ward)
Proposal: Erect up to 214 residential units (Use Class C3), provision of a
new health centre up to 1000sqm (Use Class D1), up to 400sqm of retail
floorspace (Use Class A1-A3), land raising, all associated car parking, new
foot and cycle paths, public open space, landscaping and ancillary works
and infrastructure, install vehicular access off Barge Pier Road, New
Garrison Road and Magazine Road (Outline Application)
Applicant: Mr Paul Denney Wilkinson
Agent: Mrs Claire Wilkinson of Lanpro Services
Mr Coomber, a local resident, spoke as an objector to the application. Mr Denney,
responded on behalf of the applicants.
Resolved:(a) That the Interim Director of Planning or Group Manager of Planning & Building
Control be DELEGATED to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the
following conditions and following the completion of a PLANNING AGREEMENT
under SECTION 106 of the TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (as
amended) to secure the provision of:
• 30% units of affordable housing on site (65 units) – with a 60/40 tenure split (39
social/affordable rent and 26 intermediate units).
• £493,000.40 contribution towards secondary education.
• Essex RAMS payment of £26,874.12 to mitigate the potential disturbance to
European designated sites.
• £30,000 highways contribution towards Campfield Road/Ness Road junction
improvements.
• Monitoring fee £10,000
(b) The Interim Director of Planning or the Group Manager (Planning & Building
Control) be authorised to determine the application upon completion of the above
requirement, so long as planning permission when granted and, where it is used,
the obligation when executed, accords with the details set out in the report
submitted and the conditions listed below:
General Conditions
01 Details of the appearance, layout and scale (hereinafter called the "reserved
matters") shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority before any development begins and the development shall be carried
out as approved under the reserved matters. Application for approval of the
8

reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority not later than 3
(three) years from the date of this permission. The development hereby permitted
shall begin not later than 2 (two) years from the date of approval of the last of the
reserved matters to be approved.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and because the application is for outline
planning permission only and the particulars submitted are insufficient for
consideration of details mentioned.
02 No development, other than site preparation works and any works required to
comply with requirements of other conditions on this permission, shall take place
on site until a phasing plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. Following approval of the plan, each phase shall be
completed in accordance with the plan before the next phase commences.
Reason: To ensure a coordinated development that complies with the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the requirements of the local
development plan.
03 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
parameter plans which set out the parameters for the heights and levels of the
development, the locations of the different uses across the site, the landscaping
and the access and movement arrangements for the site: 032-S2-P403-E, 032S2-P402-E, 032-S2-P401-D, 032-S2-P001-C, 2166-00-20-B.
Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.
04 The development hereby approved shall include no more than 214 dwellings,
no more than 1,000sqm health centre (Use Class D1) and no more than 400sqm
of commercial floorspace (Use Classes A1, A2 or A3).
Reason: To define the scope of the permission and to ensure that the
development meets the requirements of the Development Plan.
Design and Heritage related conditions
05 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved the development hereby permitted shall not commence, other
than for groundworks and site preparation works, unless and until full details and
appropriately sized samples of the materials to be used for all the external
surfaces of the proposed buildings at the site including facing materials, roof
detail, windows (including sections, profiles and reveals), doors, balustrading,
fascia and balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The works must then be carried out in full accordance with the
approved details before the dwellings or non-residential parts of the development
hereby approved are first occupied or brought into use.
Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of the area and the visual
amenities of neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
9

06 Notwithstanding the details shown in the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved none of the buildings hereby granted planning permission shall
be occupied unless and until plans and other appropriate details are submitted to
the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing which specify the size,
design, obscurity, materials and location of all privacy screens to be fixed to the
proposed buildings. Before a building hereby approved is occupied the building
shall be implemented in full accordance with the details and specifications
approved under this condition and shall be permanently retained as such
thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of adjoining residents and the
character and appearance of the area and to ensure that the development
complies with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1 and DM3 and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
07
Notwithstanding the information submitted with the application, no
development other than moving of on-site spoil heaps, shall be undertaken, unless
and until a field investigation including a programme of archaeological recording
and analysis, a watching brief and details of the measures to be taken should any
archaeological finds be discovered, has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority. The approved recording/watching brief and
measures are to be undertaken throughout the course of the works affecting
below ground deposits and are to be carried out by an appropriately qualified
archaeologist. The subsequent recording and analysis reports shall be submitted
to the local planning authority before the development is brought into first use.
Reason: Required to allow the preservation by record of archaeological deposits
and to provide an opportunity for the watching archaeologist to notify all interested
parties before the destruction of any archaeological finds in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and Policy DM5 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
08 No development above ground level shall be undertaken unless and until
details of existing and proposed site levels at and surrounding the site have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be undertaken and completed at the levels indicated on the
approved drawing.
Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of adjoining residents and the
character and appearance of the area and to ensure that the development
complies with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1 and DM3 and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
Construction related conditions
09 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, unless
and until a Demolition and Construction Management Plan and Strategy to include
Noise and Dust Mitigation Strategies has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The approved Demolition and Construction

10

Management Plan and Strategy shall be adhered to in full throughout the
construction period. The Statement shall provide, amongst other things, for:
i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii) loading and unloading of plant and materials
iii) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding
v) measures to control the emission of dust, dirt and noise during construction
vi) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works
that does not allow for the burning of waste on site.
vii) a dust management plan to include mitigation and boundary particulate
monitoring during demolition and construction.
viii) details of the duration and location of any noisy activities.
Reason: This is required in the interests of the amenities of nearby and
surrounding occupiers pursuant to Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy
(2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
10 Demolition or construction works associated with this permission shall not take
place outside 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays and 08:00hours to
13:00hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers and to protect
the character the area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
Landscaping and ecology conditions
11 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans hereby approved no
development shall take place, other than ground and site preparation works,
unless and until there has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority a scheme of hard and soft landscaping for the site and a
landscaping phasing plan setting out the timescales for the implementation of the
hard and soft landscaping.
This shall include full details of the number, size and location of the trees and
shrubs to be planted together with a planting specification, details of measures to
enhance biodiversity within the site; details of the treatment of all hard and soft
surfaces, including any earthworks to be carried, all means of enclosing the site
and full details of the play equipment, benches and associated facilities proposed.
All landscaping in the approved landscaping scheme shall be carried out in
accordance with the timescales specified in the approved landscaping phasing
plan. Any shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming seriously
diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or shrubs of
such size and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity, biodiversity and the amenities of
occupiers and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy, Policies DM1 and DM3 of the

11

Development Management Document (2015) and the Design and Townscape
Guide (2009).
12 All of the landscaped areas and open space including play equipment,
benches and associated facilities hereby approved shall be provided prior to the
first occupation of any part of the phase of the development hereby approved they
fall within and shall be retained and maintained in perpetuity for the occupants of
the development and the wider community.
Reason: in the interests of amenity in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy, Policies
DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015) and the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
13 The development hereby approved shall be implemented and operated
thereafter in strict accordance with the biodiversity mitigation measures outlined at
paragraph 8.7.2 of the Environmental Statement which includes mitigation in
relation to habitats, rare plants, amphibians, reptiles, breeding birds, badgers,
mammals and bats. Prior to the commencement of the development, other than
for demolition and site preparation works, a timescale for the implementation of
these measures shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved
in writing. The measures shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
timescale.
Reason: In the interest of biodiversity in accordance with National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
14 The development hereby approved shall be implemented and operated
thereafter in strict accordance with the findings, recommendations and mitigation
measures of the Breeding Bird Survey by D F Clark Bionomique Ltd dated 23 July
2020 ref. DFCP 3398 including the mitigation measures outlined at paragraph 6.5
of the report.
Reason: In the interest of biodiversity in accordance with National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
15 The development hereby approved shall be implemented and operated
thereafter in accordance with the findings, recommendations and mitigation
measures of the Great Crested Newt and Mammal Report by D F Clark
Bionomique Ltd dated 23 July 2020 ref. DFCP 3398 including the mitigation
measures outlined at Chapter 6 of the report.
Reason: In the interest of biodiversity in accordance with National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
16 The development hereby approved shall be implemented in strict accordance
with the ecological enhancement measures outlined at paragraphs 8.7.6, 8.7.7
and 8.7.8 of the Environmental Statement. Prior to the commencement of the
development, other than for demolition and site preparation works, a timescale for
the implementation of these measures shall be submitted to the Local Planning
12

Authority and approved in writing. The measures shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved timescale.
Reason: In the interest of biodiversity in accordance with National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
17 The development hereby approved shall be implemented and operated
thereafter in strict accordance with the findings, recommendations and mitigation
measures contained within the Botany reports submitted, including the mitigation
at paragraph 5.2 of the Botany Survey by D F Clark Bionomique Ltd dated 8 June
2020 ref. DFCP 3398 and the mitigation and avoidance measures outlined in
chapter 5 of the Botanical Survey by The Landscape Partnership dated 28 July
2020 ref. E20841.
Reason: In the interest of biodiversity in accordance with National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
Trees
18 The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in strict accordance
with the findings, recommendations and conclusions of the Arboricultural Impact
Assessment by D F Clark Bionomique Ltd dated 27 May 2020 ref DFCP 3398
including the mitigation outlined within Chapter 5 and the Tree Protection Plans
included in Appendix 5 of the report ref. DFCP 3398 TPP (1 of 5, 2 of 5, 3 of 5, 4
of 5 and 5 of 5).
Reason: In the interests of the character and appearance of the area and to
ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
Parking and highway conditions
19 The onsite car parking spaces comprising 210 spaces for the flats, and 198
spaces for houses hereby approved shall be provided and made available for use
in full accordance with drawing 032- S2-P003 Rev. H, prior to first occupation of
any part of the phase of the development hereby approved they fall within,
together with properly constructed vehicular access to the adjoining highway, all in
accordance with the approved plans. The parking spaces shall be permanently
maintained thereafter solely for the parking of occupiers of and visitors to the
development.
19a The onsite car parking spaces comprising 16 spaces for the commercial
(Class A1, A2 and A3) uses and 78 spaces for the Health Centre (Class D1) use
hereby approved shall be provided and made available for use in full accordance
with drawing 032- S2-P003 Rev. H, prior to first occupation of any part of the
phase of the development hereby approved they fall within, together with properly
constructed vehicular access to the adjoining highway, all in accordance with the
approved plans. The parking spaces shall be permanently maintained thereafter
solely for the parking of occupiers of and visitors to the development.
13

Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking is provided and retained to serve
the development in accordance with Policy DM15 of the Council’s Development
Management Document (2015) and Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007).
20 The development shall not be first occupied or brought into first use unless
and until full details of the covered and secure cycle parking to serve the health
centre, commercial and residential parts of the development hereby approved
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
Each building in the development shall be carried out in accordance with those
approved details before the building is first occupied or brought into first use and
the development shall be retained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that adequate cycle parking is provided and retained to serve
the commercial development in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP3 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM15 of the Development
Management Plan (2015).
21
The approved Travel Plan (ref. Travel Plan dated July 2020 ref.
IT1971TPF_22.07.20_Issued) shall be fully implemented prior to first use of the
development hereby approved and be maintained thereafter in perpetuity. For the
first three years at the end of each calendar year a document setting out the
monitoring of the effectiveness of the Travel Plan and setting out any proposed
changes to the Plan to overcome any identified issues and timescales for doing so
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
agreed adjustments shall be implemented in accordance with the agreed
conclusions and recommendations.
Reason: In the interests of sustainability, accessibility, highways efficiency and
safety, residential amenity and general environmental quality in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP2, CP3 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM15,
and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
22 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, the development hereby permitted shall not be first occupied
unless and until a car park management plan has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority. The car park management plan must be
implemented in full accordance with the details approved under this condition prior
to first occupation of any part of the phase of the development hereby approved
they fall within and shall be maintained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking arrangements are provided to serve
the development in accordance with Policy DM15 of the Council’s Development
Management Document (2015) and Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007).
23 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling, details for the Residential Travel
Packs shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The approved travel packs shall then be provided to each dwelling
within 1 month of occupation.
Reason: In the interests of sustainability in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4,
14

Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM15, and Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
Waste Management
24 No part of the commercial (Classes A1-A3) or Health Centre (Class D1) uses
hereby approved, shall be brought into first use unless and until a waste
management plan which includes full details of refuse and recycling storage and
servicing arrangements has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The waste management and servicing of the development
shall be carried out solely in accordance with the approved details from the first
use of the development.
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway safety
and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding area, in
accordance with Policies KP2 and CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy
DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015) and Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
25 The residential dwellings hereby approved shall not be first occupied unless
and until full details of the refuse and recycling stores have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved refuse and
recycling stores shall be provided in accordance with the approved plans and
details and shall be made available for use prior to the first occupation of the
dwelling to which they relate and shall be retained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that the development provides adequate refuse and recycling
facilities in the interests of highway safety and visual amenity and to protect the
character of the surrounding area, in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP3 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM15 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
Flood and Drainage conditions
26 Before any phase of the development hereby approved is occupied or brought
into use that phase shall have been implemented and undertaken in strict
accordance with the findings, recommendations and mitigation measures,
including within Chapter 5, and including the minimum floor levels as set out within
Chapter 5 (no habitable accommodation below 6.50m Above Ordinance Datum
(AOD)) and the resilience measures as outlined within parts 5.30, 5.31, 5.32 and
5.33 of the submitted Flood Risk Assessment by Ardent ref.185320-01B dated
July 2020. All less vulnerable uses (non-living residential apartment space and
commercial) finished floor levels, to be set at a minimum level of 3.0m AOD. For
more vulnerable uses (living and sleeping accommodation – residential and health
centre) minimum finished floor levels to be set at 6.5m AOD.
Reason: To ensure the approved development is safe and does not increase flood
risk elsewhere in accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019),
Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP1, KP2 and KP3..

15

27 The development hereby approved shall be undertaken and operated in
accordance with the Flood Response Plan submitted by Ardent ref. 185320-08B
dated July 2020 including its recommendations at Chapter 4.
Reason: To ensure the approved development is safe in flood risk terms in
accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP1, KP2 and KP3.
28 No drainage infrastructure associated with this consent shall be undertaken at
this site unless and until full details of the drainage infrastructure and a drainage
strategy have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The strategy submitted shall apply the sustainable drainage principles
and the sustainable drainage hierarchy. Where more sustainable methods of
drainage are discounted clear evidence and reasoning for this shall be included
within the strategy submitted. The approved drainage infrastructure and strategy
shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved scheme prior to the first
occupation of any part of the phase of the development hereby approved they fall
within and be retained as such thereafter.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site in accordance with Policy KP2
of the Core Strategy (2007) and Development Management Document (2015)
Policy DM14.
29 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(As amended) or the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended), or any order revising or re-enacting that
legislation with or without modification, no garages or undercroft parking areas nor
any non-habitable accommodation in the scheme below a level of 6.50m AOD
shall be converted into habitable accommodation at any time.
Reason: To ensure the approved development is safe in flood risk terms in
accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP1, KP2 and KP3.
Noise and odour related conditions
30 No extraction and ventilation equipment for the proposed non-residential uses
hereby approved (Classes A1-A3 and D1) shall be installed until and unless full
details of their location, design, appearance and technical specifications and a
report detailing any mitigation measures proposed in respect of noise and odour
impacts has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority. The installation of extraction equipment shall be carried out in full
accordance with the approved details and specifications and any noise and odour
mitigation measures undertaken in association with the agreed details before the
extraction and ventilation equipment is brought into first use. With reference to
British Standard BS4142 the noise rating level arising from all plant and
extraction/ventilation equipment shall be at least 5dbB(A) below the prevailing
background at 3.5 metres from the ground floor facades and 1m from all other
facades of the nearest noise sensitive property with no tonal or impulsive
character.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers from undue noise and
disturbance in order to protect their amenities in accordance with Core Strategy
16

(2007) policies KP2 and CP4, Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
31 None of the commercial (Classes A1-A3) or health centre (Class D1) uses
hereby approved shall be first occupied or brought into first use unless and until
full details of the operating and opening times of that unit have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the local planning authority. Each unit shall
subsequently be operated only in full accordance with the details approved under
this condition.
Reason: To protect residential amenity and general environmental quality in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
32 Commercial refuse collection and delivery times for the development hereby
approved shall not take place outside 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to
Fridays and 08:00hours to 13:00hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays or
Bank Holidays.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers and to protect
the character the area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
Use class conditions
33 The commercial (Classes A1-A3) and Health Centre (Class D1) uses hereby
approved, as identified on plan number 032-S2-P401 rev. F shall only be used for
purposes falling within use classes A1, A2 or A3 or D1 as defined under the Town
and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) on the date this
application was submitted and shall not be used for any other purpose, including
any purpose permitted under amendments to the Town and Country Planning
(Use Classes) Order 1987 since the application was submitted nor any change of
use permitted under the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended) or in any provisions equivalent to those
in any statutory instrument revoking and re-enacting these Orders, with or without
modification.
Reason: To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission sought and to enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control of
the use of the floorspace within the Use Class specified so that occupation of the
premises does not prejudice amenity and wider objectives of the planning system,
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2
and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015).
Accessibility
34 No development other than site preparation works shall take place until and
unless details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority to show how at least 10% and a specified number of the
dwellings will be built in compliance with the building regulation M4(3) ‘wheelchair
17

user dwellings’ standard with all of the remaining dwellings complying with the
building regulation part M4(2) ‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’ standard. Each
approved dwelling shall be constructed to comply with either building regulation
M4(2) or M4(3) in accordance with the approved details prior to its first occupation.
Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provides high quality
and flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in
accordance with National Planning Policy Framework, (2012), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1, DM8 and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
Lighting
35 No external lighting shall be installed in the development hereby approved
unless it is in accordance with details that have previously been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The ditch corridors shall not be
illuminated directly or as a result of light spillage.
Reason: In the interest of the safety and amenities of the area, in the interests of
biodiversity and to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers in accordance
with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
36 No development above ground floor level shall be undertaken unless and until
a Light Assessment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details in perpetuity.
Reason: In the interest of the safety and amenities of the area, in the interests of
biodiversity and to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers in accordance
with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
Sustainability
37 Prior to construction of the development hereby approved above ground floor
slab level a scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources must be submitted
to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. A building in the scheme
shall not be occupied until it has been implemented in accordance with the details
approved under this condition. This provision shall be made for the lifetime of the
development.
Reason: In the interests of providing sustainable development and ensuring a high
quality of design in accordance with Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
38 Prior to construction of the development hereby approved above ground floor
slab level details of the water efficient design measures set out in Policy DM2 (iv)
of the Development Management Document to limit internal water consumption to
105 litres per person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external water
consumption), including measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting shall be included
18

within the development and shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. A building in the scheme shall not be occupied until it
has been implemented in accordance with the details approved under this
condition and shall be retained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework,
Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015)
Policy DM2 and the Councils Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
39 No part of the non-residential development hereby approved shall take place
above ground floor slab level until evidence that the development is registered
with a BREEAM certification body and a pre-assessment report (or design stage
certificate with interim rating if available) has been submitted indicating that the
development can achieve Very Good BREEAM level.
Reason: This condition is required in the interests of providing a sustainable
development, in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy
(2007) and Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document (2015).
40 No part of any non-residential building hereby approved shall be first occupied
unless and until a final Certificate has been issued certifying that BREEAM (or any
such equivalent national measure of sustainable building which replaces that
scheme) rating “Very Good” has been achieved for that building.
Reason: In the interests of providing a sustainable development, in accordance
with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM2 of the
Development Management Document (2015).
Contamination and associated conditions
41 A. Site Characterisation
No development other than site preparation works shall take place, on any of the
phase of the development hereby approved they fall within, until and unless an
assessment of the nature and extent of contamination has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This assessment must be
undertaken by a competent person, and shall assess any contamination on the
site, whether or not it originates on the site.
Moreover, it must include:
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: human health, property, existing or
proposed, including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines
and pipes, adjoining land, ground waters and surface waters, ecological systems,
archaeological sites and ancient monuments;
B. Submission of Remediation Scheme
No development other than site preparations works shall take place, on any part of
the phase of the development hereby approved they fall within, until and unless a
detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the
intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other
property and the natural and historical environment has been submitted to and
19

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all
works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria,
an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s), and a
timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure
that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after
remediation.
C. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme
The remediation scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
timetable of works. Within 3 months of the completion of measures identified in the
approved remediation scheme, a validation report that demonstrates the
effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority.
D. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the
approved development that was not previously identified it must be reported in
writing within 7 days to the Local Planning Authority and once the Local Planning
Authority has identified the part of the site affected by the unexpected
contamination development must be halted on that part of the site. An assessment
must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of condition 1, and
where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme, together with a timetable
for its implementation, must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority in accordance with the requirements of condition 2. The
measures in the approved remediation scheme must then be implemented in
accordance with the approved timetable. Following completion of measures
identified in the approved remediation scheme a validation report must be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in
accordance with condition 3.
E. Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance
E1) No development shall take place, on any part of the phase of the
development hereby approved they fall within, until a monitoring and maintenance
scheme to include monitoring the long-term effectiveness of the proposed
remediation over a period of 5 years, and the provision of reports on the same
must both be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
E2) Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the
remediation scheme is complete, reports that demonstrate the effectiveness of the
monitoring and maintenance carried out must be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that any contamination on the site is identified and treated so
that it does not harm anyone who uses the site in the future, and to ensure that
the development does not cause pollution to Controlled Waters in accordance with
Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and Policies DM1 and DM14 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
42 The development hereby approved shall be implemented and undertaken in
strict accordance with the findings and recommendations and mitigation, as
outlined in Section 10 of the Unexploded Ordnance Assessment by MACC ref.
6503 V.1.0 dated 11/05/2020.
20

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the area in accordance with
Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and Policies DM1 and DM14 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
CCTV
43 NO CCTV shall be installed in the development hereby approved unless in
accordance with details that have previously been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority.
Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of the area and amenities of
neighbouring occupiers in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
Air Quality
44 The development hereby approved shall be implemented and undertaken in
strict accordance with the findings and recommendations and mitigation, as
outlined in Tables 6.1 and 6.2 of the Air Quality Assessment by WYG ref.
A117624. Prior to the commencement of the development, other than for
demolition and site preparation works, a timescale for the implementation of these
measures and mitigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and
approved in writing. The measures shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved timescale.
Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the area in accordance with
Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and Policies DM1 and DM14 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
(c) In the event that the planning obligation or other means of securing the
financial contribution referred to in part (a) above has not been completed by 8th
January 2021 or an extension of this time as may be agreed, the Interim Director
of Planning or Group Manager Planning & Building Control be authorised to refuse
planning permission for the application on the grounds that the development
would not provide adequate mitigation for the potential disturbance to European
designated site, would not provide adequate levels of affordable housing, would
not provide any secondary education contributions to mitigate the development, or
the necessary highways contribution contrary to National and Local planning
policy.
INFORMATIVES
01 Please note that the proposed development subject of this application is liable
for a charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended). The amount of levy due will be calculated at the time a reserved
matters application is submitted. Further information about CIL can be found on
the Planning Portal:
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infra
structure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil).

21

02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
03 Should the applicant require roads within the development adopted the
Council’s highways tea should be contacted.
04 Anglian Water has assets close to or crossing this site or there are assets
subject to an adoption agreement. Therefore, the site layout should take this into
account and accommodate those assets within either prospectively adoptable
highways or public open space. If this is not practicable then the sewers will need
to be diverted at the developers cost under Section 185 of the Water Industry Act
1991. or, in the case of apparatus under an adoption agreement, liaise with the
owners of the apparatus. It should be noted that the diversion works should
normally be completed before development can commence.
05 The development site is within 15m of a sewage pumping station which
requires access for maintenance and will have sewage infrastructure leading to it
and cannot be easily relocated. The site layout should take this into account and
accommodate this infrastructure type through a necessary cordon sanitaire,
through public space or highway infrastructure to ensure that no development
within 15 metres from the boundary of a sewage pumping station if the
development is potentially sensitive to noise or other disturbance or to ensure
future amenity issues are not created.
06 If the developer wishes to connect to the Anglian Water sewerage network
they should serve notice under Section 106 of the Water Industry Act 1991.
Anglian Water will then advise them of the most suitable point of connection.
Notification of intention to connect to the public sewer under S106 of the Water
Industry Act Approval and consent will be required by Anglian Water, under the
Water Industry Act 1991. Contact Development Services Team 0345 606 6087.
07 Notification of intention to connect to the public sewer under S106 of the Water
Industry Act Approval and consent will be required by Anglian Water, under the
Water Industry Act 1991. Contact Development Services Team 0345 606 6087.
08 A public sewer is shown on record plans within the land identified for the
proposed development. It appears that development proposals will affect existing
public sewers. It is recommended that the applicant contacts Anglian Water
Development Services Team for further advice on this matter. Building over
existing public sewers will not be permitted (without agreement) from Anglian
Water.
09 Building near to a public sewer - No building will be permitted within the
statutory easement width of 3 metres from the pipeline without agreement from
Anglian Water. Please contact Development Services Team on 0345 606 6087.
10 The developer should note that the site drainage details submitted have not
been approved for the purposes of adoption. If the developer wishes to have the
22

sewers included in a sewer adoption agreement with Anglian Water (under
Sections 104 of the Water Industry Act 1991), they should contact our
Development Services Team on 0345 606 6087 at the earliest opportunity.
Sewers intended for adoption should be designed and constructed in accordance
with Sewers for Adoption guide for developers, as supplemented by Anglian
Water’s requirements.
11 Given the scale of the development, a Prior Consent under Section 61 COPA
(1974) shall be required with Regulatory Services at Southend Borough Council.
Construction and Demolition shall also be undertaken in accordance with London
Good Practice Guide.
12 The additional SuDS and drainage information that will need to be submitted
as part of condition 25 includes
i. Adoptable SuDS and drainage by Anglian Water need to be in line with the
‘Design and Construction Guidance’. Evidence of the agreement in principle with
Anglian Water is required to ensure that the SuDS/drainage systems will be
maintained in perpetuity.
ii. A plan showing the SuDS/drainage elements managed by the different parties
(SBC, Anglian Water, Management Company) to be provided.
iii. Catchment plan showing impervious and pervious areas (positively and nonpositively drained) to be provided.
iv. Greenfield runoff rates are calculated for all the site area. Greenfield runoff
rates should be calculated for areas positively drained (pervious or impervious). It
is unclear is all areas are positively drained (pervious and pervious) into the
system, but calculations and modelling suggest that only impervious areas are
positively drained. Greenfield runoff will need to be re-calculated. Also, the
greenfield runoff rate for the 100 year should be reduced to take into account the
extra discharge of Long-Term Storage. This could have an impact on the storage
requirements.
v. Long Term Storage is estimated, but it is not clear how this is going to be
provided in the site (i.e. part of main attenuation feature or separate storage area).
vi. The SuDS/drainage strategy should consider the effects of submerged outfalls
in the Barge Pier Ditch.
vii. Consideration should be given to un-lining system in areas of less risk of high
groundwater table and pollution (incl. consideration of land contamination).
viii. Exceedance routes to be shown on plan.
ix. Phasing Plan to be provided as part of the Drainage Strategy.
x. Management of Health and Safety Risks to be provided as part of the Drainage
Strategy.
xi. Construction details (including flow controls) to be provided.
xii. Management of groundwater and land drainage (from external areas and from
pervious areas within the development) to be provided
xiii. Additional information in line with Detailed Drainage Design Checklist (Essex
County Council).
13 Max development height in this area is 161.46m AOD. All aspects of the
development must comply with CAP168 and EASA regulations including lighting,
landscaping and renewable energy sources.
14 The applicant is encouraged to provide electric vehicle charging points at the
site in accordance with Policy DM15 which encourages their provision wherever
practical and feasible.
23

15 The applicant is advised that refuse stores should not be prominently located
within the development. As such it is recommended that the refuse stores are not
located to the front of the dwellings.
16 The Council will need to retain access across the site to maintain its land and
infrastructure in perpetuity.
17. No waste as part of the development shall be burnt on site.
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers
659

19/02255/FULM - 245 Sutton Road, Southend-on-Sea (Victoria Ward)
Proposal: Demolish existing building, erect five storey building comprising
22 self-contained flats with balconies to all elevations, terrace to rear at
ground floor level and layout parking at lower ground floor level
Applicant: Argent Developers
Agent: Mr Lewis Cullerton of DAP Architecture
Resolved:(a) That the Interim Director of Planning or Group Manager of Planning & Building
Control be DELEGATED to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the
following conditions following the completion of a PLANNING AGREEMENT under
SECTION 106 of the TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 (as
amended) and any other appropriate legislation to secure the provision of:
• a financial contribution of £2,762.76 (index linked) to mitigate the potential for
disturbance to European designated sites in accordance with the Essex Coast
Recreational disturbance Avoidance Mitigation Strategy or the securing of this
same payment by other suitable means
(b) The Interim Director of Planning or the Group Manager (Planning & Building
Control) be authorised to determine the application upon completion of the above
obligation, so long as planning permission when granted and, where it is used, the
obligation when executed, accords with the details set out in the report submitted
and the conditions listed below:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years of the
date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans 200.03, 201.03, 202.03, 203.04, 204.03, 205.03, 206.02,
001.02
24

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
03 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works other than demolition and construction up
to ground floor slab level shall take place until full product details of the materials
to be used on all the external elevations, including walls, roof, windows and doors,
balconies and terraces, ramp, brise soleil, rainwater goods and boundaries have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved details
before it is brought into use.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works other than demolition of the existing
building shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works to
be carried out at the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The approved hard landscaping works shall be carried out
prior to first occupation of the development and the soft landscaping works within
the first planting season following first occupation of the development, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The details submitted
shall include, but not limited to: i) Proposed finished site levels or contours;
ii) Means of enclosure, of the site including any gates or boundary fencing;
iii) hard surfacing materials;
iv) Full details of the amenity deck including associated structures (e.g. benches,
planters, lighting etc.).;
v) Full details of the number, size and location of the trees, shrubs and plants to
be retained and planted together with a planting specification and tree
management plan.
vi) Full details of tree protection fencing to protect the existing trees to be retained
adjacent to the rear boundary of the site.
vii) Details of measures to enhance biodiversity within the site.
Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming
seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or
shrubs of such size and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning
Authority
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area and the amenities of
occupiers and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy
DM1 of the Development Management Document (2015) and Policy CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007)
05 The 22 car parking spaces (including 2 disabled spaces) shown on approved
plan 202.03 shall be provided and made available for use at the site prior to the
first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. The car parking spaces and the
25

associated vehicular access to and from the public highway shall thereafter be
permanently retained solely for the parking of vehicles and the accessing of the
car parking spaces in connection with the occupiers of the dwelling hereby
approved and their visitors.
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory off-street car parking is provided in the
interests of residential amenity and highways efficiency and safety, in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy
KP2, Development Management Document (2015) policy DM15 and the Southend
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
06 The development shall not be occupied or brought into use until the refuse and
recycling storage facilities are provided and made available for use by the
occupiers in full accordance with the details shown on approved drawing number
201.03. The refuse and recycling facilities shall be permanently retained as such
thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway safety
and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding area, in
accordance with Policies KP2 and CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy
DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
07 Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved an updated waste
management plan shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning
authority. The development shall only be implemented in accordance with the
approved details from first occupation for the proposed use and be maintained as
such in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway safety
and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding conservation
area, in accordance with Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007)
and Policies DM1, DM5 and DM15 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
08 The development shall not be occupied or brought into use until the cycle
storage facilities are provided in full and made available for use by the occupiers
in accordance with the details shown on drawing number 202.03. The cycle
storage facilities shall be permanently retained as such thereafter.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking in accordance with
policies DM8 and DM15 of The Development Management Document (2015).
09 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling, details of the Residential Travel
Packs shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The approved travel packs shall then be provided to each dwelling
within 1 month of occupation.
Reason: In the interests of sustainability in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM15, and Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
26

10 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in a manner to ensure
that a minimum of two of the dwellings comply with building regulations M4(3)
‘wheelchair user dwellings’ and the remaining 20 dwellings comply with building
regulation M4 (2) ‘accessible and adaptable dwellings’ before they are occupied.
Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provides a high quality
and flexible internal layout to meet the changing needs of residents in accordance
with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2,
Development Management Document (2015) policy DM8 and the advice
contained in the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
11 A scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources shall be submitted
to, agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in full in
accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the dwellings
hereby approved. This provision shall be made for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of resources and better use of sustainable and renewable resources
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) policy KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) policy
DM2 and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
12 Prior to occupation of the dwellings hereby approved, appropriate water
efficient design measures as set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the Development
Management Document to limit internal water consumption to not more than 105
litres per person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external
water
consumption), to include measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting shall be
implemented for the development and thereafter retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2, Development Management Document
(2015) Policy DM2 and advice contained within the Southend Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
13 With the exception of below ground investigation work and removal of the
previous structures on site, no development shall take place until and unless the
following details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
Planning Authority.
i) An instructive investigation (Phase II Site Investigation) must be undertaken in
order to quantify the risks identified by the Phase 1 Site Investigation. The
investigation must be undertaken in accordance with the scope of work outlined in
the Phase 1 Contamination Assessment, by MLM Consulting Engineers reference
775649-REP-ENV-001 dated 13 Oct 2017. The Phase II report must be submitted
to the Local planning authority for approval. The assessment must be undertaken
by a competent person in accordance with British Standards 10175:2011
(Investigation of potentially contaminated sites – Code of Practice) and the
Environment Agency/DEFRA ‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination.
27

ii) Where the Phase II Investigation Report identifies any unacceptable risk or
risks, a detailed Site Remediation Strategy to deal with land contamination and /or
pollution of controlled waters affecting the site shall be submitted and approved by
the local planning authority. With the exception of below ground investigation
work and removal of the previous structures on site, no development shall take
place until and unless this Site Remediation Strategy has been approved in writing
by the local planning authority.
iii) The site shall be remediated in accordance with the approved Site Remediation
Strategy before the construction of the development hereby approved begins. A
Validation Report for the Site Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to and
agreed in writing by the local planning authority before completion of the
development or occupation of the premises (whichever comes first).
iv) If, during the development, land contamination not previously considered is
identified, then the Local Planning Authority shall be notified immediately and no
further works shall be carried out until a method statement detailing a scheme for
dealing with suspect contamination has been submitted to and agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority
The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved remediation measures
and shall be carried out in full before the building is occupied.
Reason: To ensure that any contamination on the site is identified and treated so
that it does not harm anyone who uses the site in the future, and to ensure that
the development does not cause pollution to Controlled Waters in accordance with
Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4 and Policies DM1 and DM14 of the
Development Management Document (2015).
14 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, and in accordance with the Flood Risk and Surface Water
Strategy by Ardent Consulting Engineers reference 172880-02 dated December
2019, the development hereby permitted shall not be commenced other than for
demolition works unless and until a detailed design of a surface water drainage
scheme and surface water management strategy has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The details submitted shall
include, but not limited to: i) An updated drainage layout plan confirming the manholes, downstream
defender and hydro-brake flow control device cover and invert levels if a rising
main is required to achieve the proposed connection point to the Anglian Water
surface water sewer. Engineering plans should be updated accordingly along with
supporting surface water calculations provided for each of the SuDS and critical
drainage elements, including the flow control features, connection and discharge
rates.
ii) Calculations to demonstrate the hydraulic performance of the entire pipe
network, including the proposed pipe network, for the 1 in 1 year, 1 in 30 year, 1 in
100 year and 1 in 100 year plus 40% climate change.
iii) An indication of exceedance overland flow routes, including provision for failure
of a pump, should it be required.
iv) Provide a method statement regarding the management of surface water runoff
during the construction phase of the project.

28

v) Evidence of consent from Anglian Water for the proposed discharge rate and
connection location to the public sewer.
vi) surface water management strategy including evidence to demonstrate that the
surface water hierarchy has been followed as stipulated in Building Regulations
Part H.
vii) A maintenance plan for the SuDS and corresponding drainage infrastructure
with details on the accessibility of the SuDS for future maintenance, and for a
pump, should it be required.
The drainage strategy and SuDS design statement must be implemented in full
accordance with the details approved under this condition before the development
hereby approved is first occupied or brought into first use.
Reason: To ensure the approved development does not increase flood risk
elsewhere in accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core
Strategy (2007) Policies KP1, KP2 and KP3 and Development Management
Document (2015) Policies DM6 and DM14.
15 No development shall take place, until a Construction Method Statement has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The
approved Statement shall be fully adhered to throughout the construction period.
The Statement shall provide, amongst other things, for:
i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii) loading and unloading of plant and materials
iii) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including measures to
ensure the retention of trees to the rear of the site
v) measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
vi) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works
that does not allow for the burning of waste on site.
Reason: This pre-commencement condition is needed in the interests of visual
amenity and the amenities of neighbouring occupiers pursuant to Policy CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
16 Construction Hours for the development hereby approved shall be restricted to
8am – 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am - 1pm Saturday and not at all on Sundays or
Bank Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of neighbours and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
(c) In the event that the planning obligation or other means of securing the
financial contribution referred to in part (a) above has not been completed by 10th
December 2020 or an extension of this time as may be agreed, the Interim
Director of Planning or Group Manager Planning & Building Control be authorised
to refuse planning permission for the application on the grounds that the
development would not provide adequate mitigation for the potential disturbance
to European designated site, contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework
29

(2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2 and Development Management
Document (2015) Policy DM2.
INFORMATIVES
01 Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and it is the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have fully
complied with the requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with the
CIL regulations in full can result in a range of penalties. For full planning
permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be issued by the Council as soon as
practicable following this decision notice. For general consents, you are required
to submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5) before commencement;
and upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability Notice including
details of the chargeable amount and when this is payable. If you have not
received a CIL Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence development it
is imperative that you contact:
S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk to avoid financial penalties for
potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended).
02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
03 The applicant is advised that the appropriate highways licences should be
obtained prior to the commencement of the development.
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as
originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments
to the proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning
Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal,
in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set
out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set
out in a report on the application prepared by officers.
660

20/01180/FUL - St Stephens Church, Alton Gardens (St Laurence Ward)
Proposal: Demolish existing Church and Church Hall building and erect
replacement Church and community building with associated cycle parking,
car parking spaces, landscaping and children's playground.
Applicant: Mr Colin Baldwin
Agent: Mr Paul Taylor of Cottrell & Vermeulen Architecture
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years of the
date of this decision
30

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans 0422-PL01-P1, 0422-PL02-P1, 0422-PL07-01, 0422PL03-P2, 0442-PL05-P2, 0422-PL06-02, 0422-PL08-02, 0422-PL09-P1, 0422PL10-04, 0422-PL12-02
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
03 The development hereby approved shall be used for purposes falling within
use class F.1 as defined under the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
Order Regulations 2020 or any change of use permitted under the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) or
in any provisions equivalent to those in any statutory instrument revoking and reenacting these Orders, with or without modification.
Reason: To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission sought and is retained for the benefit of the wider community in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2
and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of
the Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document (2015) and the
advice contained within the Southend-on-Sea Design and Townscape Guide
(2009).
04 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works other than demolition and construction up
to ground floor slab level shall take place until full product details of the materials
to be used on all the external elevations, including exposed frame, roof, rooflights
and lantern, tower, walls, windows and doors, rainwater goods, entrance gates
and boundaries have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The development shall only be carried out in accordance with
the approved details before it is brought into use.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
05 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works other than demolition and construction up
to ground floor slab level shall take place until detailed design drawings of the
tower, rooflight and lantern, external windows and doors, gates, and eaves
(including rainwater solution) at scales of 1:20, 1:10 or 1:1 as appropriate have
been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before it
is brought into use.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and
31

CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
06 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works other than demolition of the existing
building shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works to
be carried out at the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. The approved hard landscaping works shall be carried out
prior to first occupation of the development and the soft landscaping works within
the first planting season following first occupation of the development, unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority. The details submitted
shall include, but not limited to:i proposed finished site levels or contours;
ii. means of enclosure, of the site including any gates or boundary fencing;
iii. car parking layouts;
iv. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;
v. hard surfacing materials;
vi. full details of the replacement play equipment and other associated structures
(e.g. benches, litter bins, security fencing, bollards, protective surfacing). The play
equipment must provide an equivalent level of equipment to the existing
playground which includes rocking x 2, swinging, rotate x 2, balance, slide and
climb. All equipment and structures must meet British and European Standard for
playground equipment BS EN1176;
vii. details of the number, size and location of the trees, shrubs and plants to be
retained and planted together with a planting specification and tree management
plan.
viii. details of measures to enhance biodiversity within the site;
Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming
seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or
shrubs of such size and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning
Authority
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area and the amenities of
occupiers and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy
DM1 of the Development Management Document (2015) and Policy CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007)
07 The area denoted as ‘public playground’ on plan reference 0422-PL05-02
hereby approved, shall be provided in full, including play equipment, protective
surfaces, benches, bins and boundaries, prior to the first occupation of any part of
the proposed development and shall be retained and maintained in perpetuity for
the wider community.
Reason: In the interests of amenity in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019) and Policies KP2, CP4 and CP7 of the Core Strategy,
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015) and
the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
08 The tree protection measures as set out in Appendix 4 of the Arboricultural
Impact Assessment by A.T. Coombes Associates dated 22nd June 2020 shall be
implemented in full prior to commencement of the development and be retained
32

throughout each construction phase of the development. Implementation of the
development shall be undertaken only in full accordance with British Standard
3998 and British Standard 5837.
Reason: A condition is justified to ensure the trees on and close to the site are
adequately protected during building works in the interests of visual amenity and
in accordance with Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1 and advice contained within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
09 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Phasing and Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The approved statement shall
be adhered to in full throughout each phase of the construction of the
development. The details submitted statement shall include, but not limited to:(i) Full details of the extent of each phase of the development including how it will
be left at the end of each phase.
(ii) Full details of how the wider site will be maintained between phases including
safety and access.
(iii) Full details of the extent of parking provision, cycle parking provision and
refuse and recycling storage to be provided at each phase.
(iv) Full details of construction management for each phase of the build including:
(a) Location for the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors.
(b) Location for loading and unloading of plant and materials.
(c)
Location of storage of plant and materials used in constructing the

development.
(d)
Details of measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction.
(e) A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works that does not allow for the burning of waste on site.
Reason: A pre commencement condition is justified to ensure that each phase of
the development is properly considered in terms of provision of parking and refuse
facilities and the impact on neighbours and the wider streetscene. This is in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) policies KP2 and KP4, Development Management Document (2015)
policies DM1 and DM15 and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
10 The 17 car parking spaces (including 2 disabled spaces) and the associated
vehicular access for the spaces to access the public highway, shown on approved
plan 0422-PL05-P2 shall be provided and made available for use at the site prior
to the first occupation of the main worship space hereby approved. The car
parking spaces and the associated vehicular access to and from the public
highway shall thereafter be permanently retained solely for the parking of vehicles
and the accessing of the car parking spaces in connection with the occupiers of
the dwelling hereby approved and their visitors.
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory off-street car parking is provided in the
interests of residential amenity and highways efficiency and safety, in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy
KP2, Development Management Document (2015) policy DM15 and the Southend
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
33

11 Prior to the first occupation of any part of the building hereby approved, full
details including materials, for the refuse and recycling store and cycle storage for
staff and visitors at the site and details of the level of provision of refuse storage
and cycle storage at each phase of the development shall be submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. The development shall be implemented
in accordance with the approved details before each phase of the development is
first occupied for the approved use.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking in accordance with
policies DM8 and DM15 of The Development Management Document (2015).
12 No drainage infrastructure associated with this development shall be
undertaken unless and until details of the design implementation; maintenance
and management of a scheme for surface water drainage works (incorporating
Sustainable Urban Drainage (SuDs) Principles) have been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. The approved scheme shall be
implemented, in accordance with the approved details before the development is
occupied or brought into use and be maintained as such thereafter in perpetuity.
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and disposal of
surface water from the site for the lifetime of the development and to prevent
environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policy KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
13 No extraction and ventilation equipment shall be installed until and unless full
details of its location, design and technical specifications and a report detailing
any mitigation measures proposed in respect of noise and odour impacts has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The
installation of extraction equipment shall be carried out in full accordance with the
approved details and specifications and any noise and odour mitigation measures
undertaken in association with the agreed details before the extraction and
ventilation equipment is brought into use. With reference to British Standards
BS4142 the noise rating level arising from all plant and extraction/ventilation
equipment shall be at least 5dbB(A) below the prevailing background at 3.5
metres from the ground floor facades and 1m from all other facades of the nearest
noise sensitive property with no tonal or impulsive character.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers from undue noise and
disturbance in order to protect their amenities in accordance with Core Strategy
(2007) policies KP2 and CP4, Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
14 The development hereby permitted shall not be operational outside the
following times: 08:00 hours until 22:00 hours on Monday to Sundays including
Bank Holidays. There shall be no deliveries to the site outside of these hours.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of surrounding occupiers in
accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies
DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).

34

15 No external lighting shall be installed on the building other than in accordance
with details that have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority. No additional external lighting shall be installed on the
building or within the site without the prior written consent of the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities and character of the conservation
area, and to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers in accordance with
policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM5 of
the Development Management Document (2015).
16 A scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources shall be submitted
to, agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in full in
accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the worship
area hereby approved. This provision shall be made for the lifetime of the
development.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of resources and better use of sustainable and renewable resources
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) policy KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) policy
DM2 and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
17 Construction Hours for the development hereby approved shall be restricted to
8am – 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am - 1pm Saturday and not at all on Sundays or
Bank Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of neighbours and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
18 Prior to the occupation of any part of the development hereby approved details
of water efficiency measures to be included in the development, including water
efficient fittings and appliances, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The measures approved shall then be installed in
accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of the development
and be retained in perpetuity thereafter.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework,
Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015)
Policy DM2 and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as
originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments
to the proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning
Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal,
in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set
out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set
out in a report on the application prepared by officers.
35

INFORMATIVES
01 Community Infrastructure Levy Liability Notice: You are advised that in this
instance the chargeable amount for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) has
been calculated as zero under the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) due to the
specific nature of the use. However, should the nature of the use change then you
are advised to contact the Planning and Building Control Group to discuss the
requirement for planning permission and CIL liability.
02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
03 The applicant is advised that following the commencement of the development
the playground lease will be out of date and will need to be re-negotiated with the
Councils Assets and Parks Teams.
04 The applicant is advised that if a crane or piling rig is required to construct the
development a safeguarding assessment will need to be undertaken by the
Airport. Applications should be directed to sam.petrie@southendairport.com /
01702 538521.
661

20/01314/AMDT & 20/01316/LBC - Carriage and Wagon Shed Warrior
Square Road, Shoeburyness (Shoeburyness Ward)
Proposal: 1. Application to vary conditions 02 (approved plans) and 03
(details of materials) - replace existing timber entrance double doors with
glazed aluminium sliding doors with colour and profile to match existing
and install square weather louvres to extract outlets - (Minor Material
Amendment to planning permission 16/01264/FUL dated 08/06/2018)
2. Replace existing timber entrance double doors with glazed aluminium
sliding doors with colour and profile to match existing and install square
weather louvres to extract outlets (Listed Building Consent)
Applicant: Mark Hayman
Agent: KLH Architects Ltd
Resolved:1. That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved
plans:
GHC/840/Ex000;
GHC/840/Ex110;
GHC/840/Ex310;
GHC/840/P000; GHC/840/P100; GHC/840/P101; GHC/840/P110 Revision J;
GHC/840/P111; GHC/840/P112; GHC/840/P113 Revision C; GHC/840/P114;
GHC/840/P115;
GHC/840/P210
Revision
A;
840GHC/840/P211;
GHC/840/P212_01;
GHC/840/P212_02;
GHC/840/P213;
GHC/840/P214;
GHC/840/P215; GHC/840/P310 Revision A; GHC/840/P311 Revision A;
GHC/840/P312 Revision A; GHC/840/P313; GHC/840/P523; GHC/840/P524
Revision A; M.2046.101 Revision T5 and as updated and revised by 4894 - 0100
36

P02 Location plan, 4894 P02 Minor Alterations to Approved Fenestration, 4894 0401 P02 Elevations as Proposed, 4894 - 0402 P02 End Elevations - Louvre
Positions.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
02. The development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details of
materials as detailed on drawings GHC/840/P111; GHC/840/P210 Revision A;
GHC/840/P212_01; GHC/840/P212_02; GHC/840/P213; GHC/840/P310 Revision
A; GHC/840/P311 Revision A; GHC/840/P312 Revision A; GHC/840/P313;
GHC/840/P523; GHC/840/P524 Revision A, and supporting document NBS
Specification dated April 2016 and as updated and revised by 4894 P02 Minor
Alterations to Approved Fenestration, 4894 - 0401 P02 Elevations as Proposed,
4894 - 0402 P02 End Elevations - Louvre Positions.
Reason: To maintain the character and significance of the Grade II listed building
and Shoebury Garrison Conservation Area in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007),
Policies DM1, DM3 and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015)
and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
03. The landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved drawing
GHC/840/P115 and shall be carried out within the first planting season following
first occupation of the development.
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactory in terms of its appearance
and that it makes a positive contribution to the local environment and biodiversity
in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies
DM1, DM3 and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015) and the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04. Development shall be implemented in full accordance with the mitigation
measures and recommendations as set out in the Planning Compliance Report by
KP Acoustics (15176.PCR.02 Rev B). The attenuation measures shall then be
installed in full accordance with the approved details before the development is
brought into use and permanently maintained thereafter.
Reason: To protect residential amenity and general environmental quality in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Core Strategy (2007)
Policies KP2 and CP4, and Development Management Document (2015) Policies
DM1, DM3 and DM5.
05. No plant or equipment shall be installed on the external elevations or roof of
the approved development unless and until details of its location, design and
specifications have first been agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To control the visual and noise impact and the consequent effect on local
amenity in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007),
Policies DM1, DM3 and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015)
and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

37

06. With reference to BS4142, the noise rating level arising from all plant and
extraction/ventilation equipment shall be at least 5dB(A) below the prevailing
background at 3.5 metres from the ground floor façades and 1m from all other
facades of the nearest noise sensitive property with no tonal or impulsive
character.
Reason: To protect residential amenity and general environmental quality in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4
of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
07. Construction and demolition shall only take place between 0800 and 1800
Mondays to Fridays, 0800 and 1300 Saturdays and not at all on Sundays or Bank
Holidays.
Reason: To protect residential amenity and general environment quality in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4
of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
INFORMATIVE
1. As this application is for external and internal alterations to the existing building.
You are advised that in this instance there will be no CIL charge on this
permission as there is no net increase in internal floor space.
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
2. That Listed Building Consent be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01. The development hereby permitted shall commence not later than 3 years
beginning with the date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed
Building and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.
02. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved
plans:
GHC/840/Ex000;
GHC/840/Ex110;
GHC/840/Ex310;
GHC/840/P000; GHC/840/P100; GHC/840/P101; GHC/840/P110 Revision J;
GHC/840/P111; GHC/840/P112; GHC/840/P113 Revision C; GHC/840/P114;
GHC/840/P115;
GHC/840/P210
Revision
A;
840GHC/840/P211;
GHC/840/P212_01;
GHC/840/P212_02;
GHC/840/P213;
GHC/840/P214;
GHC/840/P215; GHC/840/P310 Revision A; GHC/840/P311 Revision A;
GHC/840/P312 Revision A; GHC/840/P313; GHC/840/P523; GHC/840/P524
Revision A; M.2046.101 Revision T5 and as updated and revised by 4894 - 0100
P02 Location plan, 4894 P02 Minor Alterations to Approved Fenestration, 4894 -

38

0401 P02 Elevations as Proposed, 4894 - 0402 P02 End Elevations - Louvre
Positions.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
policies outlined in the development plan.
03. The development shall only be carried out in accordance with the details of
materials as detailed on drawings GHC/840/P111; GHC/840/P210 Revision A;
GHC/840/P212_01; GHC/840/P212_02; GHC/840/P213; GHC/840/P310 Revision
A; GHC/840/P311 Revision A; GHC/840/P312 Revision A; GHC/840/P313;
GHC/840/P523; GHC/840/P524 Revision A, and supporting document NBS
Specification dated April 2016 and as updated and revised by 4894 P02 Minor
Alterations to Approved Fenestration, 4894 - 0401 P02 Elevations as Proposed,
4894 - 0402 P02 End Elevations - Louvre Positions.
Reason: To maintain the character and significance of the Grade II listed building
and Shoebury Garrison Conservation Area in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007),
Policies DM1, DM3 and DM5 of the Development Management Document (2015)
and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
662

20/01332/FUL - Flat 1, 1 Leigh Park Road, Leigh-on-Sea (Leigh Ward)
Proposal: Erect ground floor side extension and alter elevations
Applicant: M Metson
Agents: Metson Architects Ltd
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years from
the date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: TP-01-A and TP-02-A.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with
provisions of the Development Plan.
03 All new work to the outside of the building (including the windows, the bay
surrounds and the columns) must match existing original work in terms of the
choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance.
39

Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
Conservation Area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF), DPD1 (Core Strategy) 2007 policy KP2 and CP4, Borough Local Plan
1994 policies C4 and C11, and SPD1 (Design and Townscape Guide).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
663

20/01450/FUL - 91 - 93 Prince Avenue, Southend-on-Sea (St Laurence
Ward)
Proposal: Change of use from retail shop (Class A1) to mixed use
restaurant/takeaway (Class A3/A5) at ground floor and self-contained flat
(Class C3) to first floor, erect bin store to rear and alter front elevation to
provide access to first floor flat
Applicant: Mr Newland - Eclipse Homes Limited
Agent: Knight Gratrix Architects
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 (three) years
from the date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans: 010A & 011A.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with
provisions of the Development Plan.
03 Prior to the first occupation of the building for mixed use restaurant / take away
purposes details of the means of ventilation for the extraction and dispersal of
cooking smells/fumes, including full specification of any installation of odour
control measures, noise levels, noise mitigation measures and anti-vibration
measures, air conditioning units and other plant and equipment, its appearance
and finish shall have been submitted to and shall have been approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be installed in full
accordance with the approved details before the use hereby approved is occupied
or brought into first use and thereafter shall be permanently retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To protect the environment of people in neighbouring properties and
general environmental quality in accordance with Core Strategy (2007) Policies

40

KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and
DM3 and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 Prior to the first occupation of the building for mixed use restaurant / take away
purposes, details of the design and materials of the proposed commercial waste
storage and an associated waste management plan shall be submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. The development shall be implemented
in accordance with the approved details from first occupation for the proposed use
and shall be maintained and managed as such in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway safety
and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding area, in
accordance with Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
05 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, the flat hereby permitted shall not be occupied until and unless
a noise assessment report has first been submitted to and agreed in writing by the
local planning authority to demonstrate that the internal noise levels for all
habitable rooms within the flat hereby approved will meet the standards set out in
British Standard BS 8233:2014 (Internal Noise Levels). The development shall be
undertaken and completed in accordance with the agreed details within that report
before the flat is occupied and shall be retained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the occupiers of the dwelling hereby
approved from noise arising from the adjacent uses and plant and equipment in
accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies
DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
06 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved full details of
refuse, recycling and secure, covered bicycle storage facilities for the residential
dwelling shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, refuse,
recycling and bicycle storage facilities shall be provided and made available for
use at the site in accordance with the approved details and retained in perpetuity
thereafter for that use.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity for future occupants, to ensure the
provision of adequate cycle parking and in the interests of visual amenity as set
out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007)
policies KP2 and CP4 and Policies DM1, DM8 and DM15 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the guidance within the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
07 Water efficient design measures as set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the
Development Management Document to limit internal water consumption to 105
litres per person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external water
consumption), including measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems shall be installed and made available for use prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby approved and retained in perpetuity.

41

Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework,
Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015)
policy DM2 and the guidance within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
08 The ground floor unit of the development hereby approved shall solely be used
as a sui generis mixed restaurant and takeaway use and shall be used for no
other purposes including any change of use permitted under the Town and
Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015 (as amended) or
any revocation, amendment or re-enactment of that order.
Reason: To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission sought and to enable the Local Planning Authority to control the impact
of the use of the premises within the Use Class specified in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Southend-on-Sea Design
and Townscape Guide (2009).
09 The ground floor premises hereby approved shall not be open for customers
outside the following hours: 11:00 hours to 23:00 hours Monday to Sunday and at
no other times.
Reason: To protect residential amenity and general environmental quality in
accordance with Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and the advice contained in
the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
INFORMATIVES
1 . Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and it is the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have fully
complied with the requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with the
CIL regulations in full can result in a range of penalties. For full planning
permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be issued by the Council as soon as
practicable following this decision notice. For general consents, you are required
to submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5) before commencement;
and upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability Notice including
details of the chargeable amount and when this is payable.
If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence
development,
it
is
imperative
that
you
contact
S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk to avoid financial penalties for
potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended). If the
chargeable development has already commenced, no exemption or relief can be
sought in relation to the charge and a CIL Demand Notice will be issued requiring
immediate payment. Further details on CIL matters can be found on the Planning
Portal or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil).
2. You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
42

responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
3.
This permission does not convey any form of consent for external
advertisement signs, consent for which will separately be required under the
provisions of the Town and Country Planning Advertisement Regulations.
4. Essex County Fire and Rescue Service (ECFRS) advise that the installation of
Automatic Water Suppression Systems (AWSS) can be effective in the rapid
suppression of fires. ECFRS therefore uses every occasion to urge building
owners and developers to consider the installation of AWSS
664

20/01641/BC3 - Garages Rear Of 40, 42, 44 and 46 Anson Chase,
Shoeburyness (Shoeburyness Ward)
Proposal: Demolish existing garages, erect two bed bungalow with
associated amenity space and parking
Applicant: Mr Martin Berry of Southend Borough Council
Agent: Mr David Lloyd of AK Design Partnership LLP
Resolved:(a)
That the Interim Director of Planning or Group Manager of Planning &
Building Control be DELEGATED to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to
the following conditions and following the completion of a PLANNING
AGREEMENT UNDER SECTION 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended) and any other appropriate legislation to secure the provision of a
financial contribution of £125.58 (index linked) to mitigate the potential disturbance
to European designated sites in accordance with the Essex Coast Recreational
disturbance Avoidance Mitigation Strategy or the securing of this same payment
by other suitable means.
(b)
The Interim Director of Planning or the Group Manager (Planning &
Building Control) be authorised to determine the application upon completion of
the above requirement, so long as planning permission when granted and, where
it is used, the obligation when executed, accords with the details set out in the
report submitted and the conditions listed below:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years of the
date of this decision
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans 4760.102 –PL5
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
03 Prior to its occupation the materials for the external surfaces of the dwellings
hereby approved shall be as set out on plan reference 4760.102-PL5 or any other
43

details that have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works above a lower ground floor slab level
shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works and
proposed boundary treatment have been submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. These details shall include:
i.) proposed finished levels or contours;
ii.) Details for the means of enclosure of the amenity area;
iii.) Details for the soft landscape works shall include the number, size and location
of the trees, shrubs and plants to be planted together with a planting specification
and the initial tree planting and tree staking details.
The hard landscaping shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved
details before the development is occupied or brought into use. The soft
landscaping shall be completed before the end of the first planting season
following first occupation of the building.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of occupiers and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and advise contained within the Southend Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
05 The four car parking spaces and the associated vehicular access for the
spaces to access the public highway, shown on approved plan 4760.102-PL5
shall be provided and made available for use at the site prior to the first
occupation of the dwelling hereby approved. The car parking spaces noted on the
approved plan as 1 and 2 and the associated vehicular access to and from the
public highway shall thereafter be permanently retained solely for the parking of
vehicles and the accessing of the car parking spaces in connection with the
occupiers of the dwelling hereby approved and their visitors. The remaining two
parking spaces to the south of the proposed dwelling shall be permanently
retained for public use.
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory off-street car parking is provided in the
interests of residential amenity and highways efficiency and safety, in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy
KP2, Development Management Document (2015) policy DM15 and the Southend
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
06 No drainage infrastructure associated with this development shall be
undertaken until details of the design implementation; maintenance and
management of a scheme for surface water drainage works (incorporating
Sustainable Urban Drainage (SuDs) Principles) have been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. The approved scheme shall be
44

implemented, in accordance with the approved details before the development is
occupied or brought into use and be maintained as such thereafter in perpetuity.
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and disposal of
surface water from the site for the lifetime of the development and to prevent
environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policy KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document
(2015)
07 Prior to occupation of the dwelling hereby approved, appropriate water efficient
design measures as set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the Development Management
Document to limit internal water consumption to not more than 105 litres per
person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external water consumption), to
include measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water recycling
systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting shall be implemented for the
development and thereafter retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2, Development Management Document
(2015) Policy DM2 and advice contained within the Southend Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
08 A scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources shall be submitted
to, agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in full in
accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the dwelling
hereby approved. This provision shall be made for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of resources and better use of sustainable and renewable resources
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) policy KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) policy
DM2 and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
09 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in a manner to ensure
the dwellinghouse complies with building regulation M4 (2) ‘accessible and
adaptable dwellings’ before it is occupied.
Reason: To ensure the residential unit hereby approved provides a high quality
and flexible internal layout to meet the changing needs of residents in accordance
with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2,
Development Management Document (2015) policy DM8 and the advice
contained in the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
10 With the exception of below ground investigation work and removal of the
previous structures on site including the hardstanding, no development shall take
place until and unless the following details have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the local Planning Authority:
i) Notwithstanding the conclusions of the Combined Phase I and Phase II Site
Investigation Report by agb Environmental reference P3220.1.0 dated 20
45

December 2018, due to the potential for gas migration and made ground at the
site as noted in Table 6.18 and Table 12.1 of this report, a detailed Site
Remediation Strategy to deal with land contamination and /or pollution of
controlled waters affecting the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the local planning authority.
ii) The site shall be remediated as necessary in accordance with the approved Site
Remediation Strategy before the construction of the development hereby
approved begins. A Validation Report for the Site Remediation Strategy shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority before
completion of the development or occupation of the dwelling hereby approved
(whichever comes first).
iii) If, during the development, land contamination not previously considered is
identified, then the Local Planning Authority shall be notified immediately and no
further works shall be carried out until a method statement detailing a scheme for
dealing with suspect contamination has been submitted to and agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority
The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved remediation measures
and shall be carried out in full before the building is occupied.
Reason: To ensure that any contamination on the site is identified and treated so
that it does not harm anyone who uses the site in the future, and to ensure that
the development does not cause pollution to Controlled Waters in accordance with
Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4 and Policies DM1 and DM14 of the
Development Management Document (2015).
11 Construction Hours for the development hereby approved shall be restricted to
8am – 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am - 1pm Saturday and not at all on Sundays or
Bank Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of neighbours and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
(c) In the event that the planning obligation or other means of securing the
financial contribution referred to in part (a) above has not been completed by 2nd
December 2020 or an extension of this time as may be agreed, the Interim
Director of Planning or Group Manager Planning & Building Control be authorised
to refuse planning permission for the application on the grounds that the
development would not provide adequate mitigation for the potential disturbance
to European designated site, contrary to National and Local planning policy.
INFORMATIVES
01 Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and it is the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have fully
complied with the requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with the
CIL regulations in full can result in a range of penalties. For full planning
permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be issued by the Council as soon as
46

practicable following this decision notice. For general consents, you are required
to submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5) before commencement;
and upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability Notice including
details of the chargeable amount and when this is payable.
If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence
development
it
is
imperative
that
you
contact
S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk to avoid financial penalties for
potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended). If the
chargeable development has already commenced, no exemption or relief can be
sought in relation to the charge and a CIL Demand Notice will be issued requiring
immediate payment. Further details on CIL matters can be found on the Planning
Portal:
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infra
structure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil).
02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
03 The applicant is encouraged to provide electric vehicle charging points at the
site in accordance with Policy DM15 which encourages their provision wherever
practical and feasible.
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
665

20/01698/FUL - 39 Chalkwell Esplanade, Westcliff-on-Sea (Chalkwell
Ward)
Proposal: Demolish dwellinghouse, erect detached three storey building to
form two self-contained flats and layout parking to rear, amenity areas and
landscaping (Amended Proposal)
Applicant: Barron Homes South East Ltd
Agent: Metson of Metson Architects Limited
Mrs Caldwell, a local resident, spoke as an objector to this application. Mr Dagg
(Barrister) responded on behalf of the applicants.
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years of the
date of this decision
47

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans 1830-X-00, 1830-X-01-B, 1830-X-02, 1830-X-03, 1830TP301-A, 1830-TP302-A
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
03 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works other than demolition and construction up
to ground floor slab level shall take place until product details of the materials to
be used on all the external elevations, including walls, roof, fascia and soffits,
windows and doors, balconies, boundary walls and fences, driveway including
parking area have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The development shall only be carried out in accordance with the
approved details before it is brought into use.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 The first floor and second floor windows in the east and west elevations of the
approved development shall only be glazed in obscure glass (the glass to be
obscure to at least Level 4 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy, or such equivalent
as may be agreed in writing with the local planning authority) and fixed shut up to
a height of not less than 1.7m above internal finished floor level before the
occupation of the dwellings hereby approved and shall be retained as such in
perpetuity. In the case of multiple or double-glazed units at least one layer of
glass in the relevant units shall be glazed in obscure glass to at least Level 4.
Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in proposed and
neighbouring residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1, and advice contained within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
05 Prior to the occupation of the approved development, details of the privacy
screens to be installed to the balconies hereby approved shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details before it is occupied and shall
be retained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in proposed and
neighbouring residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1, and advice contained within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

48

06 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved, no construction works other than demolition and construction up
to ground floor slab level shall take place until full details of both hard and soft
landscape works to be carried out at the site have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved hard
landscaping works shall be carried out prior to first occupation of the development
and the soft landscaping works within the first planting season following first
occupation of the development, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local
planning authority. The details submitted shall include, but not limited to:i. details of any means of enclosure for all boundaries of the site including any
gates, walls or boundary fencing;
ii. hard surfacing materials;
iii. details of the number, size and location of the trees, shrubs and plants to be
retained and planted together with a planting specification
iv. details of measures to enhance biodiversity within the site;
Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming
seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or
shrubs of such size and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning
Authority
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area and the amenities of
occupiers and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy
DM1 of the Development Management Document (2015) and Policy CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007)
07 No drainage infrastructure associated with this development shall be
undertaken until details of the design implementation; maintenance and
management of a scheme for surface water drainage works (incorporating
Sustainable Urban Drainage (SuDs) Principles) have been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority. The approved scheme shall be
implemented, in accordance with the approved details before the development is
occupied or brought into use and be maintained as such thereafter in perpetuity.
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and disposal of
surface water from the site for the lifetime of the development and to prevent
environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policy KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policy DM2 of the Development Management Document
(2015)
08 The four car parking spaces and the associated vehicular access for the
spaces to access the public highway, shown on approved plan 1830-TP-301-A
shall be provided and made available for use at the site prior to the first
occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. The car parking spaces and the
associated vehicular access to and from the public highway shall thereafter be
permanently retained for the parking of vehicles and the accessing of the car
parking spaces in connection with the dwellings hereby approved. The site shall
not be occupied until the redundant crossover has been reinstated as footway.
Reason: To ensure that satisfactory off-street car parking is provided in the
interests of residential amenity and highways efficiency and safety, in accordance
49

with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy
KP2, Development Management Document (2015) policy DM15 and the Southend
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
09 The development shall not be occupied until full details of the refuse and
recycling store and secure, covered cycle parking to serve the residential
development have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall be implemented prior to first occupation of
the development and made available for use and shall be permanently retained
thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that adequate refuse storage and cycle parking is provided
and retained to serve the development in accordance with Policies CP3 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM15 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
10 Prior to occupation of the dwellings hereby approved, appropriate water
efficient design measures as set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the Development
Management Document to limit internal water consumption to not more than 105
litres per person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external
water
consumption), to include measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting shall be
implemented for the development and thereafter retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2, Development Management Document
(2015) Policy DM2 and advice contained within the Southend Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
11 A scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources shall be submitted
to, agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in full in
accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the dwelling
hereby approved. This provision shall be made for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of resources and better use of sustainable and renewable resources
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) policy KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) policy
DM2 and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
12 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in a manner to ensure
the dwellings complies with building regulation M4 (2) ‘accessible and adaptable
dwellings’ before they are occupied.
Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provide a high quality
and flexible internal layout to meet the changing needs of residents in accordance
with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2,
Development Management Document (2015) policy DM8 and the advice
contained in the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

50

13 Construction Hours for the development hereby approved shall be restricted to
8am – 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am - 1pm Saturday and not at all on Sundays or
Bank Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of neighbours and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
14 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in full accordance with
the mitigation and resilience measures identified in Section 6 of the Flood Risk
Assessment by Evans reference 2237/RE/02-19/01 Revision A before the
dwellings are occupied.
Reason: To ensure the site is protected to the standard that the development is
designed and modelled to within the submitted Flood Risk Assessment National
Planning Policy Framework and policy KP2 of Core Strategy
01 Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and it is the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have fully
complied with the requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with the
CIL regulations in full can result in a range of penalties. For full planning
permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be issued by the Council as soon as
practicable following this decision notice. For general consents, you are required
to submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5) before commencement;
and upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability Notice including
details of the chargeable amount and when this is payable. If you have not
received a CIL Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence development it
is imperative that you contact S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk to avoid
financial penalties for potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended). If the chargeable development has already commenced, no exemption
or relief can be sought in relation to the charge and a CIL Demand Notice will be
issued requiring immediate payment. Further details on CIL matters can be found
on the Planning Portal :
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infra
structure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil).
02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
03 Please note that if you require a crane or piling rig to construct the proposed
development, this will need to be safeguarded separately and dependant on
location may be restricted in height and may also require full coordination with
the Airport Authority.
04 The applicant will be required to apply to highways to amend the vehicle
crossover. The maximum width of the vehicle crossover is 4.88m.
51

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
666

20/01654/FUL - Penthouse, 33 - 34 The Leas, Westcliff-on-Sea (Chalkwell
Ward)
Proposal: Install glazed lift shaft to side of existing building for access to
Dwelling (Amended Proposal)
Applicant: Mr M Bilkus
Agent: Mr Paul Seager of APS Design Associates Ltd
Mr Mangham, a local resident spoke as and objector to this application. The
applicant, Mr Bilkus, responded.
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than 3 years
beginning with the date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans: 3067 01, 3067 02, 3067 03, 3067 04 REV A, 3067 05 REV A,
3067 06 REV A.
Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.
03 No development above ground level shall take place on site until details of
noise and vibration mitigation measures to ensure that the development hereby
approved would be inaudible from and would not cause any harmful vibration to
any nearby habitable room, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The measures shall be fully implemented as approved
prior to the first use of the development hereby approved.
Reason: To mitigate the noise and vibration from the approved development in the
interest of the living conditions of future occupiers in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy
(2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
04 No construction above ground floor level shall take place on site until samples
and details of the materials to be used on the external surfaces of the
development, including roof, walls and fenestration have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
52

carried out in complete accordance with the approved details before it is brought
into first use and shall be retained as such for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and to avoid any detrimental overlooking
in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1 and DM3, and the advice contained within the National Design
Guide (2019) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
05 Construction works for the approved development on site shall only be
undertaken between 8 am to 6 pm on weekdays, between 8 am and 1 pm on
Saturdays and not at any time on Sundays and Public Holidays.
Reason: In the interest of the residential amenity of nearby occupiers in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2
and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as
originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments
to the proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning
Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal,
in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set
out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set
out in a report on the application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES:
1. You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace, and does not involve the
creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable.
See the Planning Portal for further details about CIL:
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infra
structure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil).
2 As part of Condition 4, details should be submitted to demonstrate that the
approved development would not cause materially harmful overlooking towards
neighbouring windows and gardens.
667

20/01362/FULH - 13 Fairleigh Drive, Leigh-on-Sea (Leigh Ward)
Proposal: Erect single storey side and rear extension
Applicant: Mrs Gemma Hemmings
Agent: Mr Luis Mulry of Edith Garland Architecture
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from
the date of the decision.
53

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02 The development shall be undertaken solely in accordance with the approved
plan: R02, R03, R04/C.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.
03 All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in
terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance.
This applies unless differences are shown on the drawings hereby approved or
are required by conditions to this permission.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core
Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document
(2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the advice contained within the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
04 The roof of the single storey extension hereby approved shall not be used as a
balcony, roof garden or similar amenity area or for any other purpose unless
express planning permission has previously been obtained. The roof can however
be used for the purposes of maintenance or to escape in an emergency.
Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy CP4, Development Management Document
(2015) Policy DM1, and the advice contained within the Design and Townscape
Guide (2009).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES
1. You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace, and does not involve the
creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.
2.You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
54

responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
668

20/01650/FULH - 24 The Crossways, Westcliff-on-Sea (Chalkwell Ward)
Proposal: Erect single storey rear extension (amended proposal)
Applicant: Mr N Mullin
Agent: RJB Architect
Ms Farrell, a local resident, spoke as an objector to the application. The applicant,
Mr Mullin, responded.
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from
the date of the decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02 The development shall be undertaken solely in accordance with the following
approved plans: 02, 03, 04, 05.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.
03 All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in
terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2
and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES
1. You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace, and does not involve the
creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a Minor

55

Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See the Planning Portal:
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/ policy_and_legislation/70/community_
Infrastructure _levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil) for further
details about CIL.
2. You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that the Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.

Chair:

56

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
Date: Monday, 14th December, 2020
Place: MS Teams
Present:

8

Councillor I Gilbert (Chair)
Councillors M Davidson, D Jarvis, C Mulroney, C Nevin and *T Harp
*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In Attendance:

A Griffin, S Putt, T Forster and S Martin.
Also in attendance: M Bearn (Hays)

Start/End Time:

9.30am/

669

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Woodley (substitute: Cllr
Harp) and Councillor Cox (no substitute).

670

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest at this meeting.

671

Exclusion of the Public
Resolved:That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the item of business set out below, on the grounds
that it would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

672

Appointment of Director of Commissioning (Interviews)
The Committee interviewed candidates for the post of Director of Commissioning.
Resolved:
1. That, subject to the provisions of the Local Authorities Standing Orders
(England) Regulations 2001 as incorporated in paragraph 5 of the Council’s
Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the post of Director of Commissioning be
offered to Benedict Leigh.
2. That the Chief Executive be authorised to offer the post outlined in 1 above to
the candidate upon confirmation by the Leader that neither he nor any Cabinet
Member has any objection to the making of such an offer.
Chair:

57

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee A
Date: Monday, 14th December, 2020
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams
Present:

Councillor B Ayling (Chair)
Councillors M Borton and A Dear

In Attendance:

A Brown, T Row and A Byrne

Start/End Time:

10.00 am - 10.40 am

673

9

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence.

674

Declarations of Interest
No interests were declared at the meeting.

675

18-20 Elm Road, Leigh-on-Sea, SS9 1SN - Application for the Grant of
Premises Licence
The sub-committee received a report of the Executive Director (Neighbouhoods
and Environment) concerning an application by Oliver Smith, trading as Hopsters
(Leigh-on-Sea) Ltd. for the grant of a Premises Licence at 18-20 Elm Road,
Leigh-on-Sea, SS9 1SN.
The application was presented by the applicant, Mr Smith. The applicant’s
business partner, Mr E Barnes, was also in attendance and gave evidence.
The sub-committee noted that no letters of objection to this application had been
received from any of the Responsible Authorities, however, measures had been
agreed between Essex Police, the Licensing Authority and the applicant, should
the application be granted. These were included in Appendix 2 to the report of
the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment).
One representation had however, been received from Leigh Town Council.
Councillor D Cracknell attended the meeting and gave evidence on behalf of
Leigh Town Council. The objections/representations related to concerns of noise
and public nuisance, particularly, the noise of patrons attending and leaving the
premises, the disturbance caused by customers using the external area, and the
protection of children from harm, given the close proximity of the premises to a
local school. Other issues that were questioned were the need for another
licensed premises in the area, the addition of another licensed premises in this
already saturated area would cause additional foot and vehicle traffic, as well as
an increase in noise and disturbance for surrounding residents.
The need for licensed premises is not a matter for the sub-committee to consider
and there is no “saturation policy” in place within the Borough.
59

The sub-committee noted that there were a number of other licensed premises in
closer proximity to the school with longer operating hours. The sub-committee
also heard that patrons would not be able to drink or smoke at the front of the
premises and there would be no drinks promotions displayed in the front window.
The premises would be a small, predominantly retail based business and would
be operated using the same business model as the companies two other
licensed premises, both of which had been operating without incident.
On the basis of the evidence presented to it and having regard to the Statutory
Guidance Notes and Southend-on-Sea Borough Council’s Statement of
Licensing Policy, the sub-committee did not consider that the promotion of the
licensing objectives would be undermined by the granting of the application,
subject to the imposition of appropriate conditions. The sub-committee therefore
Resolved:That the application be granted subject to the following:
(i) The Mandatory Conditions set out in Appendix 1 to the report of the Executive
Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment); and
(ii) The conditions drawn from the Operating Schedule, together with the
conditions agreed between the Essex Police, the Licensing Authority and the
Applicant as set out in Appendix 2 to the report of the Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment).

Chair:

60

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Appeals Committee A
Date: Wednesday, 16th December, 2020
Place: Virtual Meeting - MS Teams

10

Present:

Councillor M Stafford (Chair)
Councillors D Cowan (Vice-Chair), M Borton, D Garne, D Garston
and C Walker

In Attendance:

R Harris

Start/End Time:

9.30 - 11.20 am

676

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Ayling (no substitute).

677

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest at this meeting.

678

Exclusion of the Public
Resolved:That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the items of business set out below, on the
grounds that they would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information.

679

School Transport Appeal - Pupil SM
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Children and
Public Health), together with supporting correspondence from the parent of
pupils SM and MM, in connection with applications for home to school transport
assistance.
The appellant was in attendance and presented their case and reasons.
Resolved:
That the appeal be upheld and home to school transport assistance be granted
for pupils SM and MM.

680

School Transport Appeal - Pupil MM
This appeal was considered in conjunction with Minute 679 above.

61

681

School Transport Appeal - Pupil JLD
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Children and
Public Health), together with supporting correspondence from the parent of
pupil JLD, in connection with an application for home to school transport
assistance.
The appellant was in attendance and presented their case and reasons.
Resolved:
That there being no circumstances reported which would justify a departure
from the Council's policy, the appeal be dismissed.

682

School Transport Appeal - Pupil BS
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Children and
Public Health), together with supporting correspondence from the parent of
pupil BS, in connection with applications for home to school transport
assistance.
The parent was unable to attend to present their case and therefore the
Committee considered the submitted written evidence and information.
Resolved:
That the appeal be upheld and home to school transport assistance be granted
for pupil BS.
Chair:

62

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Appeals Committee B
Date: Monday, 21st December, 2020
Place: Virtual Meeting - MS Teams

11

Present:

Councillor C Nevin (Chair)
Councillors A Thompson, L Burton, F Evans and N Folkard.

In Attendance:

R Harris

Start/End Time:

9.30 - 11.10 am

683

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Stafford and Shead (no
substitutes).

684

Declarations of Interest
The following Councillor declared an interest as indicated:
(a) Councillor Burton – All minutes relating to the school transport appeals –
Non-pecuniary interest: The parent lives in his ward.

685

Exclusion of the Public
Resolved:That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the items of business set out below, on the
grounds that they would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information.

686

School Transport Appeal - Pupil LW
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Children and
Public Health), together with supporting correspondence from the parent of
pupils LW and OW , in connection with applications for home to school transport
assistance.
The appellant was in attendance and presented their case and reasons.
Resolved:
That the appeal be upheld and home to school transport assistance be granted
for pupils LW and OW.

63

687

School Transport Appeal - Pupil OW
This matter was considered in conjunction with Minute 686 above.

688

School Transport Appeal - Pupil AW
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Children and
Public Health), together with supporting correspondence from the parent of
pupils AW and MW, in connection with an application for home to school
transport assistance.
The appellant was in attendance and presented their case and reasons.
Resolved:
That there being no circumstances reported which would justify a departure
from the Council's policy, the appeals be dismissed.

689

School Transport Appeal - Pupil MW
This matter was considered in conjunction with Minute 688 above.

Chair:

64

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Cabinet Committee
Date: Tuesday, 5th January, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

12

Present:

Councillor R Woodley (Chair)
Councillors K Robinson (Vice-Chair) and M Terry

In Attendance:

Councillors S Aylen, K Buck, P Collins, D Cowan, T Cox, K Evans,
D Garston, D Jarvis, D McGlone, C Nevin and S Wakefield
S Moore, S Harrington, J Matthews, T Row and E Cook

Start/End Time:

6.30 pm - 8.10 pm

690

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence.

691

Declarations of Interest
The following interests were declared at the meeting:
(a) Councillor Buck – Agenda Item No. 4 (Notice of Motion – Kent Elms Junction)
– Non-pecuniary interest: proposed the notice of motion as part of the initial
consultation and has publicly voiced changed to the design of the junction;
(b) Councillor Buck – Agenda Item No. 5 (List of Top 50 Speeding Roads) – Nonpecuniary interest: Has publicly voiced the lack of action to date since the
consideration of the report last year;
(c) Councillor Collins – Agenda Item No. 8 (Wren Avenue – Petition) – Nonpecuniary interest: Gave advice to residents regarding the petition;
(d) Councillor Cowan – Agenda Item No. 4 (Notice of Motion – Kent Elms
Junction) – Non-pecuniary interest: Helped conduct various petitions in respect of
Kent Elms Junction;
(e) Councillor Cowan – Agenda Item No. 5 (List of Top 50 Speeding Roads) –
Non-pecuniary interest: Has been involved with residents in respect of various
roads listed;
(f) Councillor Nevin – Agenda Item No. 6 (Traffic Regulation Orders (Waiting
Restrictions – Miscellaneous Schemes) – Non-pecuniary interest: Aware of
request but has had no direct involvement.

65

692

Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 2nd November 2020
Resolved:That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 2nd November 2020 be received,
confirmed as a correct record and signed.

693

Notice of Motion - Kent Elms Junction
The Cabinet Committee considered the report of the Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment) in respect of the Notice of Motion that had
been submitted to the meeting of the Council held on the 27th February 2020
(Minute 838 refers). A copy of the motion was attached to the report at Appendix
1.
Having considered the views of the Traffic Regulations Working Party regarding
the lack of clarity of the data set out in the report, it was agreed that the matter be
deferred to the next meeting.
Resolved:
That consideration of the matter be deferred to the next meeting of the Traffic
Regulations Working Party and Cabinet Committee.
Reasons for Decision
As set out in the submitted report
Other Options
As set out in the submitted report
Note: This is an Executive function
Eligible for call-in to Place Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet Member: Councillor Woodley

694

List of Top 50 Speeding Roads
The Cabinet Committee considered the report of the Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment) in respect of the review around the issues of
speeding traffic within the Borough. The report also sought agreement on the way
forward for all existing speed reduction schemes and future requests to ensure
fairness and consistency on agreement and implementation. Whist noting the
views of the Traffic Regulations Working Party, it was
Resolved:
That the full review, as set out in the report, be approved as the preferred option
for the way forward and to enable the development of an action plan its efforts to
address the issue of speeding within the Borough.
Reasons for Decision
As set out in the submitted report

66

Other Options
None
Note: This is an Executive function
Eligible for call-in to Place Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet Member: Councillor Woodley
695

Traffic Regulation Orders (Junction Protection)
The Cabinet Committee received a report of the Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment) regarding the commencement of consultation
and implementation of the Traffic Regulation Orders in respect of various junction
protection schemes across the Borough. The list of proposed schemes was
attached at Appendix 1 to the submitted report.
Resolved:
That the list of no waiting at any time junction protection schemes as set out in
Appendix 1 to the submitted report be noted.
Reason for Decision
As set out in the submitted report.
Other Options
As set out in the submitted report.
Note: This is an Executive function
Eligible for call-in to Place Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet Member: Councillor Woodley

696

Traffic Regulation Orders (Waiting Restrictions - Miscellaneous
Schemes)
The Cabinet Committee received a report of the Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment) that sought approval of the commencement of
consultation and implementation of a Traffic Regulation Orders to introduce no
waiting restrictions in the sections of road set out in Appendix 1 to the submitted
report. Having considered the views of the Traffic Regulations Working Party, it
was
Resolved:That the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods & Environment) be authorised to
undertake the statutory consultation and prepare the requisite traffic regulation
order for the introduction of “no waiting at any time” restrictions in the sections of
road set out in Appendix 1 to the submitted report, subject to the correction of the
typographical errors included in the schedules, and, subject to there being no
objections following statutory advertisement to arrange for the order to be
confirmed and the proposals implemented. Any unresolved objections will be
submitted to the Traffic Regulations Working Party and Cabinet Committee for
consideration.

67

Reason for Decision
As set out in the submitted report
Other Options
As set out in the submitted report
Note: This is an Executive function
Eligible for call-in to Place Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet Member: Councillor Woodley
697

Wren Avenue - Petition
The Cabinet Committee received a report of the Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment) concerning the Petition submitted to the
meeting of the Council held on 29th October 2020 (Minute 460 refers) on behalf of
local residents. The petition, signed by 19 residents, called on the Council to lower
the speed limit and introduce a one-way system in Wren Road. Having
considered the views of the Traffic Regulations Working Party, it was
Resolved:That the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods & Environment) be authorised to
undertake the statutory consultation for the introduction of additional speed
cushion(s) or a speed table across the full width of the road (whichever is more
appropriate, in Wren Avenue in the vicinity of its junction with Anstey Close, Leigh
on Sea, the precise location of which to be identified following consultation with
Ward Councillors.
Reasons for Decision
In the interest of road safety and the reduction of speeding vehicles.
Other Options
As set out in the submitted report
Note: This in an Executive function
Eligible for call-in to the Place Scrutiny Committee
Cabinet Member: Councillor Woodley.

Chair:

68

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Development Control Committee
Date: Wednesday, 6th January, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

13

Present:

Councillor N Ward (Chair)
Councillors M Borton (Vice-Chair), L Burton*, B Ayling, J Beck,
A Chalk, D Cowan, A Dear, M Dent, F Evans, D Garston,
S Habermel, A Jones, C Mulroney, A Thompson, S Wakefield and
C Walker
(*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.)

In Attendance:

Councillor K Buck
G Gilbert, K Waters, C Galforg, P Keyes, C White, M Warren, T Row,
E Cook and A Smyth

Start/End Time:

5.00 pm - 7.10 pm

698

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Anne Jones (substitute:
Councillor Burton)

699

Declarations of Interest
The following interests were declared at the meeting:
(a) Councillors Ayling and Cowan – Minute Nos. 703 and 704 (Application Ref
Nos. 20/01467/FUL and 20/01518/AMDT – Scout Hall, 52 High Street, Leigh on
Sea) – Non-pecuniary interest: Member of the Licensing Sub Committee which
determined the application for premises licence at this property;
(b) Councillor D Garston – Minute No. 707 (Application Ref No. 19/01687/FUL –
Camelia Hotel, 176-178 Eastern Esplanade, Southend on Sea) – Non-pecuniary
interest: Regular customer at the restaurant;
(c) Councillor Mulroney – Minute Nos. 703 and 704 (Application Ref Nos.
20/01467/FUL and 20/01518/AMDT – Scout Hall, 52 High Street, Leigh on Sea) –
Non-pecuniary interest: Member of Leigh Town Council, non-participant in
planning and attended the meeting of the Licensing Sub Committee, which
determined the application for premises licence at this property, on behalf of
residents; and
(d) Councillor Ward – Minute No. 707 (Application Ref No. 19/01687/FUL –
Camelia Hotel, 176-178 Eastern Esplanade, Southend on Sea) – Pecuniary
interest: Lives close to the application site and is an owner of a Guest House
(withdrew).

69

700

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 4th November 2020
Resolved:That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 4th November 2020 be
received, confirmed as a correct record and signed.

701

Supplementary Report
The Committee received and noted a supplementary report by the Deputy Chief
Executive and Executive Director (Growth and Housing) that provided additional
information on the items referred to elsewhere on the Agenda. The report also
presented the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) rates which had been updated
as of 1st January 2021.

702

20/01612/OUT - 6 Crosby Road and 121-123 Crowstone Road, Westcliffon-Sea (Chalkwell Ward)
Proposal: Erect five 2.5 storey dwellinghouses, layout parking to front and
extend existing vehicular crossover onto Crowstone Road (Outline)
Applicant: C/o SKArchitects
Agent: Steven Kearney of SKArchitects
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 Details of the landscaping (hereinafter called the "reserved matters") shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any
development begins and the development shall be carried out as approved under the
reserved matters. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the
Local Planning Authority not later than 3 (three) years from the date of this permission.
The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 2 (two) years from the date
of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and because the application is for outline planning
permission only and the particulars submitted are insufficient for consideration of details
mentioned.
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the
following approved plans 617P101 Rev. A, 617P104 Rev. B, 617P105 Rev. A, 617P102,
617P103 Rev. A.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
03 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise hereby
approved, no construction works other than demolition and construction up to ground floor
slab level shall take place until full product details of the materials to be used on all the
external elevations, including walls, roof, windows and doors and rainwater goods have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall only be carried out and completed in accordance with the approved
details before it is brought into use.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019) Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and CP4,
70

Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice contained within the
Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009)
04 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise hereby
approved, no construction works other than demolition and construction up to ground floor
slab level shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works to be
carried out at the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The approved hard landscaping works shall be carried out prior to first
occupation of the development and the soft landscaping works within the first planting
season following first occupation of the development. The details submitted shall include,
but not limited to: (i) Proposed finished site levels or contours;
(ii) Means of enclosure, of the site including any gates or boundary fencing;
(iii) Hard surfacing materials;
(iv) Full details of the number, size and location of the trees, shrubs and plants to be
retained and planted together with a planting specification and tree management plan.
(v) Details of measures to enhance biodiversity within the site.
Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming seriously
diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or shrubs of such size
and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity of the area and the amenities of occupiers and
to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy DM1 of the
Development Management Document (2015) and Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy
(2007).
05 All flank windows above ground floor (with the exception of the flank windows on the
northern elevation of the detached dwelling proposed (plot B)) shall only be glazed in
obscure glass (the glass to be obscure to at least Level 4 on the Pilkington Levels of
Privacy, or equivalent) and be permanently fixed shut, except for any top hung fan light
which shall be a minimum of 1.7 metres above internal finished floor level of the room that
the window serves. In the case of multiple or double-glazed units at least one layer of
glass in the relevant units shall be glazed in obscure glass to at least Level 4. The
windows shall be retained in line with these details in perpetuity.
Reason: In the interest of the residential amenity of nearby occupiers in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
06 The use of the new dwellings hereby approved shall not commence unless and until
the two parking spaces per dwelling (10 in total) as shown on the approved plan 617P101
Rev. A have been provided and made available for use on site. The parking spaces shall
be retained in perpetuity for the purposes of car parking solely for residents of the
approved new dwellings on site and their visitors.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate parking in accordance with Policy CP3 of
the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM3, DM8 and DM15 of Development
Management Document (2015).
07 Notwithstanding the information submitted and details shown on the plans submitted
and otherwise hereby approved, no construction works other than demolition and
excavation works shall take place unless and until a drainage and surface water
management strategy incorporating principles for Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS)
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
drainage and surface water management strategy shall be implemented in full

71

accordance with the details approved under this condition before the development hereby
approved is first occupied or brought into first use.
Reason: To ensure the approved development does not increase flood risk elsewhere in
accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007)
Policies KP1, KP2 and KP3.
08 Construction works for the approved development on site shall only be undertaken
between 8am to 6pm on weekdays, between 8 am and 1 pm on Saturdays and not at any
time on Sundays and Public Holidays.
Reason: In the interest of the residential amenity of nearby occupiers in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
09 Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved details of energy efficiency
and other sustainability measures to be included in the scheme, including the provision of
at least 10% of the energy needs of the development hereby approved being provided
from onsite renewable sources, shall be submitted to, agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and implemented on site in accordance with the agreed details.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through efficient use
of resources and better use of sustainable and renewable resources in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM2, and the advice contained
within the National Design Guide (2019) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
10 The new dwellings hereby approved shall incorporate water efficient design measures
set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the Development Management Document to limit internal
water consumption to 105 litres per person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external
water consumption), including measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater harvesting before they are occupied.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through efficient use
of resources and better use of sustainable and renewable resources in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM2, and the advice contained
within the National Design Guide (2019) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
11
Notwithstanding the details submitted and otherwise hereby approved, the
development hereby approved shall be constructed to ensure that all new residential units
comply with building regulation M4(2) “accessible and adoptable dwellings” prior to their
first occupation.
Reason: To ensure the development hereby approved provides high quality and flexible
internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007),
Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development Management Document (2015) and the
advice contained within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
12 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, details shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority identifying the
provision of covered and secure cycle parking and refuse and recycling storage facilities.
The approved refuse and recycling and cycle parking facilities shall be provided in full and
made available for use prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved and
shall be retained as such in perpetuity.

72

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking and refuse stores in
accordance with Policies DM3, DM8 and DM15 of Development Management Document.
13 A. Site Characterisation No development other than site preparation works shall take
place until and unless an assessment of the nature and extent of contamination has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This assessment
must be undertaken by a competent person, and shall assess any contamination on the
site, whether or not it originates on the site. Moreover, it must include: (i) a survey of the
extent, scale and nature of contamination; (ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:
human health, property, existing or proposed, including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, ground waters and surface waters,
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments;
B. Submission of Remediation Scheme No development other than site preparations
works shall take place until and unless a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to
a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health,
buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must
include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation
criteria, an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s), and a
timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the
site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection
Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
C. Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme The remediation scheme shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved timetable of works. Within 3 months of the
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a validation
report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority.
D. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing within 7 days
to the Local Planning Authority and once the Local Planning Authority has identified the
part of the site affected by the unexpected contamination development must be halted on
that part of the site. An assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the
requirements of condition 1, and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme,
together with a timetable for its implementation, must be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the requirements of condition
2. The measures in the approved remediation scheme must then be implemented in
accordance with the approved timetable. Following completion of measures identified in
the approved remediation scheme a validation report must be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority in accordance with condition 3.
E1). Long Term Monitoring and Maintenance E1)No development shall take place until a
monitoring and maintenance scheme to include monitoring the long-term effectiveness of
the proposed remediation over a period of 5 years, and the provision of reports on the
same must both be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
E2) Following completion of the measures identified in that scheme and when the
remediation scheme is complete, reports that demonstrate the effectiveness of the
monitoring and maintenance carried out must be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that any contamination on the site is identified and treated so that it
does not harm anyone who uses the site in the future, and to ensure that the
development does not cause pollution to Controlled Waters in accordance with Core

73

Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and Policies DM1 and DM14 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
14 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise hereby
approved, no development above ground floor slab level shall be undertaken unless and
until a noise assessment that includes an assessment of railway noise and full details of
any necessary acoustic mitigation to be provided within the development, including all
glazing and ventilation have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local
planning authority. The development must be completed in accordance with the approved
details prior to the first occupation of the development and thereafter retained as such in
perpetuity.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of the future occupiers from noise
generated by the nearby railway in accordance with policy DM1 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007).
15 No development shall be undertaken unless and until full details of the tree protection
measures to be provided to any off-site trees that are adjacent to the site or which could
be affected by their proximity to the proposed development have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The development shall only be
undertaken in accordance with the approved tree protection measures.
Reason: This pre-commencement condition is required in the interests of the character
and appearance of the area and to ensure that the development complies with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy 92007) Policies KP2 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3 and the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
16 No development shall take place, until a Construction Method Statement has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The approved
Statement shall be fully adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement
shall provide, amongst other things, for:
(i) the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
(ii) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(iii) storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
(iv) the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including measures to ensure the
retention of trees to the rear of the site
(v) measures to control the emission of noise, dust and dirt during construction
(vi) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works that does
not allow for the burning of waste on site.
Reason: This pre-commencement condition is needed in the interests of visual amenity
and the amenities of neighbouring occupiers pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy
(2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
17 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended), or any Order or Act of Parliament revoking and
re-enacting that Order with or without modification, no development shall be carried out at
the development hereby approved specified within Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, B, E
and F of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 2015
without the receipt of express planning permission in writing from the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to regulate and control development in
the interest of the amenity of neighbouring properties and to safeguard the character of
the area in accordance the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy

74

(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1
and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this
application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as originally
submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments to the proposal to
address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning Authority has been able to grant
planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance with the resumption in
favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National Planning Policy
Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the application prepared by
officers
INFORMATIVES
01 Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a charge
under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as amended) and it is
the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have fully complied with the
requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with the CIL regulations in full can
result in a range of penalties. For full planning permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be
issued by the Council as soon as practicable following this decision notice. For general
consents, you are required to submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5)
before commencement; and upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability
Notice including details of the chargeable amount and when this is payable. If you have
not received a CIL Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence development it is
imperative that you contact:
S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk
to avoid financial penalties for potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations 2010
(as amended).
02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction works
to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to recover the cost
of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party responsible for damaging them.
This includes damage carried out when implementing a planning permission or other
works to buildings or land. Please take care when carrying out works on or near the public
highways and footpaths in the Borough.
03 The applicant is advised that they will be required to apply to highways to amend and
install the vehicle crossovers and that they may also be required to relocate any street
furniture such as lamp columns.
04 The applicant is encouraged to provide active and passive electric vehicle charging
points at the site in accordance with Policy DM15 which encourages their provision
wherever practical and feasible.
703

20/01467/FUL - Scout Hall, 52 High Street, Leigh-on-Sea (Leigh Ward)
Proposal: Erect single storey rear and side extension, lean to porch to west
elevation, install metal canopy to front with corrugated metal roof, metal
balustrading to front and side elevations and alter elevations
Applicant: Mr J Batson
Agent: Mr Colin Stone of Stone Me Ltd
Mrs Sporton, a local resident, spoke as an objector to the application. Mr Stone,
the applicant’s agent, responded.
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
75

01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years of the
date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with
the following approved plans 1920-02G, 1920-04D, 1920-05C 1920-07a
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
03 The materials for the development hereby approved shall only be black painted
metal framing and black painted corrugated metal sheeting (13/3 0.7 thick
galvanized corrugated roofing sheets by Cladco Roofing) for the canopies, stained
matt black timber featheredged weatherboarding for the walls, flat roof with matt
black painted timber fascia for the new extension, black painted acoya timber with
6mm laminated safety glass to British Standard BS6206 for the windows and
doors, black painted wrought iron for the terrace balustrade, black quarry tiles for
the terrace flooring, red stock brick slips, lead capping and traditional clay pots for
the flue chimney, no change to the existing roof covering or guttering, black
painted timber gates to waste storage area and cycle storage areas.
Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of the historic building and the
surrounding Leigh Old Town and Leigh Conservation Areas in accordance with
Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3, DM5
and DM6 of the Development Management Document (2015) and advise
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, the canopies,
windows and doors shall be installed in full accordance with the details set out on
plan references 1920-05C and 1920-07a. The terrace balustrading shall be black
painted 16mm bars with finial style F (W Farthing & Sons) and flat top posts as set
out in email from agent dated 9.12.20. The development shall only be
implemented in accordance with the approved details from first occupation for the
proposed use and be maintained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: A condition is needed to safeguard character and appearance of the
historic building and the surrounding Leigh Old Town Conservation Area in
accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies
DM1, DM3, DM5 and DM6 of the Development Management Document (2015)
and advise contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
05 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning Act (1990)
(as amended) and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended), or any Order or Act of Parliament
revoking and re-enacting that legislation with or without modification, no external
lighting or outside heaters shall be installed on the building or canopies other than
in accordance with details that have previously been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details before the development is occupied or

76

brought into use. No additional external lighting shall be installed on the building
or within the site without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities and character of the conservation
area, and to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers in accordance with
policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM5 of
the Development Management Document (2015).
06 The entire raised terrace area shall not be used by customers for the
consumption of food or drink or for smoking from 22:00 hours until the close of
business on all days. Additionally, all doors accessing the terrace shall be closed,
except temporarily for access and egress, from 22:00 to 09:00.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers in accordance
with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
07 The class A3 (restaurant) use shall not be open to customers outside the
following times: 09:00 until 24:00 hours on Monday to Sundays including Bank
Holidays from May through to and including September and 12:00 until 24:00
hours Mondays to Sundays including bank holidays from October through to and
including April. The ancillary takeaway element of this operation shall not be
available to customers outside the following times: 09:00 until 21:00 hours on
Monday to Sundays including Bank Holidays from May through to and including
September and 12:00 until 21:00 hours Mondays to Sundays including bank
holidays from October through to and including April.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of surrounding occupiers
and so the development accords with the planning permission and ancillary
takeaway element sought in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
08 Construction Hours for the development hereby permitted shall be restricted to
8am – 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am - 1pm Saturday and not at all on Sundays or
Bank Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of the amenities of neighbours pursuant to Policy CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM1 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
09 A privacy screen of not less than 1.7m high above terrace level shall be fitted
to the eastern end of the raised terrace area in accordance with details that have
previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority prior to first occupation of the development. The screen shall be retained
for the lifetime of the development in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in new and
neighbouring residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1, and advice contained within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

77

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as
originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments
to the proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning
Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal,
in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set
out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set
out in a report on the application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES
01 You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) to your property equates to
less than 100sqm of new floorspace the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.
02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
03 The applicant is advised that the conditions relating to the change of use to a
restaurant on planning permission 17/02280/FUL, or any amendment to this
application, still apply. This includes ensuring that the unauthorised galvanised
metal cowl and galvanised metal grille that have been installed on the rear
roofslope, which do not accord with the previously approved details, are removed.
Failure to do this within a timely manner is likely to result in enforcement action.
04 The ancillary takeaway element of the restaurant hereby approved and referred
to in condition 07 above must remain ancillary to the main restaurant use. Any
change to this arrangement may require planning permission from the Council.
05 The privacy screen required for the eastern end of the front terrace must be
sensitive to the character of the conservation area including design detailing and
materials.
704

20/01518/AMDT - Scout Hall, 52 High Street, Leigh-on-Sea (Leigh Ward)
Proposal: Application to vary conditions 02 (approved plans), 04 (details of
new doors, new dormer windows and terrace balustrading/railings) and 13
(operate as restaurant only) - amendments to fenestration and to provide
takeaway facilities - (Minor Material Amendment to Planning Permission
17/02280/FUL dated 25.01.2019
Applicant: Mr J Batson
Agent: Mr Colin Stone of Stone Me Ltd.
Mrs Sporton, a local resident, spoke as an objector to the application. Mr Stone,
the applicant’s agent responded.

78

Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 4th April 2021.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans 1920-06a, 1920-03c, 1920-05c
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
03 The materials for the development hereby approved shall only be matt black
stained timber featheredged weatherboarding for the walls and dormer cheeks,
black painted acoya timber with 6mm laminated safety glass to BS6206 for the
windows and doors, black painted wrought iron for the terrace balustrade, black
quarry tiles for the terrace flooring, red stock brick slips, lead capping and
traditional clay pots for the flue chimney, no change to the existing roof covering or
guttering, black painted timber gates to waste storage area and cycle storage
areas.
Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of the historic building and the
surrounding Leigh Old Town Conservation Area in accordance with Policies KP2
and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3, DM5 and DM6 of
the Development Management Document (2015) and advise contained within the
Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 Prior to the first occupation of the building for A3 purposes, the windows and
doors shall be installed in full accordance with the details set out on plan reference
1920-05C and the terrace balustrading shall be black painted 16mm bars with
finial style F (W Farthing & Sons) and flat top posts as previously submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority under the approval of details
application reference 18/01760/AD (condition 04) or alternative refuse and
recycling details that have previously been submitted to the local planning
authority and approved in writing under the terms of this condition. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details from
first occupation for the proposed use and be maintained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: A condition is needed to safeguard character and appearance of the
historic building and the surrounding Leigh Old Town Conservation Area in
accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies
DM1, DM3, DM5 and DM6 of the Development Management Document (2015)
and advise contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
05 Prior to the first occupation of the building for A3 purposes, the refuse and
recycling arrangements shall be implemented in full accordance with the details
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
under the approval of details application reference 18/01760/AD (condition 05) or
alternative refuse and recycling details that have previously been submitted to the
local planning authority and approved in writing under the terms of this condition.
79

The details submitted for approval under this condition shall in addition include a
waste management strategy for the depositing, collection and disposal of waste
generated in relation to the take away element of the approved use. The
development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details from
first occupation for the proposed use and be maintained as such in perpetuity..
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway safety
and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding conservation
area, in accordance with Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007)
and Policies DM1, DM5 and DM15 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
06 Prior to the first occupation of the building for A3 purposes the staff cycle
parking arrangements shall be implemented in full accordance with the details
previously submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority
under the approval of details application reference 18/01760/AD (condition 06) or
alternative staff cycling storage details that have previously been submitted to the
local planning authority and approved in writing under the terms of this condition.
The development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
from first occupation for the proposed use and be maintained as such in
perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking in accordance with
policies DM8 and DM15 of The Development Management Document (2015).
07 Prior to the first occupation of the building for A3 purposes the chimney
extraction flue shall be installed in full accordance with the details which have
been previously submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority under the approval of details application reference 18/01760/AD
(condition 07) or alternative chimney and extraction flue details that have
previously been submitted to the local planning authority and approved in writing
under the terms of this condition. The development shall only be implemented in
accordance with the approved details from first occupation for the proposed use
and be maintained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: A condition is needed in order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the
development surrounding occupiers and to protect the character and visual
amenities of the conservation area in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3, DM5 and DM6 of the
Development Management Document 2015.
08 Prior to the first occupation of the building for A3 purposes, extraction and
odour control equipment, and associated noise mitigation measures, shall be
installed in full accordance with the details which have been previously submitted
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority under the approval of
details application reference 18/01760/AD (condition 08) or alternative extraction
and odour control details and associated noise mitigation that have previously
been submitted to the local planning authority and approved in writing under the
terms of this condition. The installation of extraction equipment shall be carried out
in full accordance with the approved details and any noise and odour mitigation
measures undertaken in association with the agreed details before the use hereby
approved is commenced. With reference to BS4142 the noise rating level arising
80

from all plant and extraction/ventilation equipment shall be at least 5dbB(A) below
the prevailing background at 3.5 metres from the ground floor facades and 1m
from all other facades of the nearest noise sensitive property with no tonal or
impulsive character. The rating level of noise for all activities (including amplified
and unamplified music and human voices) shall be at least 10dB(A) below the
background noise to ensure inaudibility in noise sensitive premises.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the surrounding occupiers in
accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies
DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
09 The class A3 (restaurant) use shall not be open to customers outside the
following times: 09:00 until 24:00 hours on Monday to Sundays including Bank
Holidays from May through to and including September and 12:00 until 24:00
hours Mondays to Sundays including bank holidays from October through to and
including April. The ancillary takeaway element of this operation shall not be
available to customers outside the following times: 09:00 until 21:00 hours on
Monday to Sundays including Bank Holidays from May through to and including
September and 12:00 until 21:00 hours Mondays to Sundays including bank
holidays from October through to and including April.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of surrounding occupiers
and so the development accords with the planning permission and ancillary
takeaway element sought in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
10 The entire raised terrace area shall not be used by customers for the
consumption of food or drink or for smoking from 22:00 hours until the close of
business on all days. Additionally, all doors accessing the terrace shall be closed,
except temporarily for access and egress, from 22:00 to 09:00 on all days.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers in accordance
with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
11 No deliveries or refuse collection shall be taken at or despatched from the A3
use hereby permitted other than between the hours of 07:00 to 18:00hours
Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 to 13:00hours on Saturdays and not at any time on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the development
surrounding occupiers in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
12 Construction works associated with this permission shall not take place outside
08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays and 08:00 hours to 13:00 hours
on Saturdays and at no time Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities surrounding occupiers and to protect the
character the area in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy

81

(2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
13 No tables, chairs, other furniture or permanent or temporary means of
enclosure shall at any time be placed on the area at ground floor (public footway)
level to the front of the premises.
Reason: In order to protect amenity and for the safe and efficient use of the
adjacent public highway including the safe and convenient movement of
pedestrians in accordance with policies KP2 and CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007)
and Policies DM1 and DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
14 A privacy screen of not less than 1.7m high above terrace level shall be fitted
to the eastern end of the raised terrace area in accordance with details that have
previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority prior to first occupation of the development. The screen shall be retained
for the lifetime of the development in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in new and
neighbouring residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) policy DM1, and advice contained within the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES
01 You are advised that as the proposed development equates to less than 100
sqm of additional floorspace so the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See
www.southend.gov.uk/cil for further details about CIL.
02 The applicant is advised that the galvanised metal cowl and galvanised metal
grille that have been installed on the rear roofslope do not accord with the
previously approved details or the current application and are therefore
unauthorised. The cowl needs to be removed and the grille needs to be painted
black. Failure to do this within a timely manner is likely to result in enforcement
action.
03 The applicant is advised that according to this Department's record, asbestos
containing materials may be present within the structure of walls at 52 High Street,
Leigh-on-Sea, Essex. An asbestos survey at this address should therefore be
carried out by a suitably qualitied person before any structural work being carried
out at the premises. Any asbestos containing material (ACM) must be removed
and disposed off site to a facility licenced by the Environment Agency. A waste
82

transfer certificate should be made available for inspection by authorised officer
from this Authority on request.
04 The applicant is advised that compliance with this decision notice does not
bestow compliance with other regulatory frameworks. In particular your attention is
drawn to the statutory nuisance provisions within the Environmental Protection Act
1990 (as amended) and also to the relevant sections of the Control of Pollution
Act 1974. Contact 01702 215005 for more information.
05 The applicant is reminded that this permission does not bestow compliance
with the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2014 or any other
provision so enacted, such as those located within the Food Safety Act 1990.
Applicants should contact the Council's Environmental Health Officer for more
advice on 01702 215005 or at Regulatory Services Department, Southend-on-Sea
Borough Council, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend SS2 6ZG The applicant
is advised that any waste food collection must be undertaken by a licenced
operator
06 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
07 The ancillary takeaway element of the restaurant hereby approved and referred
to in condition 09 above must remain ancillary to the main restaurant use. Any
change to this arrangement may require planning permission from the Council.
08 The privacy screen required for the eastern end of the front terrace must be
sensitive to the character of the conservation area including design detailing and
materials.
705

20/01511/FUL - 266 Westborough Road, Westcliff-on-Sea (Westborough
Ward)
Proposal: Erect linked single storey rear extension
Applicant: Saunders
Agent: Mr Wilton Ndoro of Krystal Architecture Ltd
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from
the date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: 620-200/1, 620-201/3, 620-202/4, 620-204/3.

83

Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.
03 All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in
terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance.
This applies unless differences are shown on the drawings hereby approved or
are required by conditions to this permission.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core
Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document
(2015) Policy DM1, and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 The development hereby approved shall not at any time be adapted to enable
formation of more than six (6) bedrooms and shall not be occupied by more than
six (6) people at any one time.
Reason: To ensure the use hereby approved would offer acceptable living
conditions for its occupiers in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8.
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as
originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments
to the proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning
Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal,
in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set
out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set
out in a report on the application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES
1 You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace, and does not involve the
creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See the Planning Portal:
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infra
structure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil) for further
details about CIL.
2 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them.
This includes damage carried out when implementing a planning permission or
other works to buildings or land. Please take care when carrying out works on or
near the public highways and footpaths in the Borough.

84

706

20/01520/FUL - 266 Westborough Road, Westcliff-on-Sea (Westborough
Ward)
Proposal: Convert existing 6 Bed HMO (Class C4) and existing ancillary
building at the rear to a 7 Bed HMO (Sui Generis) and erect single storey
linked rear extension
Applicant: Mr Saunders
Agent: Mr Wilton Ndoro of Krystal Architecture Ltd
Mr Noblett, a local resident, submitted a written statement in objection to the
application which was read out at the meeting. A written response, that had been
submitted by the applicant’s agent, was also read out at the meeting.
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than three years from
the date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: 620-200/1, 620-201/3, 620-203/2, 620/204/3.
Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.
03 All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in
terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance.
This applies unless differences are shown on the drawings hereby approved or
are required by conditions to this permission.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core
Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document
(2015) Policy DM1, and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 Prior to the occupation of the development hereby granted, at least seven
secured and covered cycle parking spaces shall be provided on site in accordance
with the details shown on drawing no. 620-203/2 and shall be made available for
use for the benefit of the current and future occupiers of the approved
development and shall be retained in perpetuity for the lifetime of the
development.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2,
CP3 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3,
DM8 and DM15, and the advice contained within the National Design Guide
(2019) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

85

05 Prior to the occupation of the development hereby granted, secure bin storage
shall be provided on site in accordance with the details shown on drawing no.
620-203/2 and shall be made available for use for the benefit of the current and
future occupiers of the approved development and shall be retained in perpetuity
for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate bin storage and to ensure the
development does not result in material harm to the character and appearance of
the area and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019),
Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2, CP3, Development Management Document
(2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and, and the advice contained within the National
Design Guide (2019) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
06 The development hereby approved shall not at any time be adapted to enable
formation of more than seven (7) bedrooms and shall not be occupied by more
than seven (7) people at any one time.
Reason: To ensure the use hereby approved would offer acceptable living
conditions for its occupiers in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8.
07 The bedrooms within the building shall not at any time contain cooking
facilities.
Reason: To ensure the use hereby approved would offer acceptable living
conditions for its occupiers in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development
Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8.
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as
originally submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments
to the proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning
Authority has been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal,
in accordance with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set
out within the National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set
out in a report on the application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES
1 You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace, and does not involve the
creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See the Planning Portal
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infra
structure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil) for further
details about CIL.
2 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
86

responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
COUNCILLOR BORTON (VICE CHAIR) IN THE CHAIR
707

19/01687/FUL - Camelia Hotel, 176-178 Eastern Esplanade, Southendon-Sea (Thorpe Ward)
Proposal: Demolish existing garage block to rear, erect two storey building
with basement comprising of two additional hotel apartments, storage and
bike store, lay out parking spaces to rear
Applicant: C/o Agent
Agent: ABG Architecture
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01. The development hereby permitted shall be begun not later than 3 years
beginning with the date of this permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans:
101P01, 101P02, 101P03, 101P04, 101P05.
Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.
03. The development shall be carried out only using external materials as
identified on the approved plan 101P05, or otherwise in accordance with details to
have been previously submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity further to Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1, DM3 and DM6 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04. Prior to the first use of the hotel apartments hereby approved, 4 off-street car
parking spaces shall be provided at the site as shown on Drawing No. 101P05.
The approved parking spaces shall thereafter be retained in perpetuity only for
parking by the staff and customers of the hotel.
Reason: To ensure the adequate provision of parking at the site in accordance
with Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
05. The hard landscaping works identified on the approved plan 101P05 shall be
completed prior to first occupation of the development and the soft landscaping
works within the first planting season following first occupation of the
development. Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or
becoming seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with
87

trees or shrubs of such size and species as may be agreed with the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
landscaping and drainage is implemented pursuant to Policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1, DM3 and DM6 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
06. Prior to the first use of the hotel apartments hereby approved, the cycle and
refuse and recycling storage facilities shown on the submitted plans shall be
provided in full and made available for use, and shall be retained as such for the
lifetime of the development thereafter.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking and refuse storage in
accordance with Policies DM3, DM8 and DM15 of Development Management
Document.
07. The first floor west facing windows in the development hereby approved shall
only be glazed in obscure glass (the glass to be obscure to at least Level 4 on the
Pilkington Levels of Privacy, or such equivalent as may be agreed in writing with
the local planning authority) and fixed shut, except for any top hung fan light which
shall be a minimum of 1.7 metres above internal floor level before the
development is brought into first use and shall be retained as such in perpetuity
thereafter. In the case of multiple or double glazed units at least one layer of glass
in the relevant units shall be glazed in obscure glass to at least Level 4.
Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and to
ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
08. Hours of demolition and construction works associated with the development
hereby approved shall be 8am - 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am - 1pm Saturday only
and no works shall be carried out on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the adjoining residents and to
ensure that the development complies with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies KP2 and
CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
09. Notwithstanding the provisions of Class T of Part 3, Schedule 2 to the Town
and Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 2015 (or any
statutory amendment, modification or re-enactment or replacement thereof (as the
case may be) for the time being in force), the apartments hereby approved shall
be retained for hotel use only (use class C1) and shall remain ancillary to the hotel
at the application site in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure the consent accords with the permission sought and because
the flood refuge for the development is associated with the established hotel. This
is in the interests of flood risk mitigation for the safety of occupants further to the
National Planning Policy Framework and Policies KP1, KP2 and KP3 of the Core
Strategy (2007).
88

10. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out
and operated in accordance with the mitigation measures identified in the Flood
Risk Assessment (FRA) prepared by UK Flood Risk Consultants, referenced
QFRA 1563/814 v1.1 dated 27/01/2020. The mitigation measures shall be fully
implemented prior to first use of the development and the site shall be operated in
accordance with the approved measures thereafter. Additional refuge shall be
available at all times to occupiers, at the second floors of the established hotel
buildings.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future
occupants in accordance with National Planning Policy Framework and Policies
KP1, KP2 and KP3 of the Core Strategy (2007).
11. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, details of
boundary treatments shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance
with the agreed details before it is brought into use.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity further to the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and
DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
12. No drainage infrastructure associated with this consent shall be undertaken at
this site unless and until full details of the drainage infrastructure and a drainage
strategy have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The strategy submitted shall apply the sustainable drainage principles
and the sustainable drainage hierarchy. Where more sustainable methods of
drainage are discounted clear evidence and reasoning for this shall be included
within the strategy submitted. The approved drainage infrastructure and strategy
shall be implemented in full accordance with the approved scheme prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby approved and be retained as such
thereafter.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory drainage of the site in accordance with Policy KP2
of the Core Strategy (2007) and Development Management Document (2015)
Policy DM14.
13 No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The
approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The
Statement shall include but not be limited to details of :
i. the access by and parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors;
ii. access and locations for loading and unloading of plant and materials.
Reason: To minimise the impacts of the development during construction
including on access to and from the public car park, in the interests of the free flow
of traffic and parking availability, further to the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy
DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).

89

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES
01. Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended).
A Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Liability Notice will be issued as soon as
practicable following this decision notice. This contains details including the
chargeable amount, when this is payable and when and how exemption or relief
on the charge can be sought. You are advised that a CIL Commencement Notice
(CIL Form 6) must be received by the Council at least one day before
commencement of development. Receipt of this notice will be acknowledged by
the Council. Please ensure that you have received both a CIL Liability Notice and
acknowledgement of your CIL Commencement Notice before development is
commenced. Most claims for CIL relief or exemption must be sought from and
approved by the Council prior to commencement of the development. Charges
and surcharges may apply, and exemption or relief could be withdrawn if you fail
to meet statutory requirements relating to CIL. Further details on CIL matters can
be found on the Council's website at www.southend.gov.uk/cil.
02. You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the borough.
03. The applicant is reminded that this permission does not bestow compliance
with other regulatory frameworks. In particular, your attention is drawn to the
statutory nuisance provisions within the Environmental Protection Act 1990 (as
amended) and construction noise provisions within the Control of Pollution Act
1974. Applicants should contact the Council’s Environmental Health Officer for
more advice on 01702 215005 or at Regulatory Services, P.O. Box 5558,
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council, Civic Centre, Victoria Avenue, Southend-onSea, SS2 6ZQ.
04. Prior to demolition of the existing buildings an appropriate Asbestos survey of
the buildings shall be undertaken and a scheme implemented to remove and
safely dispose of any asbestos-containing materials.
05. It is recommended that the Councils building control department is notified of
the demolition in order that requirements can be made under the Building Act
1984.
06. The additional SuDS and drainage information that will need to be submitted
as part of condition 12 includes:
90

1. If permeable pavement or pervious surfaces are proposed, construction details,
ancillary drainage elements (if applicable) and consideration of deterioration of
groundwater quality and ground stability is required.
2. If partial or total infiltration measures are not proposed, the applicant should
provide evidence of ground investigations or records to justify the expected
ground conditions. It should be noted that source control options, like permeable
pavement, can be used in areas of low infiltration.
3. The applicant should provide a detailed drainage plan including positively
drained areas (permeable and impermeable), proposed SuDS (rainwater
harvesting, permeable pavement, etc) and drainage systems, points of
connection, discharge restrictions/flow controls and failure/exceedance overland
flow routes.
4. The applicant should provide information showing final discharge points and
rates where relevant up to 1 in 100 year storm (including climate change) and
evidenced with calculations and approval from the appropriate body where
necessary. The applicant should provide information on how the proposed
drainage design satisfies SuDS in terms of water quality, attenuation and
discharge quantity for the lifetime of the development.
5. The applicant should provide details of the body that will be responsible for the
maintenance of proposed SuDS/drainage throughout the lifetime of the
development. The applicant should also provide a management statement to
outline the required maintenance for the site and a maintenance schedule.
6. The applicant should provide a foul drainage strategy with detailed plans.
7. The proposals do not address other items in the Detailed Drainage Design
Checklist from Essex County Council. However, these may not be relevant due to
the size and nature of the development:
a. No information has been provided in relation to the management of Health and
Safety Risks arising from the proposals.
b. No information has been provided the long-term economic viability of the
proposals.
c. No information or method statement has been provided for the management of
surface water during the construction phase.
07. The applicant should ensure the control of nuisances during construction
works to preserve the amenity of the area and avoid nuisances to neighbours:
a. No waste materials should be burnt on the site, instead being removed by
licensed waste contractors;
b. No dust emissions should leave the boundary of the site
c. Consideration should be taken to restricting the duration of noisy activities and
in locating them away from the periphery of the site;
d. Hours of works: works should only be undertaken between 0730 hours and
1800 hours on weekdays; between 0800 hours and 1300 hours on Saturdays and
not at any time on Sundays and Public Holidays.
COUNCILLOR WARD IN THE CHAIR
91

708

20/01619/FUL - 6 Lavender Grove, Westcliff-on-Sea (Prittlewell Ward)
Proposal: Demolish existing bungalow, erect two residential buildings
comprising no7 self-contained flats with associated amenity space, parking,
bin and cycle store
Applicant: Mr David Bromage of Architectural Properties Dev Ltd
Agent: N/A
Resolved:That planning permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than 3 (three) years
from the date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans: 10A, 15, 16, 17 & 18.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with
provisions of the Development Plan.
03 Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved car parking
spaces shall be provided and made available for use in accordance with the
details shown on approved plan 5606 15 and shall be permanently retained as
such thereafter. The car parking spaces shall be kept available solely for the
parking of motor vehicles of occupiers of the dwellings hereby approved and their
visitors.
Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking is provided and retained to serve
the development in accordance with Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
04 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved the development hereby permitted shall not commence
other than for groundworks and site preparation works unless and until details
and appropriately sized samples of the materials to be used for all the
external surfaces of the proposed building at the site including for elevations,
brickwork, render, glazing, doors, windows and roofing materials have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in full accordance with
the details and samples approved under this condition before it is occupied.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of
the building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
area. This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1 and DM3, and the guidance contained within the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).

92

05 Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved full details of
refuse and secure bicycle storage facilities for the dwellings hereby approved shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Prior to
first occupation of the development, refuse and bicycle storage facilities shall be
provided at the site in accordance with the approved details and retained in
perpetuity thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity for future occupants, to ensure the
provision of adequate cycle parking and in the interests of visual amenity as set
out in the National Planning Policy Framework (2018), Core Strategy (2007)
policies KP2 and CP4 and Policies DM1, DM8 and DM15 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and the guidance within the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
06 Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved, full details of
both hard and soft landscape work to be carried out at the site must be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The hard landscaping
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to first
occupation of the development and the soft landscaping works within the first
planting season following first occupation of the development, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details submitted shall
include, but not limited to: i. means of enclosure, of the site including any gates or boundary fencing;
ii. car parking layouts;
iii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;
iv. hard surfacing materials;
v. details of the number, size and location of the trees, shrubs and plants to be
retained and planted together with a planting specification
vi. details of measures to enhance biodiversity within the site;
Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming
seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or
shrubs of such size and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning
Authority
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of occupiers and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
07 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved the development shall be carried out in a manner to ensure that
the dwellings labelled 1, 4, 5, 6 & 7 on plan number 5606 015 comply with the
building regulation M4 (2) ‘Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings’ standard before
they are occupied.
Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provides high quality
and flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in
accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015) policy DM8 and
the advice contained in the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

93

08 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved the development shall be carried out in a manner to ensure that
the dwellings labelled A2 & A3 on plan number 5606 015 comply with the building
regulation M4 (3) ‘Wheelchair User Dwellings’ standard before they are occupied.
Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provides high quality
and flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in
accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015) policy DM8 and
the advice contained in the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
09 A scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources must be submitted
to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in full
prior to the first occupation of the development. This provision shall be made for
the lifetime of the development.
Reason: In the interests of providing sustainable development in accordance with
Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy (2007).
10 Water efficient design measures as set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the
Development Management Document to limit internal water consumption to 105
litres per person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external water
consumption), including measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems shall be installed and made available for use prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby approved and retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through
efficient use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework,
Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015)
policy DM2 and the guidance within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
11 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing
by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding
including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
v. wheel washing facilities
vi. measures to control the emission of noise, dust and dirt during construction
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact and disturbance to existing
residents, during construction of the development in accordance with National
Planning Policy Framework, Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and CP4; and
Development Management Document (2015) policies DM1 & DM3
12 Notwithstanding the details shown in the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved none of the buildings hereby granted consent shall be occupied
94

unless and until plans and other appropriate details are submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing which specify all windows in the
proposed dwellings that are to be permanently glazed with obscured glass (to at
least Level 4 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy, or such equivalent) and fixed
shut or provided with only a fanlight opening and the manner and design in which
these windows are to be implemented. Before the buildings hereby approved are
occupied the development shall be implemented in full accordance with the details
and specifications approved under this condition and shall be permanently
retained as such thereafter.
Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of neighbouring
residential properties and the future occupiers of the proposed residential
dwellings, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Core
Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development Management Document (2015) policy
DM1 and advice contained in The Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
13 Demolition or construction works associated with this permission shall not
take place outside 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays and 08:00
hours to 13:00 hours on Saturdays and at no time Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers and to protect
the character the area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
INFORMATIVES
1. Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and it is the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have fully
complied with the requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with the
CIL regulations in full can result in a range of penalties. For full planning
permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be issued by the Council as soon as
practicable following this decision notice. For general consents, you are required
to submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5) before commencement;
and upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability Notice including
details of the chargeable amount and when this is payable. If you have not
received a CIL Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence development it
is imperative that you contact S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk to
avoid financial penalties for potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations
2010 (as amended). If the chargeable development has already commenced, no
exemption or relief can be sought in relation to the charge and a CIL Demand
Notice will be issued requiring immediate payment. Further details on CIL matters
can be found on the Planning Portal or the Council's website
(www.southend.gov.uk/cil).
95

2. You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please
take care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in
the Borough.
3. The applicant is encouraged to provide active and passive electric vehicle
charging points at the site in accordance with Policy DM15 which encourages their
provision wherever practical and feasible.

Chair:

96

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Appointments and Disciplinary Committee
Date: Tuesday, 12th January, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting - MS Teams
Present:

14

Councillor I Gilbert (Chair)
Councillors R Woodley (Vice-Chair), T Cox, M Davidson, D Jarvis,
C Mulroney and *M Borton
*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In Attendance:

A Griffin and S Putt
M Bearn (Hays)

Start/End Time:

1.30 - 5.45 pm

709

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Nevin (substitute: Cllr
Borton).

710

Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest at this meeting.

711

Exclusion of the Public
Resolved:That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the item of business set out below, on the
grounds that it would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the
information.

712

Appointment of Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment)
(Interviews)
The Committee interviewed candidates for the post of Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment).
Resolved:
1. That, subject to the provisions of the Local Authorities Standing Orders
(England) Regulations 2001 as incorporated in paragraph 5 of the Council’s
Officer Employment Procedure Rules, the post of Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment) be offered to Anna Eastgate.
2. That the Chief Executive be authorised to offer the post outlined in 1 above to
the candidate upon confirmation by the Leader that neither he nor any Cabinet
Member has any objection to the making of such an offer.
Chair:

97

This page is intentionally left blank

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Audit Committee
Date: Wednesday, 13th January, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

Present:

Councillor P Collins (Chair)
Councillors
L Burton
(Vice-Chair),
M Davidson,
S Habermel, M Kelly, I Shead and Mr K Pandya

15
N Folkard,

In Attendance:

J Chesterton, A Barnes, C Gamble, E Allen, R Gill, S Dutton, C
Fozzard and A Klienman (Deloitte).

Start/End Time:

6.30 - 7.37 pm

713

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ayling and Cox.

714

Declarations of Interest
The following interest was declared at the meeting:
Councillor Davidson – Agenda Item 7 (Counter Fraud & Investigation Team Quarterly
Performance Report) – Non-Pecuniary Interest: Non-executive Director of South Essex
Homes.

715

Minutes of the Meeting held on 21st October 2020

Resolved:That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday, 21st October 2020 be
confirmed as a correct record and signed.
716

Deloitte: Annual Audit Letter 2019/20
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)
presenting the External Auditor’s Annual Audit Letter for 2019/20. In addressing the
Committee, the External Auditor provided an update on matters in connection with the
letter.
The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to by officers.
Resolved:That the Annual Audit Letter for 2019/20, be approved.

99

717

Treasury Management Policy for 2021/22
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)
outlining the treasury management policy for 2021/22 comprising the following
documents:
-

Treasury Management Policy Statement for 2021/22;
Treasury Management Strategy for 2021/22;
Annual Treasury Management Investment Strategy for 2021/22.

The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to by officers
Resolved: That the Treasury Management Policy for 2021/22, be endorsed.
718

Internal Audit Service Quarterly Performance Report
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)
providing an update on the progress made in delivering the Internal Audit Strategy for
2020/21. In noting that Appendix 2A (Audit Assurance and Themes) to the officer report
had not been included in the committee papers, the Chair asked that it be circulated to
all members of the Committee to afford them the opportunity to raise any questions
(with the Head of Internal Audit) on the document after the meeting.
The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to by officers.
Resolved: That the progress made in delivering the 2020/21 Internal Audit Strategy, be noted.

719

Counter Fraud & Investigation Team Quarterly Performance Report
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)
on the progress made in delivering the Counter Fraud Strategy and Work Programme
for 2020/21.
The Committee asked a number of questions which were responded to by officers.
In noting the successful outcomes of the fraud investigations, the Chair suggested that
it would also be helpful for future reports to highlight the activities undertaken by the
Team to prevent fraud.
Resolved: That the performance of the Counter Fraud and Investigation Team over the past three
months, be noted.

720

Risk Management Update
The Committee considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources)
providing an update on the delivery of the risk management policy statement and
strategy.
Resolved: That the delivery of implementing the risk management policy statement and strategy,
be noted.
100

721

CIPFA Audit Committee Update

The committee received and noted the following information item:


CIPFA Audit Committee Update – Helping Audit Committees to be
Effective.

Chair:

101

This page is intentionally left blank

102

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Cabinet
Date: Thursday, 14th January, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

16

Present:

Councillor I Gilbert (Chair)
Councillors R Woodley (Vice-Chair), T Harp, A Jones, C Mulroney,
K Robinson and M Terry

In Attendance:

Councillors K Buck, K Evans and L Salter
T Forster, M Marks, A Griffin, J Williams, A Lewis, J Ruffle,
C Gamble, A Barnes, E Cook, G Halksworth, A Keating, S Moore,
J Chesterton, S Dolling, E Georgeou, S Harrington, P Jenkinson,
B Martin, J O'Loughlin and C Robinson

Start/End Time:

2.00 pm - 5.02 pm

722

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence at this meeting.

723

Declarations of Interest
(a) Councillor Gilbert – Agenda Item 11 (In-depth Scrutiny Report) – Nonpecuniary interest: Council appointee to the SAVS Board; and Agenda Item 9
(Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) –
Non-pecuniary interest: member of the GMB union;
(b) Councillor Harp – Agenda Item 8 (HRA Budget 2021/22 and Rent Setting) –
Non-pecuniary interest: Some family members are tenants/residents of South
Essex Homes; Agenda Item 11 (In-depth Scrutiny Report) – Non-pecuniary
interest: Volunteer with SAVS and wife is an employee of SAVS;
(c) Councillor Jones – Agenda Item 16 (Highway Enforcement Policy) – Nonpecuniary interest: husband works in the motor industry and Agenda Item 23
(School Admission Arrangements) and Agenda Item 24 (School Term Dates) –
Non-pecuniary interest: has a child attending school in the Borough;
(d) Councillor Salter – Agenda Item 11 (In-depth Scrutiny Report) – Nonpecuniary interest: Husband is consultant surgeon at Southend Hospital;
daughter is a consultant at Basildon Hospital; son-in-law is GP in the Borough;
(e) Councillor Buck – Agenda Item 23 (School Admission Arrangements) and
Agenda Item 24 (School Term Dates) – Non-pecuniary interest: children at a
school in the Borough and is a Governor of Eastwood Academy;
(f) Councillor Mulroney – Agenda Item 7 ( Council Tax Base) and Agenda Item
9 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better Outcomes - 2021/22 to
2025/26) – Non-pecuniary interest: Member of Leigh Town Council;

103

(g) Councillor K. Evans - Item 7 ( Council Tax Base) and Agenda Item 9 (Draft
Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) – Nonpecuniary interest: Member of Leigh Town Council;
Officer Interests:
All Senior Management Team – Agenda Item 29 (Minutes of the Senior
Managers’ Pay Panel held 18th November 2020).
724

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 3rd November
Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 3rd November 2020, be
confirmed and signed as a correct record.

725

Minutes of the Meeting held on Tuesday 24th November
Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 24th November 2020, be
confirmed and signed as a correct record.

726

Minutes of the Meeting held on Wednesday 2nd December
Resolved:
That the Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday 2nd December 2020, be
confirmed and signed as a correct record.

727

Corporate Budget Performance - Period 8
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and
Resources) reviewing the Council’s financial performance.
Recommended:
That, in respect of the 2020/21 Revenue Budget Performance as set out in
appendix 1 to the submitted report:
1. That the forecast outturn for the General Fund and the Housing Revenue
Account as at November 2020, be noted.
That, in respect of the 2020/21 Capital Budget Performance as set out in appendix
2 of this report:
2. That the expenditure to date and the forecast outturn as at November 2020 and
its financing, be noted.
3. That the requested changes to the capital investment programme for 2020/21
and future years, as set out in section 3 of appendix 2, be approved.

104

Reasons for Decision
The regular reporting of Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring information
provides detailed financial information to Councillors, senior officers and other
interested parties on the financial performance of the Council. It also informs
decision making to ensure that the Council’s priorities are delivered within the
approved budget provision.
Other Options
The Council could choose to monitor its budgetary performance against an
alternative timeframe but it is considered that the current reporting schedule
provides the appropriate balance to allow strategic oversight of the budget by
Councillors and to also formally manage the Council’s exposure to financial risk.
Note: This is Council Function
Cabinet Members: Cllrs Gilbert and Woodley
728

Council Tax Base and Non Domestic Rating Base 2021/22
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and
Resources) concerning the calculation of the Council Tax Base for 2021/22 and
the submission of the National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR1) form to the Ministry
of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) by 31st January 2021.
Resolved:
In respect of the Council Tax Base;
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base)
Regulations 1992 (as amended by the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council
Tax Base) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2003) and Local Government
Finance Act 2012 (Calculation of billing authority’s council tax base Section
15):
1. From 1st April 2021 the premium for properties (empty for 10 years or more)
will be increased to 300%.
2. The amount calculated by Southend-on-Sea Borough Council as its Council
Tax Base for the year 2021/22 shall be 58,630.49.
3. The amount calculated by Southend-on-Sea Borough Council as the Council
Tax Base in respect of Leigh-on-Sea Town Council for the year 2021/22 shall be
8,762.69.
In respect of the National Non-Domestic Rates Base (NNDR1 Form);
4. That the NNDR1 form for 2021/22 at Appendix C to the submitted report be
approved for submission to MHCLG.
Reason for Decision

105

The setting of the Council Tax Base and National Domestic Rating Base enables
the calculation of the core funding derived through local taxation that is used to
finance the Council’s proposed budget for 2021/22.
Other Options
None
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert
729

Draft Housing Revenue Account Budget 2021/22 and Rent Setting
The Cabinet considered a joint report of Executive Director (Finance and
Resources) and Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director (Housing &
Growth) setting out the Housing Revenue (HRA) budget for 2021/22, together with
the information necessary to set a balanced budget as required by legislation.
Resolved:1. That an average rent increase of 1.50% on all tenancies, be endorsed.
2. An average rent increase of 1.50% on shared ownership properties, be
endorsed.
3. That an increase of 1.50% for garage rents to £12.20 per week for tenants and
£14.64 for non-tenants (being £12.20 plus VAT), a rise consistent with the proposal
for the main rent increase (all variants on a standard garage will receive a
proportionate increase), be endorsed.
4. That the proposed rent charges in 1-3 above be effective from 5th April 2021.
5. That the South Essex Homes core management fee at £6,336,000 for 2021/22,
be endorsed.
6. That South Essex Homes proposals for average increases of 2.52% in service
charges and 10.39% in heating charges to reflect the actual costs incurred be
endorsed.
7. That the following appropriations be endorsed:




£60,000 to the Repairs Contract Pensions Reserve;
£5,073,000 to the Capital Investment Reserve; and
£7,644,000 from the Capital Investment Reserve

8. That, subject to resolutions 1 to 7 above, the HRA budget for 2021/22, as set out
in Appendix 1 to the submitted report, be approved.
9. That the value of the Council’s capital allowance for 2021/22 be declared as
£68,672,000, as determined in accordance with regulation 16 of the Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations.

106

Reasons for Decision
Part of the process of maintaining a balanced budget for the HRA is to undertake
an annual rent review and assessment of other service and facilities charges. Full
Council will need to approve the HRA budget and any changes to rent and other
services prior to the start of the financial year.
Other Options
There are other options available to councillors in relation to the proposed rent
and other services and facilities increases.
Note: This is an Executive Function save that approval of the final budget
following Cabinet on 16th February 2021 is a Council Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert
*Referred direct to Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee
730

Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better Outcomes - 2021/22 to
2025/26
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and
Resources) presenting the draft General Fund Revenue Budget for 2021/22.
On consideration of the report The Cabinet endorsed an addition of Seafront
Illuminations to the subject to viable business case section of the proposed Capital
Investment Programme.
Resolved:
1. That it be noted that a Medium Term Financial Strategy for 2021/22 – 2025/26
will be available for consideration in February 2021 and the draft Medium Term
Financial Forecast and estimated Earmarked Reserves Balances up to 2025/26
(Annexes 1 and 2 to Appendix 1 to the submitted report), be endorsed.
2. That the draft Section 151 Officer’s statement on the robustness of the proposed
budget, the adequacy of the Council’s reserves and the Council’s Reserves
Strategy (Appendix 2 to the report), be noted.
3. That the appropriation of the sums to earmarked reserves totalling £3.625M
(Appendix 3 to the report), be endorsed.
4. That the appropriation of the sums from earmarked reserves totalling £6.218M,
which includes £2.500M to cover the remaining estimated budget gap for 2021/22.
(Appendix 3 to the report), be endorsed.
5. That a General Fund Budget Requirement for 2021/22 of £133.423M and
Council Tax Requirement of £87.712M (Appendix 4a) and any required
commencement of consultation, statutory or otherwise, be endorsed.
6. That it be noted that the 2021/22 revenue budget has been prepared on the
basis of using £1.5 million from accumulated Collection Fund surpluses for the core
budget to allow for a smoothing of the budget gap across the next four financial
years.
107

7. That a Council Tax increase of 3.99% for the Southend-on-Sea element of the
Council Tax for 2021/22, being 1.99% for general use and 2.0% for Adult Social
Care (Paragraph 10.16), be endorsed.
8. That it be noted that the position of the Council’s preceptors is to be determined:




Essex Police – no indication of Council Tax position
Essex Fire & Rescue Services – no indication of Council Tax position
Leigh-on-Sea Town Council – proposed precept increase of 3.02%;

9. That no Special Expenses be charged other than the Leigh-on-Sea Town
Council precept for 2021/22, be endorsed.
10. That the proposed General Fund revenue budget investment of £8.122M
(Appendix 5 to the report), be endorsed.
11. That the proposed General Fund revenue budget savings and income
generation initiatives for 2021/22 of £4.155M (Appendix 6 to the report), be
endorsed.
12. That the proposed future outline Budget Transformation Programme 2022/23 –
2025/26 (Appendix 7 to the report), be endorsed.
13. That the proposed range of fees and charges for 2021/22 (Appendix 8 to the
report), be endorsed.
14. That the Dedicated Schools Grant budget and its relevant distribution as
recommended by the Education Board (Appendix 9 to the report), be endorsed.
15. That the Capital Investment Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (Appendix 10 to
the report) and the Capital Investment Policy (Annex 1 to Appendix 10 to the
report), be endorsed.
16. That the new schemes and additions to the Capital Investment Programme for
the period 2021/22 to 2025/26 totalling £21M for the General Fund and new
schemes subject to viable business cases (Appendix 11 to the report), be
endorsed.
17. That the proposed changes to the current Capital Investment Programme that
were considered for approval as part of the Resourcing Better Outcomes –
Financial Performance Report – Period 8 (Appendix 12 to the report), be noted.
18. That the proposed Capital Investment Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 of
£168.6M for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (Appendix 13 to the report) of which £25.6M is
supported by external funding, be endorsed.
19. That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy for 2021/22 (Appendix 14
to the report) and the prudential indicators (Appendix 15 to the report), be
endorsed.
20. That the operational boundary and authorised limits for borrowing for 2021/22
are set at £375M and £385M respectively (Appendix 15 to the report), be endorsed.

108

Reason for Decision
To comply with statutory requirements and the relevant Local Authority codes of
practice. Also, to ensure the budgets align to and enable the delivery of the
Council’s ambition and desired outcomes or to enhance the Council’s
infrastructure.
Other Options
Billing authorities are required by law to complete and approve their budget and
set a council tax before 11 March immediately prior to the start of the financial
year on 1 April.
Note: This is an Executive Function save that approval of the final budget
following Cabinet on 16th February 2020 is a Council Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert
*Referred direct to all three scrutiny committees
731

Corporate Risk Register
The Cabinet considered a report of the Chief Executive presenting the updated
summary Corporate Risk Register.
Resolved:That the updated summary Corporate Risk Register and the position at December
2020 outlined in Appendix 1 to the submitted report, be noted.
Reason for Decision
To ensure compliance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.
Other Options
None
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Woodley

732

In-Depth Scrutiny Report - Reablement Services
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Legal and Democratic
Services) presenting the final report of the scrutiny project – ‘The appropriate use
of reablement for older people (65 and over) when discharged from hospital, to
maximise the number of people at home after a period of 91 days.’
Resolved:
That the submitted report and recommendations arising from the in-depth scrutiny
project, detailed at paragraph 4 of the report, be approved.

109

Other Options
To note the report but not progress any of the recommendations.
Reasons for Recommendations
To respond to the recommendations arising from the in-depth scrutiny project.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Harp
733

Better use of Children's Centres
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Children and Public
Health) presenting a range of options with respect to Children’s Centres to
enhance the offer for young children and their families.
Resolved:
1. That the findings from the discovery and define stages of service design to
date, be noted.
2. That the options for a future delivery model for Southend’s Children Centre offer
as set out in paragraph 4.5 of the submitted report, be noted and that option 3, for
the reasons set out in paragraph 4.6 of the report, be approved.
Other options:
As set out in the submitted report
Reasons for recommendations:
To improve outcomes for children and maximise Children’s Centre use.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Jones

734

Empty Homes Strategy
The Cabinet considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and Executive
Director (Growth and Housing) presenting the empty homes strategy 2021-2026
together with an analysis of the consultation findings.
Resolved:1. That the draft Empty Homes Strategy 2021-2026, be approved for
implementation.
2. That the incentives to reduce the amount of the empty homes contained within
the strategy be approved and the associated capital budget be noted.

110

Reason for Decision:
The previous Empty Homes Strategy has now come to the end of its lifecycle and
given that bringing empty homes back into use continues to be a priority for the
Council, a renewed strategy is required to govern the Council’s approach to
undertaking this work.
Other Options:
None
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert
735

Controlled Parking Zone Policy
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment) proposing a new policy in respect of Controlled Parking Zones.
Resolved:1. That the new policy for Controlled Parking Zones appended to the submitted
report, be adopted.
2. That it be noted that the new criteria will not automatically be applied to existing
Controlled Parking Zones, until such time as they are subject to a full,
comprehensive review.
3. That it be noted that the financial implications of Controlled Parking Zones will
vary depending on wider Council decisions on fees and charges, which will be
considered on a case by case basis.
Reason for Decision:
This policy will enable the Council to respond effectively and efficiently to
challenges associated with competing demands for parking capacity. It is
anticipated that a robust policy will help the Council, elected representatives and
all road users understand the criteria which must be met for a scheme to be taken
forward.
Other Options:
This policy is a non-statutory document; however, its application is regulated by
legislation and regulations. The Council could decide to vary some of the criteria
set out in this policy. However, further legal consideration would be required to
understand the impact.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Woodley
*Called-in to Place Scrutiny Committee

111

736

Domestic Vehicle Crossing Policy
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment) concerning the adoption of a new Domestic Vehicle Crossing Policy.
Resolved:1. That the new policy for Domestic Vehicle Crossings appended to the submitted
report, be adopted.
2. That it be noted that new enforcement activity will begin once the
establishment of the new Highway Enforcement Team is completed.
3. That it be noted that this policy will be utilised by the Traffic Regulations
Working Party in its considerations of appeals to rejected applications, as set out
in the Council’s Constitution.
Reason for Decision:
This policy will ensure the Council acts properly in its consideration of
applications, and provide a clear, robust set of criteria for potential applicants to
consider before submitting an application which will likely require early investment
in design and consents.
Other Options:
To decide on an alternative approach, or to do nothing.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Woodley
*Called-in to Place Scrutiny Committee

737

Highway Enforcement Policy
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment) setting out new Highway Enforcement Policies for adoption.
Resolved:That the new highway enforcement policies appended to the submitted report, be
adopted.
Reason for decision:
The decisions will help the Council to deliver its obligations in respect of managing
a safe and efficient road network, and ensure any enforcement action is
proportionate and transparent.
Other Options:
To vary any elements within the policies.

112

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Woodley
738

Highway Memorials Policy
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment) on a new policy for the management of temporary roadside
memorials, and permanent infrastructure on the highway.
Resolved:That the new policy for Highway Memorials appended to the submitted report, be
adopted.
Reason for Decision:
This policy will ensure the Council is able to sensitively support those affected by
the death of a loved one and ensure their wishes can be facilitated whilst still
delivering on statutory duties and powers in respect of the road network.
Other Options:
The Council could decide on an alternative approach, or to prohibit any temporary
roadside memorials or permanent tributes.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Woodley

739

Updated Council Tree Policy
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment) presenting the revised tree policy together with the results of the
associated public consultation.
Resolved:1. That the Tree Policy set out at Appendix 1 to the submitted report, be adopted.
2. That the development of a planting strategy that will consider the availability of
land, its usage, and tree planting opportunities, be approved.
3. That it be noted that the adoption of the Tree Policy will require ongoing funding
to manage the Council's tree stock, which will need to be considered as part of
future budget setting.
Reason for Decision:
To help maintain the safety of our citizens and visitors and to support the increase
in the Borough's canopy cover. Also, to support the 2050 vision which includes
several outcomes in which trees play a part and the management of trees
contributes to the response to the climate change emergency.

113

Other Options:
1. Continue managing council trees as per the interim management statement and
not adopt a new Tree Policy.
2. Stop managing the Council's tree stock and accept that the trees will decline
and the risk to citizens and visitors will increase, resulting in a rise in claims
against the Council.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Mulroney
*Called-in to Place Scrutiny Committee
740

Corporate Enforcement Policy
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment) setting out for consideration an Environment & Regulatory
Enforcement Policy.
Resolved:1. That the progress with the enforcement review, be noted.
2. That the Environment & Regulatory Enforcement Policy at Appendix 1 to the
submitted report, be approved.
Reason for Decision:
The Environment & Regulatory Enforcement Policy provides an overarching
enforcement policy, identifying the universally shared principles that all
enforcement services will adhere to whilst also making clear the unified objective
of enforcement across the Borough.
Other Options:
To continue with individual enforcement policies in each service area. However,
this can lead to an inconsistent approach to enforcement.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet member: Cllr Terry
*Called in to Place Scrutiny Committee

741

Green City Action Plan
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment) presenting the Green City Action Plan together with an update on
the activities and projects currently being undertaken in respect of Climate
Change and how Southend -on-Sea becomes a ‘Green City’ and moves towards
achieving Net -Zero emissions by 2030.

114

Resolved:1. That the work being undertaken to tackle Climate Change and that is being
used to affect this Green City Action Plan, be noted.
2. That the Green City Action Plan, be endorsed.
3. That the Government continues to be lobbied via the Local Government
Association (LGA) with other Local Authorities to ensure that funds and resources
are made available to increase the work towards carbon neutral status.
4. That support to Adapting to Climate Change be continued to deal with the
impacts of embedded emissions required to take equal priority with Climate
Change Mitigation such as achieving Net Zero emissions.
Reason for Decision:
1. Major reductions in emissions are required across the world to mitigate climate
change and hold global warming to less than 20C, preferably 1.50C.
2. To lead by example and reduce emissions across our own estate, provide
opportunity for lowering energy bills, drive economic regeneration and new jobs,
improve health and opportunities to tackle social inequalities, increase resilience
to climate change and generally improve wellbeing.
3. To introduce circular economy principles into the Council’s decision-making
framework and encourage greater collaboration.
Other Options:
None.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Mulroney
742

Public Health Burials
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and
Environment) proposing the adoption of the Public Health Act Funerals Policy.
Resolved:1. That the Public Health Act Funeral Policy (November 2020), be adopted.
2. That Regulatory Services review the policy on an annual basis and presents any
proposed changes to the policy to Cabinet for adoption.
Reason for Decision:
The arrangements for public health burials/cremations are a statutory responsibility.

115

Other Options:
As set out in the submitted report
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Terry
743

Journey of the Child
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Children and Public
Health) on the work of the Fostering and Adoption services.
Resolved:That the report, be noted.
Reason for Decision:
The requirement for the Local Authority Executive to review the annual reports of
the Fostering and Adoption Service is contained within statutory regulations.
Other Options:
None.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Jones

744

Determined School Admission Arrangements
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Children & Public
Health) concerning the school admission arrangements for community schools in
the Borough.
Resolved:1. That the Cabinet determines (i.e formally agrees) the oversubscription criteria
(including explanatory notes) and Published Admission Number (PAN) within
Admission Arrangements for Community Schools as set out in Appendix 1 to the
submitted report.
2. That it be noted that the Determined Coordinated Admission Scheme for the
academic year 2021/22 was published on 31st December 2019, as set out in
Appendix 3 to the report.
Reason for Decision:
The determination of admission arrangements for community schools and the
provision of a coordinated scheme is a statutory requirement.
Other Options:
As set out in the submitted report.
116

Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Jones
745

School Term Dates
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Children and Public
Health) presenting the proposed school term and holiday dates for the academic
year 2022/23.
Resolved:That the school term and holiday dates for 2022/23 as set out in Appendix 1 to the
submitted report, be approved for community schools and as a guide to all schools
in the Borough.
Reason for Decision:
To approve the school term dates.
Other Options:
None
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Jones

746

Council Debt Position to 30 November 2020
The Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director (Finance and
Resources) providing an update on the current position of outstanding debt to the
Council, as at 30th November 2020.
Resolved:1. That the current outstanding debt position as at 30th November 2020 and the
position of debts written off to 30th November 2020 as set out in Appendices A &
B to the submitted report, be noted.
2. That it be noted that no write offs greater than £25,000 are requested.
Reason for Decision:
All reasonable steps to recover the debt have been taken, and therefore where
write off is recommended it is the only course of action that is left available.
Other Options:
None.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert

117

747

Notice of Motion - Street Prostitution in Southend
The Cabinet received a Notice of Motion, presented at the Council meeting held
on 29th October 2020, concerning street prostitution in the Borough.
Resolved:
1. That the Notice of Motion be referred to the Community Safety and Customer
Contact Working Party for consideration.
Recommendation:
2. That Standing Order 8.4 of the Council’s Procedure Rules be amended so that
all Notices of Motion submitted to Council are referred to the relevant Cabinet
Working Party in order that a collaborative approach can be taken to the
consideration of the Motions.
Reasons for Decision:
To respond to the Notice of Motion.
Other Options:
None
Note: The decision in 1 above constitutes an Executive Function. The decision in
2 above constitutes a Council Function.
Cabinet Member: Cllr Terry

748

Notice of Motion - Food Justice Champion
The Cabinet received a Notice of Motion, presented at the Council meeting held
on 10th December 2020, concerning food poverty in the Borough.
Resolved:
That the Notice of Motion be referred to Communities and Housing Working Party
for consideration.
Reasons for Decision:
To respond to the Notice of Motion.
Other Options:
None
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert

118

749

Minutes of the meeting of the Business Culture and Tourism Working
Party held 16th December 2020
The Cabinet considered the recommendations of the Business, Culture and
Tourism Working Party held on 16th December 2020 concerning the Notices of
Motion referred to the Working Party by Cabinet on 3rd November 2020.
Resolved:
That the recommendations of the Business, Culture and Tourism Working Party
concerning the Notices of Motion set out below, be approved:
1. Twenty-One Site Conversion into Cycle Hub and Café
That as part of the procurement process, the potential for the Twenty-One site as
a multi-use facility providing a year round cultural space for a range of activities be
explored, including the potential to offer bike hire during the day but not to provide
bike repairs and sales.
2. Southend Illuminations: Festival of Light
That the provision of illuminations across the Borough continue to be explored as
part of the revised Destination Southend Tourism Strategy, including the potential
for a public festival of light.
3. Covid-19 Local Recognition Scheme
That the recognition work that has already taken place be acknowledged and that
officers explore further in collaboration with partners, the potential for a Covid-19
local recognition event for local people who went above and beyond during the
Covid-19 pandemic.
4. EasyJet Hub Closure
That the work by officers to engage with EasyJet to retain the hub at Southend
Airport and the packages of support that the Council has put in place to help
affected EasyJet staff, be noted.
Reasons for decision:
To respond to the recommendations from the Business, Culture and Tourism
Working Party in relation to the Notices of Motion.
Other options:
None
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: as appropriate to the Notice of Motion

119

750

Minutes of the meeting of the Senior Managers' Pay Panel held 18th
November 2020
The Cabinet considered the recommendation of the Senior Mangers’ Pay Panel
held on 18th November 2020.
Resolved:
That the recommendation of the Senior Managers Pay Panel held on 18th
November 2020, be approved.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert

751

SO.46 Report
Resolved:
That the submitted report be noted.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: As appropriate to the item

752

Exclusion of the Public
Resolved:That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the item of business set out below, on the grounds
that it would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1
of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

753

SO46 Confidential Sheet
Resolved:
That the confidential sheet, be noted.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert

Chair:

120

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Cabinet Committee
Date: Tuesday, 19th January, 2021
Place: Vrtual Meeting via MS Teams

17

Present:

Councillor R Woodley (Chair)
Councillors K Robinson (Vice-Chair) and M Terry

In Attendance:

Councillors K Buck, P Collins, D Cowan, T Cox, D Garston, A Moring
and C Nevin
S Harrington, T Row and J Leggett

Start/End Time:

6.30 pm - 7.30 pm

754

Apologies for Absence
No apologies for absence were received for this meeting.

755

Declarations of Interest
The following interest was declared at the meeting:
(a) Councillor D Garston – Application Ref Nos. 18/00301a & 18/00300a 146 and
144 Lymington Avenue, Leigh on Sea – Disqualifying non-pecuniary interest:
Applicant/Agent is very well known to him and has discussed the applications with
him (withdrew).

756

Exclusion of the Public
Resolved:That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the items of business set out below, on the grounds
that they would involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act and that the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.

757

Permanent Vehicular Crossing (PVX) - Exceptional Circumstances
Application(s)
The Cabinet Committee received a report of Executive Director (Neighbourhoods
and Environment) presenting the exceptional circumstance applications for
permanent vehicle crossings (PVX) as set out in Appendix 1 to the report.
Applicants or their representatives attended the meeting to present their
respective applications.
Having considered the views of the Traffic Regulations Working Party, it was:

121

Resolved:That the following applications be refused on the grounds that no extenuating
circumstances that would warrant an exception to the current established policy
could be identified:
Application Reference No.
Application Reference No.
Application Reference No.
Application Reference No.

20/00252
20/00253
20/00300a
20/00301a

Reasons for Decision
As set out in the submitted report
Other Options
As set out in the submitted report
Note: This is an Executive function
Not eligible for call-in pursuant to Scrutiny Procedure Rule 15(e)(iv)
Cabinet Member: Cllr Woodley

Chair:

122

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Place Scrutiny Committee
Date: Monday, 1st February, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams

18

Present:

Councillor A Moring (Chair)
Councillors K Buck (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, J Beck, A Bright, L Burton,
A Chalk, D Cowan, T Cox, A Dear, M Dent, S George, D Jarvis,
S Wakefield, C Walker, N Ward and P Wexham

In Attendance:

Councillors I Gilbert, C Mulroney, K Robinson, M Terry and
R Woodley (Cabinet Members)
Councillors S Aylen and K Evans
A Lewis, J Williams, J Chesterton, T Forster, S Moore, S Dolling,
C Robinson, P Bates, S Harrington, P Jenkinson, T Saunders, G
Perry-Ambrose, T Row, E Cook and A Wate

Start/End Time:

6.30 pm - 9.15 pm

758

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence.

759

Declarations of Interest
The following interests were declared at the meeting:
(a) Councillors I Gilbert, C Mulroney, K Robinson, M Terry and R Woodley
(Cabinet Members) - Interest in the called-in items; attended pursuant to the
dispensation agreed at Council on 19th July 2012, under S.33 of the Localism Act
2011;
(b) Councillor Buck – Minute 765 (Domestic Vehicle Parking Policy) – Nonpecuniary interest: Has been contacted and spoken to numerous residents
regarding the policy;
(c) Councillor Cowan – Minute 763 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes – 2021/22 to 2025/26) – Non-pecuniary interest: Staffing matters are
mentioned and is member of the GMB Union;
(d) Councillor Gilbert – Minute 763 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes – 2021/22 to 2025/26) – Non-pecuniary interest: SAVS and the
voluntary sector is mentioned in the report and is the Council appointed
representative to the SAVS Board and staffing matters are mentioned and is
member of the GMB Union;
(e) Councillor Mulroney – Minute 766 (Southend on Sea Borough Council Tree
Policy) – Non-pecuniary interest: Member of Leigh Town Council which is
mentioned in the report; and

123

(f) Councillor Woodley – Minute 763 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes – 2021/22 to 2025/26) – Non-pecuniary interest: Beach huts were
mentioned in the report and is a beach hut owner.
760

Questions from Members of the Public
The Committee noted the responses to two questions that had been submitted by
Mr Grubb to the Cabinet Member for Environment & Planning. Copies will be
forwarded to him as he was not present at the meeting.

761

Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 23rd November, 2020
Resolved:That the Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 23rd November 2020 be
received, confirmed as a correct record and signed.

762

Minutes of the Special Meeting held on Tuesday, 8th December, 2020
Resolved:That the Minutes of the special meeting held on Tuesday, 8th December 2020 be
received, confirmed as a correct record and signed.

763

Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better Outcomes – 2021/22 to
2025/26
The Committee considered Minute 730 of Cabinet held on 14th January 2021,
which had been referred direct to Scrutiny by Cabinet, together with the report of
the Executive Director (Finance & Resources) presenting a draft General Fund
Revenue and Capital Budget for 2021/22 to 2025/26.
Resolved:That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:
“1. That it be noted that a Medium-Term Financial Strategy for 2021/22 – 2025/26
will be available for consideration in February 2021 and the draft Medium Term
Financial Forecast and estimated Earmarked Reserves Balances up to 2025/26
(Annexes 1 and 2 to Appendix 1 to the submitted report), be endorsed.
2. That the draft Section 151 Officer’s statement on the robustness of the
proposed budget, the adequacy of the Council’s reserves and the Council’s
Reserves Strategy (Appendix 2 to the report), be noted.
3. That the appropriation of the sums to earmarked reserves totalling £3.625M
(Appendix 3 to the report), be endorsed.
4. That the appropriation of the sums from earmarked reserves totalling £6.218M,
which includes £2.500M to cover the remaining estimated budget gap for 2021/22.
(Appendix 3 to the report), be endorsed.

124

5. That a General Fund Budget Requirement for 2021/22 of £133.423M and
Council Tax Requirement of £87.712M (Appendix 4a) and any required
commencement of consultation, statutory or otherwise, be endorsed.
6. That it be noted that the 2021/22 revenue budget has been prepared on the
basis of using £1.5 million from accumulated Collection Fund surpluses for the
core budget to allow for a smoothing of the budget gap across the next four
financial years.
7. That a Council Tax increase of 3.99% for the Southend-on-Sea element of the
Council Tax for 2021/22, being 1.99% for general use and 2.0% for Adult Social
Care (Paragraph 10.16), be endorsed.
8. That it be noted that the position of the Council’s preceptors is to be
determined:
 Essex Police – no indication of Council Tax position
 Essex Fire & Rescue Services – no indication of Council Tax position
 Leigh-on-Sea Town Council – proposed precept increase of 3.02%;

9. That no Special Expenses be charged other than the Leigh-on-Sea Town
Council precept for 2021/22, be endorsed.
10. That the proposed General Fund revenue budget investment of £8.122M
(Appendix 5 to the report), be endorsed.
11. That the proposed General Fund revenue budget savings and income
generation initiatives for 2021/22 of £4.155M (Appendix 6 to the report), be
endorsed.
12. That the proposed future outline Budget Transformation Programme 2022/23
– 2025/26 (Appendix 7 to the report), be endorsed.
13. That the proposed range of fees and charges for 2021/22 (Appendix 8 to the
report), be endorsed.
14. That the Dedicated Schools Grant budget and its relevant distribution as
recommended by the Education Board (Appendix 9 to the report), be endorsed.
15. That the Capital Investment Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (Appendix 10 to
the report) and the Capital Investment Policy (Annex 1 to Appendix 10 to the
report), be endorsed.
16. That the new schemes and additions to the Capital Investment Programme for
the period 2021/22 to 2025/26 totalling £21M for the General Fund and new
schemes subject to viable business cases (Appendix 11 to the report), be
endorsed.
17. That the proposed changes to the current Capital Investment Programme that
were considered for approval as part of the Resourcing Better Outcomes –
Financial Performance Report – Period 8 (Appendix 12 to the report), be noted.

125

18. That the proposed Capital Investment Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 of
£168.6M for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (Appendix 13 to the report) of which £25.6M is
supported by external funding, be endorsed.
19. That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy for 2021/22 (Appendix 14
to the report) and the prudential indicators (Appendix 15 to the report), be
endorsed.
20. That the operational boundary and authorised limits for borrowing for 2021/22
are set at £375M and £385M respectively (Appendix 15 to the report), be
endorsed.”
Note: This is an Executive Function save that approval of the final budget
following Cabinet on 16th February 2020 is a Council Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Gilbert
764

Controlled Parking Zones Policy
The Committee considered Minute 735 of Cabinet held on 14th January 2021,
which had been called-in to Scrutiny, together with the report of the Executive
Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment) proposing a new policy in respect of
Controlled Parking Zones.
Resolved:That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:
“1. That the new policy for Controlled Parking Zones appended to the submitted
report, be adopted.
2. That it be noted that the new criteria will not automatically be applied to existing
Controlled Parking Zones, until such time as they are subject to a full,
comprehensive review.
3. That it be noted that the financial implications of Controlled Parking Zones will
vary depending on wider Council decisions on fees and charges, which will be
considered on a case-by-case basis.”
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Woodley

765

Domestic Vehicle Crossing Policy
The Committee considered Minute 736 of Cabinet held on 14th January 2021,
which had been called-in to Scrutiny, together with the report of the Executive
Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment) concerning the adoption of a new
Domestic Vehicle Crossing Policy.
Resolved:1. That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:

126

“1. That the new policy for Domestic Vehicle Crossings appended to the submitted
report, be adopted.
2. That it be noted that new enforcement activity will begin once the establishment
of the new Highway Enforcement Team is completed.
3. That it be noted that this policy will be utilised by the Traffic Regulations
Working Party in its considerations of appeals to rejected applications, as set out
in the Council’s Constitution.”
2. That, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 39, the matter be referred to
full Council for consideration.
Note: This is an Executive function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Woodley
766

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council Tree Policy
The Committee considered Minute 739 of Cabinet held on 14th January 2021,
which had been called-in to Scrutiny, together with the report of the Executive
Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment) presenting the revised tree policy
together with the results of the associated public consultation.
In response to questions regarding the policy and the possibility of notifying Ward
Councillors of proposed locations of tree planting, the Cabinet Member for
Environment & Planning gave her assurances that this would be investigated and
included in the policy.
Resolved:That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:
1. That the Tree Policy set out at Appendix 1 to the submitted report, be adopted.
2. That the development of a planting strategy that will consider the availability of
land, its usage, and tree planting opportunities, be approved.
3. That it be noted that the adoption of the Tree Policy will require ongoing funding
to manage the Council's tree stock, which will need to be considered as part of
future budget setting.
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Mulroney

767

Enforcement Review Update & SBC Environment & Regulatory
Enforcement Policy
The Committee considered Minute 740 of Cabinet held on 14th January 2021,
which had been called-in to Scrutiny, together with the report of the Executive
Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment) setting out for consideration an
Environment & Regulatory Enforcement Policy.
Resolved:127

That the following decisions of Cabinet be noted:
“1. That the progress with the enforcement review, be noted.
2. That the Environment & Regulatory Enforcement Policy at Appendix 1 to the
submitted report, be approved.”
Note: This is an Executive Function
Cabinet Member: Cllr Terry

Chair:

128

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of People Scrutiny Committee
Date: Tuesday, 2nd February, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via Microsoft Teams

19

Present:

Councillor L Salter (Chair)
Councillors N Folkard (Vice-Chair), M Borton, H Boyd, A Chalk, D Cowan,
M Dent, F Evans, M Flewitt, D Garne, B Hooper, M Kelly, K Mitchell,
C Nevin, I Shead, M Stafford and A Thompson

In Attendance:

Councillors T Harp, A Jones, M Terry (Cabinet Members), Councillor K
Evans, P Bates, J Chesterton, E Cook, T Forster, P Grout, A Keating,
B Leigh, J O'Loughlin, M Marks, B Martin, S Tautz and J Williams
O Richards (Healthwatch Southend), T Watts (Southend Carers Forum) (CoOpted Members)
M Faulkner-Hatt, N Biju (Southend Youth Council) (Observers)

Start/End Time:

6.30 pm - 7.30 pm

768

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence from the meeting.

769

Declarations of Interest
The following councillors declared interests as indicated:
(a)

Councillors T Harp, A Jones and M Terry (Cabinet Members) - Interest in the referred
item; attended pursuant to the dispensation agreed at Council on 19 July 2012, under
S.33 of the Localism Act 2011.

(b)

Councillor L Salter - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Husband is a consultant surgeon at Southend
Hospital; daughter is a consultant at Basildon Hospital; son-in-law is a general
practitioner in the Borough - Non-pecuniary interests.

(c)

Councillor N Folkard - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Ambassador for Fund Raising Team at Southend
University Hospital; member of the Readers’ Panel for Southend University Hospital;
relative employed at Broomfield Hospital - Non-pecuniary interests.

(d)

Councillor B Hooper - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Director of Blade Education (a not-for-profit
company); parent of child attending secondary school in Borough; family member
resident in supported living accommodation - Non-pecuniary interests.

(e)

Councillor H Boyd - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Family member employed in care home setting Non-pecuniary interest.

(f)

Councillor C Nevin - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Employed at external NHS Trust; previous care
home worker; family members employed at Mid and South-Essex Trust hospitals and
by Public Health England - Non-pecuniary interests.
129

770

(g)

Councillor F Evans - Minute 77 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Director of Belfairs Academy - Non-pecuniary
interest.

(h)

Councillor K Mitchell - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Member of Fostering Panel; family member
resident in supported living accommodation - Non-pecuniary interests.

(i)

Councillor I Shead - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Family member resident in supported living
accommodation outside the Borough - Non-pecuniary interest.

(j)

Councillor T Harp - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Volunteer with Southend Association of Voluntary
Services (SAVS) and the ‘Turning Tides’ project; wife is employed by SAVS – Nonpecuniary interests.

(k)

Councillor A Jones - Minute 773 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Parent of child attending secondary school in
Borough - Non-pecuniary interest.

Questions from Members of the Public
The Cabinet Member for Children and Learning responded to questions presented by Mr D
Webb.

771

Minutes of the Meeting held on 24 November 2020
Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 24 November 2020 be confirmed
as a correct record and signed.

772

Minutes of the Special Meeting held on 7 December 2020
Resolved:
That the minutes of the special meeting of the Committee held on 7 December 2020 be
confirmed as a correct record and signed.

773

Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better Outcomes – 2021/22 to 2025/26
The Committee considered Minute 730 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 14 January
2021, which had been referred directly to the People Scrutiny Committee, together with a
report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources) presenting the draft General
Fund Revenue and Capital Budget for 2021/22 to 2025/26.
Resolved:
That the following decisions of the Cabinet be noted:
“1. That it be noted that a Medium-Term Financial Strategy for 2021/22 – 2025/26 will be
available for consideration in February 2021 and the draft Medium Term Financial Forecast
and estimated Earmarked Reserves Balances up to 2025/26 (Annexes 1 and 2 to Appendix
1 to the submitted report), be endorsed.
130

2. That the draft Section 151 Officer’s statement on the robustness of the proposed budget,
the adequacy of the Council’s reserves and the Council’s Reserves Strategy (Appendix 2 to
the report), be noted.
3. That the appropriation of the sums to earmarked reserves totalling £3.625M (Appendix 3
to the report), be endorsed.
4. That the appropriation of the sums from earmarked reserves totalling £6.218M, which
includes £2.500M to cover the remaining estimated budget gap for 2021/22. (Appendix 3 to
the report), be endorsed.
5. That a General Fund Budget Requirement for 2021/22 of £133.423M and Council Tax
Requirement of £87.712M (Appendix 4a) and any required commencement of consultation,
statutory or otherwise, be endorsed.
6. That it be noted that the 2021/22 revenue budget has been prepared on the basis of using
£1.5 million from accumulated Collection Fund surpluses for the core budget to allow for a
smoothing of the budget gap across the next four financial years.
7. That a Council Tax increase of 3.99% for the Southend-on-Sea element of the Council
Tax for 2021/22, being 1.99% for general use and 2.0% for Adult Social Care (Paragraph
10.16), be endorsed.
8. That it be noted that the position of the Council’s preceptors is to be determined:




Essex Police – no indication of Council Tax position
Essex Fire & Rescue Services – no indication of Council Tax position
Leigh-on-Sea Town Council – proposed precept increase of 3.02%;

9. That no Special Expenses be charged other than the Leigh-on-Sea Town Council precept
for 2021/22, be endorsed.
10. That the proposed General Fund revenue budget investment of £8.122M (Appendix 5 to
the report), be endorsed.
11. That the proposed General Fund revenue budget savings and income generation
initiatives for 2021/22 of £4.155M (Appendix 6 to the report), be endorsed.
12. That the proposed future outline Budget Transformation Programme 2022/23 – 2025/26
(Appendix 7 to the report), be endorsed.
13. That the proposed range of fees and charges for 2021/22 (Appendix 8 to the report), be
endorsed.
14. That the Dedicated Schools Grant budget and its relevant distribution as recommended
by the Education Board (Appendix 9 to the report), be endorsed.
15. That the Capital Investment Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (Appendix 10 to the report)
and the Capital Investment Policy (Annex 1 to Appendix 10 to the report), be endorsed.
16. That the new schemes and additions to the Capital Investment Programme for the
period 2021/22 to 2025/26 totalling £21M for the General Fund and new schemes subject to
viable business cases (Appendix 11 to the report), be endorsed.
17. That the proposed changes to the current Capital Investment Programme that were
considered for approval as part of the Resourcing Better Outcomes – Financial Performance
Report – Period 8 (Appendix 12 to the report), be noted.
131

18. That the proposed Capital Investment Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 of £168.6M
for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (Appendix 13 to the report) of which £25.6M is supported by
external funding, be endorsed.
19. That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy for 2021/22 (Appendix 14 to the
report) and the prudential indicators (Appendix 15 to the report), be endorsed.
20. That the operational boundary and authorised limits for borrowing for 2021/22 are set at
£375M and £385M respectively (Appendix 15 to the report), be endorsed”.
Note: This is an Executive Function, save that approval of the final budget following
Cabinet on 16 February 2021 is a Council function.
Cabinet Member: Councillor I Gilbert
Chair:

132

Public Document Pack
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee
Date: Thursday, 4th February, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via Microsoft Teams

20

Present:

Councillor D Garston (Chair)
Councillors D Nelson (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, D Burzotta, D Cowan, T Cox,
P Collins, M Davidson, M Dent, S George, S Habermel, H McDonald,
D McGlone, I Shead, M Stafford, S Wakefield and P Wexham

In Attendance:

Councillors I Gilbert, C Mulroney, M Terry and R Woodley (Cabinet
Members), Councillor K Evans, P Bates, E Cook, J Chesterton,
G Halksworth, A Lewis, J Ruffle, A Smyth, S Tautz and J Williams

Start/End Time:

6.30 pm - 7.35 pm

774

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence from the meeting.

775

Declarations of Interest
The following councillors declared interests as indicated:

776

(a)

Councillors I Gilbert, C Mulroney, M Terry and R Woodley (Cabinet Members) Interest in the referred items; attended pursuant to the dispensation agreed at
Council on 19 July 2012, under S.33 of the Localism Act 2011.

(b)

Councillor M Davidson - Minute 778 (Draft Housing Revenue Account Budget and
Rent Setting 2021/22) - Non-Executive Director of South Essex Homes - Nonpecuniary interest.

(c)

Councillor S Wakefield - Minute 778 (Draft Housing Revenue Account Budget and
Rent Setting 2021/22) - Sub-Contractor for South Essex Homes - Non-pecuniary
interest.

(d)

Councillor P Wexham - Minute 778 (Draft Housing Revenue Account Budget and
Rent Setting 2021/22) - Member of the Board of Directors of South Essex Homes Non-pecuniary interest.

(e)

Councillor I Gilbert - Minute 779 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Council representative on the Board of Southend
Association of Voluntary Services; Member of the GMB union - Non-pecuniary
interests.

(f)

Councillor C Mulroney - Minute 779 (Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better
Outcomes - 2021/22 to 2025/26) - Member of Leigh Town Council - Non-pecuniary
interest.

Questions from Members of the Public
The Leader of the Council (Cabinet Member for Housing and Communities) and the Chair
of the Committee (on behalf of the Cabinet Member for Transport, Capital and Inward
Investment) responded to questions presented by Mr D Webb.

133

777

Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 November 2020
Resolved:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 26 November 2020 be confirmed
as a correct record and signed.

778

Draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget and Rent Setting Report 2021/22
The Committee considered Minute 729 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 14 January
2021, which had been referred directly to the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee,
together with a joint report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources) and the
Deputy Chief Executive and Executive Director (Housing and Growth) presenting the draft
Housing Revenue Account budget for 2021/22, together with the information necessary to
set a balanced budget as required by legislation.
Resolved:
That the following decisions of the Cabinet be noted:
“1. That an average rent increase of 1.50% on all tenancies, be endorsed.
2. An average rent increase of 1.50% on shared ownership properties, be endorsed.
3. That an increase of 1.50% for garage rents to £12.20 per week for tenants and £14.64 for
non-tenants (being £12.20 plus VAT), a rise consistent with the proposal for the main rent
increase (all variants on a standard garage will receive a proportionate increase), be
endorsed.
4. That the proposed rent charges in 1-3 above be effective from 5th April 2021.
5. That the South Essex Homes core management fee at £6,336,000 for 2021/22, be
endorsed.
6. That South Essex Homes proposals for average increases of 2.52% in service charges
and 10.39% in heating charges to reflect the actual costs incurred be endorsed.
7. That the following appropriations be endorsed:




£60,000 to the Repairs Contract Pensions Reserve;
£5,073,000 to the Capital Investment Reserve; and
£7,644,000 from the Capital Investment Reserve

8. That, subject to resolutions 1 to 7 above, the HRA budget for 2021/22, as set out in
Appendix 1 to the submitted report, be approved.
9. That the value of the Council’s capital allowance for 2021/22 be declared as £68,672,000,
as determined in accordance with regulation 16 of the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and
Accounting) (England) Regulations.”
Note: This is an Executive Function, save that approval of the final budget following
Cabinet on 16 February 2021 is a Council Function
Cabinet Member: Councillor I Gilbert
779

Draft Prioritising Resources to Deliver Better Outcomes – 2021/22 to 2025/26

134

The Committee considered Minute 730 of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 14 January
2021, which had been referred directly to the Policy and Resources Scrutiny Committee,
together with a report of the Executive Director (Finance and Resources) presenting the
draft General Fund Revenue and Capital Budget for 2021/22 to 2025/26.
Resolved:
That the following decisions of the Cabinet be noted:
“1. That it be noted that a Medium-Term Financial Strategy for 2021/22 – 2025/26 will be
available for consideration in February 2021 and the draft Medium Term Financial Forecast
and estimated Earmarked Reserves Balances up to 2025/26 (Annexes 1 and 2 to Appendix
1 to the submitted report), be endorsed.
2. That the draft Section 151 Officer’s statement on the robustness of the proposed budget,
the adequacy of the Council’s reserves and the Council’s Reserves Strategy (Appendix 2 to
the report), be noted.
3. That the appropriation of the sums to earmarked reserves totalling £3.625M (Appendix 3
to the report), be endorsed.
4. That the appropriation of the sums from earmarked reserves totalling £6.218M, which
includes £2.500M to cover the remaining estimated budget gap for 2021/22. (Appendix 3 to
the report), be endorsed.
5. That a General Fund Budget Requirement for 2021/22 of £133.423M and Council Tax
Requirement of £87.712M (Appendix 4a) and any required commencement of consultation,
statutory or otherwise, be endorsed.
6. That it be noted that the 2021/22 revenue budget has been prepared on the basis of using
£1.5 million from accumulated Collection Fund surpluses for the core budget to allow for a
smoothing of the budget gap across the next four financial years.
7. That a Council Tax increase of 3.99% for the Southend-on-Sea element of the Council
Tax for 2021/22, being 1.99% for general use and 2.0% for Adult Social Care (Paragraph
10.16), be endorsed.
8. That it be noted that the position of the Council’s preceptors is to be determined:




Essex Police – no indication of Council Tax position
Essex Fire & Rescue Services – no indication of Council Tax position
Leigh-on-Sea Town Council – proposed precept increase of 3.02%;

9. That no Special Expenses be charged other than the Leigh-on-Sea Town Council precept
for 2021/22, be endorsed.
10. That the proposed General Fund revenue budget investment of £8.122M (Appendix 5 to
the report), be endorsed.
11. That the proposed General Fund revenue budget savings and income generation
initiatives for 2021/22 of £4.155M (Appendix 6 to the report), be endorsed.
12. That the proposed future outline Budget Transformation Programme 2022/23 – 2025/26
(Appendix 7 to the report), be endorsed.
13. That the proposed range of fees and charges for 2021/22 (Appendix 8 to the report), be
endorsed.

135

14. That the Dedicated Schools Grant budget and its relevant distribution as recommended
by the Education Board (Appendix 9 to the report), be endorsed.
15. That the Capital Investment Strategy for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (Appendix 10 to the report)
and the Capital Investment Policy (Annex 1 to Appendix 10 to the report), be endorsed.
16. That the new schemes and additions to the Capital Investment Programme for the
period 2021/22 to 2025/26 totalling £21M for the General Fund and new schemes subject to
viable business cases (Appendix 11 to the report), be endorsed.
17. That the proposed changes to the current Capital Investment Programme that were
considered for approval as part of the Resourcing Better Outcomes – Financial Performance
Report – Period 8 (Appendix 12 to the report), be noted.
18. That the proposed Capital Investment Programme for 2021/22 to 2025/26 of £168.6M
for 2021/22 to 2025/26 (Appendix 13 to the report) of which £25.6M is supported by
external funding, be endorsed.
19. That the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy for 2021/22 (Appendix 14 to the
report) and the prudential indicators (Appendix 15 to the report), be endorsed.
20. That the operational boundary and authorised limits for borrowing for 2021/22 are set at
£375M and £385M respectively (Appendix 15 to the report), be endorsed”.
Note: This is an Executive Function, save that approval of the final budget following
Cabinet on 16 February 2021 is a Council function.
Cabinet Member: Councillor I Gilbert
780

In-Depth Scrutiny Project 2019/20-2020/21
The Committee was informed of progress on the current in-depth scrutiny project and
advised that a further meeting of the Project Team was to be held on 23 February 2021, to
give initial consideration to the recommendations arising from the project.
Resolved:
That the report be noted.
Note: This is a Scrutiny Function
Chair:

136

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Development Control Committee
Date: Wednesday, 3rd February, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams
Present:

21

Councillor N Ward (Chair)
Councillors M Borton (Vice-Chair), B Ayling, J Beck, A Chalk,
D Cowan, A Dear, M Dent, F Evans, D Garston, S Habermel, D Jarvis,
A Jones, C Mulroney, A Thompson, S Wakefield and C Walker
*Substitute in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 31.

In Attendance:

Councillors Boyd, Davidson, Folkard and Garne.
E Cook, K Waters, C Galforg, P Keyes, C White, M Warren, S
Mouritadis, T Hartley, T Row and G Gilbert

Start/End Time:

2.00 - 6.10 pm

781

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence at the meeting.

782

Declarations of Interest
The following interests were declared at the meeting:
(a) All Councillors present – Agenda Item No. 11 (Application No. 20/01972/FULH The Lodge by The Bridge, Eastern Avenue, Southend on Sea) – Non-pecuniary
interest: Applicant is known to them as a fellow Councillor;
(b) Councillor Ayling – Agenda Item No. 11 (Application No. 20/01972/FULH - The
Lodge by The Bridge, Eastern Avenue, Southend on Sea) – Disclosable pecuniary
interest: Applicant and owner of the property (withdrew);
(c) Councillors Ayling, Borton, Chalk, Dent, Jarvis and Ward – Agenda Item No. 8
(Application No. 20/02016/FUL - 90 Caulfield Road, Shoeburyness) – Nonpecuniary interest: Had received correspondence regarding the application;
(d) Councillor Dear – Agenda Item No. 4 (20/00728/OUTM - The Old Vienna
Restaurant, 162 Eastwood Road, Leigh on Sea) – Non-pecuniary interest: Has
received numerous correspondence from resident regarding the application;
(e) Councillor D Garston – Agenda Item No. 4 (20/00728/OUTM - The Old Vienna
Restaurant, 162 Eastwood Road, Leigh on Sea) – Non-pecuniary interest:
Developer is known to him;

137

(f) Councillor D Garston – Agenda Item No. 6 (20/00599/FUL Application No. 27
Leigh Park Road, Leigh-on-Sea) – Pecuniary interest: Application site backs on to
his place of residence (withdrew);
(g) Councillor D Garston – Agenda Item No. 8 (Application No. 20/02016/FUL - 90
Caulfield Road, Shoeburyness) – Non-pecuniary interest: Son owns a property in
the vicinity;
(h) Councillor Jones – Agenda Item No. 8 (Application No. 20/02016/FUL - 90
Caulfield Road, Shoeburyness) – Disqualifying non-pecuniary interest: Cabinet
Member with responsibility for children and corporate parent (withdrew);
(i) Councillor Mulroney – Agenda Item No. 5 (Application No. 20/01759/FULM Former Car Wash, 120 Broadway, Leigh on Sea) and XXX (20/00599/FUL
Application No. 27 Leigh Park Road, Leigh-on-Sea) – Non-pecuniary interest:
Member of Leigh Town Council non-participant in planning);
(j) Councillor Mulroney – Agenda Item No. 8 (Application No. 20/02016/FUL - 90
Caulfield Road, Shoeburyness) – Non-pecuniary interest: CEO of the Applicant is
known to her;
(k) Councillor Wakefield – Agenda Item No. 8 (Application No. 20/02016/FUL - 90
Caulfield Road, Shoeburyness) – Lives in the vicinity of the application site; and
(l) Councillor Ward – Agenda Item No. 10 (20/02080/FUL - 4 Merilies Close,
Westcliff-on-Sea) – Non-pecuniary interest: Had received correspondence from
another objector requesting to speak received in respect of this matter.
783

Supplementary Report
The Committee received and noted a supplementary report by the Deputy Chief
Executive and Executive Director (Growth and Housing) that provided additional
information on the items referred to elsewhere on the Agenda.

784

20/00728/OUTM - The Old Vienna Restaurant, 162 Eastwood Road, Leigh on
Sea (Belfairs Ward)
Proposal: Demolish existing building and erect part two-storey/part three
storey building, comprising of thirteen (13no.) self contained flats, parking,
cycle store & refuse store (Outline Application with Landscaping reserved).
Applicant: Mr Brian Strickland
Agent: Mr Steven Kearney of SKArchitects
Resolved: (a)

That the Interim Director of Planning or Group Manager of Planning &
Building Control be delegated responsibility to GRANT PLANNING
PERMISSION subject to conditions below following the completion of a
PLANNING AGREEMENT under section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) to secure the provision of:
 £224,053.17 financial contribution towards off-site affordable housing.
 £23,359.59 contribution towards secondary education.
138

 Essex RAMS payment of £1,632.54 to mitigate the potential
disturbance to European designated sites.
(b)

The Interim Director of Planning or the Group Manager (Planning &
Building Control) be authorised to determine the application upon
completion of the above requirement, so long as planning permission when
granted and, where it is used, the obligation when executed, accords with
the details set out in the report submitted and the conditions listed below:

General Conditions
01
Details of the landscaping (hereinafter called the "reserved matters") shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any
development begins and the development shall be carried out as approved under
the reserved matters. Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be
made to the Local Planning Authority not later than 3 (three) years from the date of
this permission. The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 2
(two) years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be
approved.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and because the application is for outline
planning permission only and the particulars submitted are insufficient for
consideration of details mentioned.
02
The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved plans: 575-P01 A, 575-P02 C, 575-P03 A, 575-P04 C, 575-P05, 575P06 REV A, 575-P05.
Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the
development plan.
Design and related conditions
03
Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved the development hereby permitted shall not commence, other
than for groundworks and site preparation works, unless and until full details and
specifications of the materials to be used for all the external surfaces of the
proposed buildings at the site including facing materials, roof detail, windows
(including sections, profiles and reveals), doors, balustrading, fascia and balconies
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
works must then be carried out in full accordance with the approved details before
the dwellings hereby approved are first occupied.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3, and the
advice contained within the National Design Guide (2019) and the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).

139

04
Notwithstanding the information submitted and details shown on the plans
submitted and otherwise hereby approved, no construction works other than
demolition shall take place on site unless and until details of the levels of the
proposed building, to adjoining land and any other changes proposed in the levels
of the site associated with the works permitted by this permission have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The highest
part of the building shall not exceed 56.46m AOD. The development shall be
implemented in full accordance with the details approved under this condition
before it is first occupied or brought into use.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and to safeguard the safety of air traffic, in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015)
Policies DM1, DM3 and DM15, and the advice contained within the National Design
Guide (2019) and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
05
No demolition or development of any kind shall take place on site unless and
until tree protection measures have been implemented on site in line with an up to
date Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Method Statement prepared in
accordance with British Standard BS5837 (Trees in Relation to Construction Recommendations) which should consider trees on site and adjacent street trees
and which shall have previously been submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme of protection measures shall be
fully installed before the commencement of works and maintained throughout
construction. The development shall be implemented in full accordance with the
approved scheme, measures and methods.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1 and DM3, and the
advice contained within the National Design Guide (2019) and the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
06
Within the first available planting season (October to March inclusive)
following the first use of the development hereby approved, the soft landscaping
scheme which has previously been submitted and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority with the relevant Reserved Matters application, shall be
implemented, completed and maintained thereafter in full accordance with the
approved details.
Within a period of five years from the completion of the development hereby
approved, or from the date of the planting of any tree or any tree planted in its
replacement, if any tree planted as part of the approved landscaping scheme is
removed, uprooted, destroyed, dies, or becomes, in the opinion of the local
planning authority, seriously damaged or defective, another tree of the same
species and size as that of the original tree shall be planted in the same place or in
accordance with alternative tree replacement details approved under the scope of
this planning condition.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and DM5, and the

140

advice contained within the National Design Guide (2019) and the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
07
The use of the development hereby approved shall not commence until a
hard landscaping scheme has been carried out and implemented solely in full
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority with the relevant Reserved Matters
application. The hard landscaping scheme shall include details of materials to be
used on hardsurfacing as well as elevations and details of materials for any
boundary treatment of the site, including boundaries within the site.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3 and DM5, and the
advice contained within the National Design Guide (2019) and the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
Living Conditions related conditions
08
Notwithstanding the details submitted and otherwise hereby approved, the
dwellings hereby approved shall not be brought into first use unless at least internal
storage space, excluding kitchen cupboards and wardrobes less than 0.72m2 in a
double bedroom and 0.36m2 in a single bedroom, in line with the requirements of
the Nationally Described Space Standards for each unit have been provided and
made available on site in line with details that have previously been submitted to
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the development hereby approved provide high quality internal
layouts to meet the needs of future residents in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy
(2007), Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development Management Document
(2015) and the advice contained within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009),
the National Housing Standards (2015) and the Technical Housing Standards
Policy Transition Statement (2015).
09
No development above ground level shall take place on site until details of
noise mitigation measures to ensure that all habitable rooms achieve the
requirements of British Standard 8233:2014, have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall be fully implemented
as approved prior to the first use of the development hereby approved.
Reason: To mitigate the noise from highway traffic and the communal parking area
in the interest of the living conditions of future occupiers in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
10
Notwithstanding the details submitted and otherwise hereby approved, no
development other than site preparation works shall take place until and unless
details have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority to show how at least 1 of the dwellings will be built in compliance with the
building regulation M4(3) ‘wheelchair user dwellings’ standard with all 12 of the
remaining dwellings complying with the building regulation part M4(2) ‘accessible
141

and adaptable dwellings’ standard. Each approved dwelling shall be constructed to
comply with either building regulation M4(2) or M4(3) in accordance with the
approved details prior to its first occupation.
Reason: To ensure the development hereby approved provide high quality and
flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in accordance with
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Design and Townscape
Guide (2009).
Impact on residential amenity of neighbours
11
No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, unless
and until a Demolition and Construction Management Plan and Strategy to include
Noise and Dust Mitigation Strategies has been submitted to, and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The approved Demolition and Construction
Management Plan and Strategy shall be adhered to in full throughout the
construction period. The Statement shall provide, amongst other things, for:
i)
the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii)
loading and unloading of plant and materials
iii)
storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
iv)
the erection and maintenance of security hoarding
v)
measures to control the emission of dust, dirt and noise during construction
vi)
a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from construction works
that does not allow for the burning of waste on site.
vii)
a dust management plan to include mitigation and boundary particulate
monitoring during demolition and construction.
viii)
details of the duration and location of any noisy activities.
Reason: In the interest of the residential amenity of nearby occupiers in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
12
Construction works for the approved development on site shall only be
undertaken between 8 am to 6 pm on weekdays, between 8 am and 1 pm on
Saturdays and not at any time on Sundays and Public Holidays.
Reason: In the interest of the residential amenity of nearby occupiers in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
Highways
13
The approved dwellings shall not be occupied unless and until the following
works have been implemented in accordance with a scheme which has been
submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority:
a.
The construction of new vehicular accesses to Tudor Gardens;
b.
The removal of the redundant crossover to Eastwood Road and
reinstatement of the footway.
142

Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies
DM3, DM8 and DM15 of Development Management Document (2015).
14
The dwellings hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until at
least one parking space per unit in the area shown on the approved plan 575-P02
C has been provided and made available for use on site. The parking spaces shall
be retained for the lifetime of the development for the purposes of car parking
solely for residents of the approved dwellings on site and their visitors.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate parking in accordance with National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM3, DM8 and DM15 of Development Management Document (2015).
15
The development hereby approved shall not be brought into first use unless
and until at least one cycle parking space per unit has been provided on site and
made available for use in line with the details shown in approved plan 575-P02 C.
The provision of at least one cycle parking space per unit for the benefit of future
occupiers of the approved development shall be retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate cycle parking in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy CP3 and
Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM3, DM8 and DM15.
Waste management
16
The development hereby approved shall not be brought into first use unless
and until at waste storage has been provided on site and made available for use in
line with the details shown in approved plan 575-P02 C. The provision of the waste
storage facilities shall be retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate waste, recycling and food waste
storage and in the interest of visual amenity in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2, CP3 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1, DM3, DM8 and
DM15, and the advice contained within the National Design Guide (2019), the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009), and the Waste Storage, Collection and
Management Guide for New Developments (2019).
Drainage
17
Notwithstanding the information submitted and details shown on the plans
submitted and otherwise hereby approved, no construction works other than
demolition and excavation works, shall take place unless and until a drainage and
surface water management strategy incorporating principles for Sustainable
Drainage Systems (SuDS) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The drainage and surface water management strategy
shall be implemented in full accordance with the details approved under this
condition before the development hereby approved is first occupied or brought into
first use.

143

Reason: To ensure the approved development does not increase flood risk
elsewhere in accordance with National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core
Strategy (2007) Policies KP1, KP2 and KP3.
Energy and water sustainability
18
Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved details of energy
efficiency and other sustainability measures to be included in the scheme, including
the provision of at least 10% of the energy needs of the development hereby
approved being provided from onsite renewable sources, shall be submitted to,
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented on site in
accordance with the agreed details.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through efficient
use of resources and better use of sustainable and renewable resources in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy
DM2, and the advice contained within the National Design Guide (2019) and the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
19
The dwellings hereby approved shall incorporate water efficient design
measures set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the Development Management Document to
limit internal water consumption to 105 litres per person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when
including external water consumption), including measures of water efficient fittings,
appliances and water recycling systems such as grey water and rainwater
harvesting before they are occupied.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through efficient
use of resources and better use of sustainable and renewable resources in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy
(2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy
DM2, and the advice contained within the National Design Guide (2019) and the
Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
Ecology
20
No development shall take place on site, including any works of demolition,
unless and until a breeding bird survey has been submitted and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby approved shall be
implemented and operated thereafter in strict accordance with the findings,
recommendations and mitigation measures of the approved breeding bird survey.
Reason: In the interest of biodiversity in accordance with National Planning Policy
Framework (2019) and Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.

144

(c)
In the event that the planning obligations or other means of securing the
financial contribution referred to in part (a) above have not been completed by 5
February 2021 or an extension of this time as may be agreed, the Interim Director
of Planning or Group Manager Planning & Building Control be authorised to refuse
planning permission for the application on the grounds that the development would
not provide adequate mitigation for the potential disturbance to European
designated site, would not provide adequate levels of affordable housing, would not
provide any secondary education contributions to mitigate the development
contrary to National and Local planning policy.
Informatives:
1
Please note that the development which is the subject of this application is
liable for a charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010
(as amended) and it is the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have
fully complied with the requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with
the CIL regulations in full can result in a range of penalties. For full planning
permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be issued by the Council as soon as
practicable following this decision notice. For general consents, you are required to
submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5) before commencement; and
upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability Notice including details of
the chargeable amount and when this is payable. If you have not received a CIL
Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence development, it is imperative
that you contact S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk to avoid financial
penalties for potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended). If the chargeable development has already commenced, no exemption
or relief can be sought in relation to the charge and a CIL Demand Notice will be
issued requiring immediate payment. Further details on CIL matters can be found
on
the
Planning
Portal
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infras
tructure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil).
2
You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during
construction works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may
seek to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please take
care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in the
borough.
3
The applicant is encouraged to provide electric vehicle charging points at the
site in accordance with Policy DM15 which encourages their provision wherever
practical and feasible.
785

20/01759/FULM - Former Car Wash, 120 Broadway, Leigh on Sea (Leigh
Ward)
Proposal: Demolish existing retail unit and former car wash site and erect a 3storey building with upper storey set-back comprising of 280sq.m
commercial space at ground floor level and 15 self-contained flats (Class C3),
ground floor parking court, refuse, cycling storage, lay out landscaping and
install vehicular access onto Victor Drive.
Applicant: Plaistow Broadway Filling Stations
145

Agent: DAP Architecture Ltd
Resolved: That PLANNING PERMISSION be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01 The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years of the
date of this decision
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990
02 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans 001.01, 200.12, 201.07, 202.11, 203.11, 204.14, 205.08,
206.09, 210.02, 211.02
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
Development Plan.
03 No development approved by this permission shall be commenced unless and
until the Local Planning Authority has approved in writing by way of a Section 278
Highways Agreement a full scheme of highway works (including detailed designs
and contract details) and the relevant highways approvals are in place, in relation to
the proposed loading bay, alterations to the existing accesses including
reinstatement of redundant crossovers on Broadway, amended traffic regulation
order, planting specifications and details of 4 new street trees and details of the 5
new visitor cycle hoops. The works shall thereafter be undertaken in accordance
with the approved details and completed prior to occupation of the development
hereby approved.
Reason: A pre commencement condition is required in the interests of highways
management, the character of the area and safety in accordance with Core
Strategy (2007) policies KP2, CP3 and CP4 and Development Management
Document (2015) policies DM1, DM3 and DM15 and the advice contained within
the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
04 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise hereby
approved, no construction works other than demolition and construction up to
ground floor slab level shall take place unless and until full product details of the
materials to be used on all the external elevations, including walls, inset balconies
and projecting windows, roof and roof terraces, coping, windows and doors,
shopfront, colonnade, fascia and soffits, balcony balustrades and screens, bin and
cycle store doors, entrance gates, rainwater goods and boundaries have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details before it
is brought into first use.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenities of the area, in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework (2019) Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2 and
CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice
contained within the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).

146

05 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise hereby
approved, no construction works other than demolition above slab level shall take
place unless and until full detailed design drawings and cross sections of the
residential entrance and shopfronts including approach to signage, window
surrounds including brick and stone detailing, balustrades design, reveals, parapet
details and rainwater drainage solution at a scale of 1:20 or 1:10 as appropriate
have first been submitted to and agreed in writing by the local planning authority.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
before it is brought into use.
Reason: In the interest of the visual amenities and character of the area and
adjacent conservation area, and to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers
in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy
DM1 of the Development Management Document (2015).
06 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise hereby
approved, no construction works other than demolition above slab level shall take
place until full details of both hard and soft landscape works to be carried out at the
site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The approved hard landscaping works shall be carried out prior to first occupation
of the development and the soft landscaping works within the first planting season
following first occupation of the development. The details submitted shall include,
but not limited to:i.
Existing and proposed finished site levels or contours;
ii.
means of enclosure, of the site including any gates or boundary fencing
including to the roof top terrace areas;
iii.
hard surfacing materials including for the amenity terraces and under the
colonnade to the front;
iv.
minor artefacts and structures (e.g. furniture, planters, lighting, etc.) including
lighting of the colonnade to the front and main entrance;
v.
details of the number, size and location of the trees, shrubs and plants to be
planted together with a planting specification
vi.
details of measures to enhance biodiversity within the site;
Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming
seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or
shrubs of such size and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To safeguard character and appearance of surrounding area in
accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1
and DM3 of the Development Management Document (2015) and the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
07 The development shall not be occupied until 17 car parking spaces, of which not
less than 2 shall be for disabled users, have been provided at the site and made
available for use solely for occupiers of the residential units hereby approved and
their visitors all in accordance with drawings reference 200.12 and 211.02 together
with properly constructed vehicular access to the adjoining highway, and the
reinstatement of existing redundant crossovers in Broadway all in accordance with
the approved plans. The parking spaces shall be permanently retained thereafter
solely for the parking of occupiers of and visitors to the development.
147

Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking is provided and retained to serve the
development in accordance with Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy
DM15 of the Council’s Development Management Document (2015).
08 The development shall not be occupied until at least 15 secure, covered cycle
parking spaces to serve the development as shown on drawing 200.12 have been
provided at the site and made available for use in full accordance with the approved
plans by occupiers of the units hereby approved and their visitors. The approved
scheme shall be permanently retained thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that adequate cycle parking is provided and retained to serve
the development in accordance with Policies CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and
Policy DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
09 The development shall not be occupied unless and until the commercial and
residential refuse stores that serve the development as shown on drawing 200.12
have been provided at the site in full accordance with the approved plans and
made available for use by occupiers of the residential and commercial units hereby
approved. The approved scheme shall be permanently retained for the storage of
waste and recycling thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that adequate refuse and recycling storage is provided and
retained to serve the development in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM8 and DM15 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
10 Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling, details of the Residential Travel
Packs shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.
The approved travel packs shall then be provided to each dwelling within 1 month
of their first occupation.
Reason: In the interests of sustainability in accordance with the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4,
Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM15, and Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
11 The development shall not be occupied or brought into use until a waste
management plan and service strategy has been submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The waste management and servicing of the
development shall thereafter only be carried out in accordance with the approved
details and maintained in perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactorily serviced and that
satisfactory waste management is undertaken in the interests of highway safety
and visual amenity and to protect the character of the surrounding area, in
accordance with Policies KP2 and CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy
DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
12 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to in full

148

throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide, amongst other
things, for:
i.
the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii.
loading and unloading of plant and materials
iii.
storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
iv.
the erection and maintenance of security hoarding
v.
measures to control the emission of dust, noise and dirt during construction
vi.
a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works that does not allow for the burning of waste on site.
vii.
Provide a method statement regarding the management of surface water
runoff arising during the construction phase of the project.
Reason: A pre commencement condition is required in the interests of visual
amenity and the amenities of occupiers and to ensure a satisfactory standard of
landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM1 of
the Development Management Document (2015).
13 Before any of the residential units hereby approved are first occupied or brought
into use, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in a manner to
ensure that 2 of the flats hereby approved comply with building regulation M4 (3)
‘wheelchair user dwellings’ standard and the remaining 13 flats comply with building
regulation M4(2) ‘accessible and adaptable dwellings standard.
Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provides high quality and
flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in accordance with
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2,
Development Management Document (2015) Policy DM2 and the Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
14 Notwithstanding the details shown in the plans submitted and otherwise hereby
approved, the development hereby granted consent shall not be occupied or
brought into use unless and until plans are submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing which clearly specify all the windows and other
openings in the development that are to be permanently glazed with obscured
glass and fixed shut or provided with only a fanlight (or other similar) opening and
the manner and design in which these windows and openings are to be
implemented. The development hereby permitted shall be implemented in full
accordance with the details approved under this condition before it is first occupied
or brought into use and shall be permanently retained as such thereafter. The
windows included within such agreed scheme shall be glazed in obscure glass
which is at least Level 4 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy. The windows shall be
retained in accordance with the agreed details in perpetuity thereafter.
Reason: To avoid overlooking and the resultant loss of privacy of the adjoining
residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Core Strategy (2007) Policies KP2 and CP4, and Development
Management Document (2015) Policy DM1 and advice contained within the Design
and Townscape Guide (2009).
15 No development shall take place above ground floor slab level until details of the
design and specification of the privacy screen to the east terrace and the privacy
screens to the terraces at 3rd floor level have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The development shall be carried out solely
149

in accordance with the approved details before it is first occupied and shall be
retained as such in perpetuity.
Reason: To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring
residential properties, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development Management Document
(2015) policy DM1, and advice contained within the Design and Townscape Guide
(2009).
16 Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise hereby
approved, no construction works above the ground floor slab level shall take place
unless and until a scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of
the development will be supplied using on site renewable sources has been
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
renewables shall be implemented in full in accordance with the approved details
prior to the first occupation of the dwellings. This provision shall be made for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: In the interests of providing sustainable development in accordance with
Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Development Management Document
(2015) Policy DM2.
17 Prior to occupation of the flat hereby approved, appropriate water efficient
design measures as set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the Development Management
Document to limit internal water consumption to not more than 105 litres per person
per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external water consumption), to include
measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water recycling systems such as
grey water and rainwater harvesting shall be implemented for the development and
thereafter retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through efficient
use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (2019)
Core Strategy (2007) Policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015)
Policy DM2 and the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
18 Prior to the commencement of development an instructive investigation (Phase
II Site Investigation) must be undertaken in order to quantify and remediate the
risks identified by the Phase 1 Site Investigation by Geo- Environmental
Assessment (Desk Study & Ground Investigation) Report Ref: P9093J631 of July 8,
2015. The submitted phase II report shall include:
i.
Details of all measures to be undertaken to make the site suitable for the
intended use, including a timeframe for the works.
ii.
Confirmation that all underground fuel storage tanks will be removed from
the site by a suitably qualified contractor and disposed of off site. Validation soil
samples from areas around the tank(s) must be tested to ensure that they are
suitable to be left in-situ and the results provided to the Council.
iii.
Confirmation that all hydrocarbon contaminated soil will be excavated to the
appropriate depth and disposed off-site to a facility licensed by the Environment
Agency. The waste transfer certificate must be included in the validation report.
iv.
Confirmation that all imported soil for any backfilling operations must be
suitable for the intended use and certified to the CLEA or any other relevant
standard.
150

v.
Prior to commencement of development, the Validation Report must be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. The Validation Report must
contain details of the remediation measures undertaken to make the site suitable
for use including their effectiveness. The report must also contain details of the
volume of soil removed from the site (including any waste transfer certificate) and
the volume of imported soil to the site (including their chemical contents).
vi.
If during the development, land contamination not previously considered is
identified, then the Local Planning Authority shall be notified immediately and no
further works shall be carried out until a method statement detailing a scheme for
dealing with suspect contamination has been submitted to and agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority. Any such works shall then be undertaken and
completed solely in accordance with the agreed method statement.
Reason: A pre commencement condition is necessary to ensure that any
contamination on the site is identified and treated so that it does not harm anyone
who uses the site in the future, and to ensure that the development does not cause
pollution to Controlled Waters in accordance with Core Strategy (2007) Policies
KP2 and CP4 and Policies DM1 and DM14 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
19 All the noise mitigation measures outlined in Section 7 of the Noise Impact
Assessment by Cambridge Acoustics reference 1009.20 dated 10th September
2020 to protect future residents of the building from the impact of vehicular noise
along Broadway and the surrounding area must be implemented in their entirety
prior to occupation of any of the residential units hereby approved to achieve an
internal noise level which meets British Standards BS 8233:2014 criteria. The
approved measures implemented shall be maintained in perpetuity.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the development
surrounding occupiers and to protect the character the area in accordance with
policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of
the Development Management Document (2015).
20 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, full details of
the proposed car stacking system, including provision for a wider unit to
accommodate 1 disabled space within this system, together with a report detailing
any mitigation measures proposed in respect of noise impacts of this system shall
be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The
installation of the car stacking system shall be carried out in full accordance with
the approved details, including any noise mitigation measures to be undertaken in
association with the agreed details, and made available for use prior to first
occupation of any of the residential units hereby approved. With reference to British
Standards BS4142 the noise rating level arising from all plant and car stacking
equipment shall be at least 5dbB(A) below the prevailing background at 3.5 metres
from the ground floor facades and 1m from all other facades of the nearest noise
sensitive property with no tonal or impulsive character.
Reason: A pre commencement condition is required in order to protect the
amenities of the surrounding occupiers in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
21 No deliveries or refuse collection shall be taken at or despatched from the
ground floor Class E use hereby permitted outside the hours of 07:00 to 20:00
151

hours Mondays to Saturdays and 09:00 to 13:00 hours on Sundays nor at any time
on Bank or Public Holidays.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of the development
surrounding occupiers in accordance with policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015)
22 The non-residential Use Class E units hereby approved shall not be open for
customers outside the following hours: - 0700 hours to 2200 hours on any day.
Reason: To protect residential amenity and general environmental quality in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Core Strategy (2007)
Policies KP2 and CP4, and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development
Management Document (2015).
23 No plant or ventilation equipment for the proposed non-residential uses hereby
approved shall be installed until and unless full details of its location, design and
technical specifications and a report detailing any mitigation measures proposed in
respect of noise impacts on the nearest noise sensitive properties has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The
installation of the plant and ventilation equipment shall be carried out only in full
accordance with the approved details and specifications and any noise mitigation
measures undertaken in association with the agreed details before the plant and
ventilation equipment is brought into use.
With reference to British Standards BS4142 the noise rating level arising from all
plant and ventilation equipment shall be at least 5dbB(A) below the prevailing
background at 3.5 metres from the ground floor facades and 1m from all other
facades of the nearest noise sensitive property with no tonal or impulsive character.
Reason: To protect the amenities of the occupiers from undue noise and
disturbance in order to protect their amenities in accordance with Core Strategy
(2007) policies KP2 and CP4, Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Development
Management Document (2015) and Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
24 Notwithstanding the details submitted within the Flood Risk Statement and
SUDS Strategy by Ardent Consulting reference V674-02 dated Sept 2020 and on
the plans otherwise hereby approved no drainage works shall be constructed at the
site until a detailed design of a surface water drainage for the site, including the
additional details specified below, has been be submitted to and agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Lead Local Flood
Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the first occupation
of the development. The scheme shall address the following matters:
i.
Further justification for discarding infiltration based of site investigation
(including soakaway testing if applicable). Even if total infiltration is unlikely, the
applicant should consider partial infiltration where possible, considering the
deterioration of groundwater quality and ground stability if required;
ii.
Justification for not using rainwater harvesting, rain gardens and trees; and
consider, where possible, these systems. The applicant should outline the location
of podium deck attenuation on the Preliminary SuDS / Surface Water Drainage
Strategy (V674-003);
iii.
A catchment plan with all areas positively draining into the proposed
drainage system;
152

iv.
Outline conveyance routes from the rainwater downpipes to the proposed
below-ground surface water drainage network on the Preliminary SuDS / Surface
Water Drainage Strategy (V674-003);
v.
Overland flow paths on a plan based on the proposed levels design (that
ensures people and property are protected during an exceedance or failure event);
vi.
A review of the runoff rate and storage calculations in further detail and
provide clarity on:
a.
○ The evidence of the runoff rate calculations made for the existing site and
proposed site. This should include evidence that the existing site was already
connected into the sewer.
b.
○ It is noted that the proposed discharge rates in Table 5.1 of the FRS are
not in line with the calculation results in the appendices. This requires clarification.
c.
○ The impermeable areas considered within the calculations, ensuring they
are consistent with the FRS.
d.
○ Detailed hydraulic calculations for the proposed network.
vii.
Water quality analysis following the Simple Index Approach (or other
acceptable method) to ensure water quality metrics are met (utilising proprietary
treatment systems where necessary);
viii.
Evidence of health and safety management for the proposed
drainage/SuDS;
ix.
A strategy for information delivery and community engagement (if
applicable);
x.
A valuation of the proposed drainage designs (if applicable);
xi.
CEMP prior to construction;
xii.
Confirm the details of the management company and the proposed
maintenance schedule for the drainage system;
xiii.
Details of the foul water drainage strategy for the applicant should provide
construction details outlining the connection to the existing Anglian Water surface
water sewer at manhole 6951. site; and
xiv.
Construction details outlining the connection to the existing Anglian Water
surface water sewer at manhole 6951.
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage and disposal of
surface water from the site for the lifetime of the development and to prevent
environmental and amenity problems arising from flooding in accordance with
policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy DM2 of the
Development Management Document (2015).
25 Notwithstanding the provisions of any development order made under Section
59 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (or any Order revoking and reenacting that Order) the following operations shall not be undertaken without the
receipt of prior specific express planning permission in writing from the Local
Planning Authority on the building hereby approved:
i.
The installation of any structures or apparatus for purposes relating to
telecommunications on any part the roof of the buildings hereby approved,
including any structures or development otherwise permitted under Part 16 of
Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
Order 2015 (as amended) or any equivalent Order amending, revoking or reenacting that Order
Reason: To ensure that the development does not impact adversely on the
townscape and character of the adjacent conservation area and to ensure the Local
Planning Authority can control the development in the area so that it accords with
policies KP2 and CP4 of the Core Strategy (2007) and policies DM1 and DM3 of
153

the Development Management Document (2015) and advice contained within the
Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
26 Construction hours for the development hereby approved shall be restricted to
8am – 6pm Monday to Friday, 8am - 1pm Saturday and not at all on Sundays or
Bank or Public Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of neighbours and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
Informatives:
01 Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and it is the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have fully
complied with the requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with the
CIL regulations in full can result in a range of penalties.
For full planning permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be issued by the Council as
soon as practicable following this decision notice. For general consents, you are
required to submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5) before
commencement; and upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability
Notice including details of the chargeable amount and when this is payable. If you
have not received a CIL Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence
development
it
is
imperative
that
you
contact
S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk to avoid financial penalties for
potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended).
02 You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during construction
works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may seek to
recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please take
care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in the
Borough.
03 The applicant is advised that the appropriate highways licences should be
obtained prior to the commencement of the development.
04 In relation to Condition 03, you are advised to contact Highways Engineer Martin
Warren (Tel 01702 534328) to discuss the requisite 278 Highways Agreement and
any associated Highways Licence. You are advised that a Highways Licence needs
to be in place before any works are carried out to the public highway and you will
need to employ a Council approved contractor to carry out any works.
05 The applicant is advised that the Council Parks Section have recommended that
the species of tree most suitable for planting in the Highway would be Carpinus
betulus ‘Frans Fontaine’ or similar species tolerant of urban conditions. These
should be planted in a suitable root cell system to avoid damage to any paving and
provide a suitable rooting environment for continued growth. Full details will need to
be agreed as part of the required Section 278 Highways Agreement.

154

06 The applicant is encouraged to include electric vehicle charging points at the
site which is in accordance with Policy DM15 which encourages their provision
wherever practical and feasible.
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern within the application (as originally
submitted) and negotiating, with the Applicant, acceptable amendments to the
proposal to address those concerns. As a result, the Local Planning Authority has
been able to grant planning permission for an acceptable proposal, in accordance
with the presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the
National Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on
the application prepared by officers.
786

20/00599/FUL - 27 Leigh Park Road, Leigh-on-Sea (Leigh Ward)
Proposal: Demolish existing building and erect two dwellinghouses with
associated amenity spaces and basement parking.
Applicant: SJT Developments
Agent: Mr Alan Gloyne of SKArchitects
Cllr Garston withdrew from the meeting for this agenda item.
Resolved: That PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED for the following reasons:
01
The proposal, due to the loss of the existing traditional building which makes
a positive contribution to the Leigh Conservation Area and by reason of its
unsympathetic design, including its scale, rudimentary form and distinctly modern
appearance, would result in a materially harmful impact on the character and
appearance of the site, the streetscene and the wider area as well as less than
substantial, albeit significant, harm to the importance of Leigh Conservation Area.
This is unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007),
Policies DM1, DM3 and DM5 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management
Document (2015) and the advice contained within the National Design Guide
(2019), the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009) and the Leigh
Conservation Area Appraisal (2010).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern with the proposal and clearly
setting these out in the reason(s) for refusal.
Furthermore, Members of the planning committee which took the decision to refuse
planning permission based their view on a detailed report prepared by officers and
have considered whether there are opportunities to amend the development to
address this harm. Where a potential way forward has been identified, this has
been communicated to the Applicant.
Informatives:
1
Please note that this application would have been liable for a payment under
the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) if planning
permission had been granted. Therefore, if an appeal is lodged and subsequently
155

allowed the CIL liability will be applied. Any revised application may also be CIL
liable.
787

20/01990/FUL - 29 Honiton Road, Southend-on-Sea (Kursaal Ward)
Proposal: Erect three storey side extension with loft conversion to form 3
additional self-contained flats, layout parking, amenity space, bin and cycle
storage and extend existing vehicle crossover onto Honiton Road.
Applicant: Mr Henry Gover
Agent: Stone Me Design Ltd
Resolved: That PLANNING PERMISSION be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01
The development hereby permitted shall begin no later than 3 (three) years
from the date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
02
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved plans: 01, 02, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09 & 10,
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with
provisions of the Development Plan.
03
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved the car parking
spaces shall be provided and made available for use in accordance with the details
shown on approved plan 1864 02 and shall be permanently retained as such
thereafter. The car parking spaces shall be kept available solely for the parking of
motor vehicles of occupiers of the dwellings hereby approved and their visitors.
Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking is provided and retained to serve the
development in accordance with Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy
DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
04
Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and
otherwise hereby approved the development hereby permitted shall not
commence other than for groundworks and site preparation works unless and
until details and appropriately sized samples of the materials to be used for all
the external surfaces of the proposed building at the site including for elevations,
brickwork, glazing, doors, windows and roofing materials have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby
permitted shall be implemented in full accordance with the details and samples
approved under this condition before it is occupied.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure that the appearance of the
building makes a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area.
This is as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework, Core Strategy (2007)
Policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management Document (2015) Policies DM1
and DM3, and the guidance contained within the Design and Townscape Guide
(2009).
156

05
Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved full details
of refuse, recycling and secure bicycle storage facilities for the dwellings hereby
approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Prior to first occupation of the development, refuse, recycling and bicycle
storage facilities shall be provided at the site in accordance with the approved
details and retained in perpetuity thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of residential amenity for future occupants, to ensure
the provision of adequate refuse, recycling and cycle storage in the interests of
highway safety, residential and visual amenity as set out in the National
Planning Policy Framework (2018), Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2, CP3 and
CP4 and Policies DM1, DM8 and DM15 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and the guidance within the Design and Townscape Guide
(2009).
06
Prior to the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved, full details of
both hard and soft landscape works to be carried out at the site must be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The hard landscaping
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to first
occupation of the development and the soft landscaping works within the first
planting season following first occupation of the development, unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details submitted shall
include, but not limited to:i. means of enclosure, of the site including any gates or boundary fencing;
ii. car parking layouts;
iii. other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas;
iv. hard surfacing materials;
v. details of the number, size and location of the trees including replacement trees,
shrubs and plants to be retained and planted together with a planting specification
vi. details of measures to enhance biodiversity within the site;
Any trees or shrubs dying, removed, being severely damaged or becoming
seriously diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced with trees or
shrubs of such size and species as may be agreed with the Local Planning
Authority
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the amenities of occupiers and to
ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping pursuant to Policy CP4 of the Core
Strategy (2007) and Policy DM1 of the Development Management Document
(2015).
07
No site clearance, preparatory work or development shall take place unless
and until the measures set out in the report by the Andrew Day Arboricultural
consultancy dated 28th October 2019 for the protection of the retained trees (the
tree protection plan) and the appropriate working methods (the arboricultural
method statement) in accordance with Clause 7 of British Standard BS5837 - Trees
in Relation to Construction - Recommendations have been implemented as
described and approved.
Reason: A pre-commencement condition is required in the interests of visual
amenity and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping, pursuant to Core
157

Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and CP4, Development Management (2015) policies
DM1, DM3 and the advice contained in the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
08
A scheme detailing how at least 10% of the total energy needs of the
development will be supplied using on site renewable sources must be submitted to
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in full prior
to the first occupation of the development. This provision shall be made for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: In the interests of providing sustainable development in accordance with
Policy KP2 of the Core Strategy (2007).
09
Water efficient design measures as set out in Policy DM2 (iv) of the
Development Management Document to limit internal water consumption to 105
litres per person per day (lpd) (110 lpd when including external water
consumption), including measures of water efficient fittings, appliances and water
recycling systems shall be installed and made available for use prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby approved and retained in perpetuity.
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact of the development through efficient
use of water in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Core
Strategy (2007) policy KP2, Development Management Document (2015) policy
DM2 and the guidance within the Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
10
No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by,
the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:
i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii. loading and unloading of plant and materials
iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development
iv. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding
including decorative displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate
v. wheel washing facilities
vi. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction
vii. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and
construction works
Reason: To minimise the environmental impact and disturbance to existing
residents, during construction of the development in accordance with National
Planning Policy Framework, Core Strategy (2007) policies KP2 and CP4; and
Development Management Document (2015) policies DM1 & DM3
11
Notwithstanding the details shown in the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved none of the buildings hereby granted consent shall be occupied
unless and until plans and other appropriate details are submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing which specify all windows in the
proposed dwellings that are to be permanently glazed with obscured glass (to at
least Level 4 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy, or such equivalent) and fixed shut
or provided with only a fanlight opening and the manner and design in which these
windows are to be implemented. Before the buildings hereby approved are
occupied the development shall be implemented in full accordance with the details
158

and specifications approved under this condition and shall be permanently retained
as such thereafter.
Reason: To safeguard the privacy and amenities of occupiers of neighbouring
residential properties and the future occupiers of the proposed residential
dwellings, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, Core
Strategy (2007) policy CP4, Development Management Document (2015) policy
DM1 and advice contained in The Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
12
Demolition or construction works associated with this permission shall
not take place outside 08:00 hours to 18:00 hours Mondays to Fridays and
08:00 hours to 13:00 hours on Saturdays and at no time Sundays or Bank
Holidays.
Reason: In order to protect the amenities of surrounding occupiers and to protect
the character the area in accordance with Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy
(2007) and Policies DM1 and DM3 of
the Development
Management Document (2015).
13
Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved the development shall be carried out in a manner to ensure that
the dwellings labelled flat 04 on plan number 1864 02 complies with the building
regulation M4 (2) ‘Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings’ standard before it is
occupied.
Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provides high quality and
flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in accordance with
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2,
Development Management Document (2015) policy DM8 and the advice contained
in the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
14
Notwithstanding the details shown on the plans submitted and otherwise
hereby approved the development shall be carried out in a manner to ensure that
the dwellings labelled flat 8 on plan number 1864 04 complies with the building
regulation M4 (1) ‘Visitable Dwellings’ standard before it is occupied.
Reason: To ensure the residential units hereby approved provides high quality and
flexible internal layouts to meet the changing needs of residents in accordance with
National Planning Policy Framework (2019), Core Strategy (2007) policy KP2,
Development Management Document (2015) policy DM8 and the advice contained
in the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
Informatives:

159

01
Please note that the development the subject of this application is liable for a
charge under the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations 2010 (as
amended) and it is the responsibility of the landowner(s) to ensure they have fully
complied with the requirements of these regulations. A failure to comply with the
CIL regulations in full can result in a range of penalties. For full planning
permissions, a CIL Liability Notice will be issued by the Council as soon as
practicable following this decision notice. For general consents, you are required to
submit a Notice of Chargeable Development (Form 5) before commencement; and
upon receipt of this, the Council will issue a CIL Liability Notice including details of
the chargeable amount and when this is payable. If you have not received a CIL
Liability Notice by the time you intend to commence development it is imperative
that you contact S106andCILAdministration@southend.gov.uk to avoid financial
penalties for potential failure to comply with the CIL Regulations 2010 (as
amended). If the chargeable development has already commenced, no exemption
or relief can be sought in relation to the charge and a CIL Demand Notice will be
issued requiring immediate payment. Further details on CIL matters can be found
on the Planning Portal or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil).
02
You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during
construction works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may
seek to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please take
care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in the
borough.
03
The granting of this permission does not negate the need for Highways
Consent for the permanent vehicular crossings and there is no guarantee that you
will automatically be granted Highways Consent for this. Applications for permanent
vehicular crossings made under Planning Legislation consider a broader range of
criteria in comparison to applications made under Highways legislation. They are
separate regimes and different requirements apply to each.
788

20/02016/FUL - 90 Caulfield Road, Shoeburyness (West Shoebury Ward)
Proposal: Change of use from dwelling (Class C3) to children's residential
care home (Class C2) with associated installation of decking area to rear.
Applicant: Syrie Cox
Agent: Steven Kearney of SKArchitects
Cllr Jones withdrew from the meeting for this agenda item.
Mr Andreas Iacovou spoke as an objector the application. Ms Syrie Cox responded.
Resolved: That PLANNING PERMISSION be GRANTED subject to the following conditions:
01.
The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than three years
from the date of this decision.
Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.
160

02.
The development is hereby permitted in accordance with the following
approved plans: 680 P01, 680 P02.
Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the Development Plan.
03.
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) and the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) the development
hereby approved, for purposes falling within Class C2, shall only be occupied as a
residential care home for up to 5 residents aged between 11 and 18 and up to 4
members of staff. The site shall not be used for any other purpose, including any
other purpose within Use Class C2 of the Schedule to the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended).
Reason: To ensure the development is implemented in accordance with the
permission sought and to enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control of
the use within the Use Class specified so that occupation of the premises does not
prejudice amenity, and to avoid an overprovision or otherwise unsustainable
provision of residential care uses, in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007),
and Policy DM9 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management Document
(2015).
04.
Prior to first use of the premises as a residential care home (use class C2),
details of secure cycle storage shall have been submitted to and agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The secure cycle storage shall be provided at the
site for the use of staff and residents in accordance with the agreed details before
the use hereby permitted commences and be retained in perpetuity for the lifetime
of the development thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of accessibility further to the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies KP2, CP3 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy
(2007), and Policy DM15 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management
Document (2015).
05.
Prior to first use of the premises as a residential care home (use class C2),
details of refuse storage shall have been submitted to and agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved refuse storage arrangements shall be
provided at the site for the use of staff and residents in accordance with the agreed
details before the use hereby permitted commences and be retained in perpetuity
for the lifetime of the development thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of neighbour and occupier amenities, further to the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-onSea Core Strategy (2007), and Policies DM1, DM3 and DM8 of the Southend-onSea Development Management Document (2015).
06. Before the use of the development hereby permitted is commenced not less
than 2 car parking spaces shall be provided at the site in accordance with details
that have previously been submitted to and approved in writing by the local

161

planning authority. The car parking spaces approved under this condition shall be
retained as such in perpetuity thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that adequate car parking is provided and retained to serve the
development in accordance with Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy (2007) and Policy
DM15 of the Development Management Document (2015).
07
The development hereby approved shall not be occupied unless and until full
details of a CCTV system, including management and maintenance proposals, has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
CCTV system shall be installed prior to first occupation of the premises for the
approved and retained maintained and managed in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: To protect the character and quality of the site surroundings in the
interests of occupier and neighbour amenities, further to Policies KP2 and CP4 of
the Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by assessing the proposal against all material considerations,
including planning policies and any representations that may have been received
and subsequently determining to grant planning permission in accordance with the
presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out within the National
Planning Policy Framework. The detailed analysis is set out in a report on the
application prepared by officers.
Informatives
1.
You are advised that in this instance the chargeable amount for the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) has been calculated as zero under the CIL
Regulations 2010 (as amended) due to the specific nature of the use. However,
should the nature of the use change then you are advised to contact the Planning
and Building Control Group to discuss the requirement for planning permission and
CIL liability.
2.
You should be aware that in cases where damage occurs during
construction works to the highway in implementing this permission that Council may
seek to recover the cost of repairing public highways and footpaths from any party
responsible for damaging them. This includes damage carried out when
implementing a planning permission or other works to buildings or land. Please take
care when carrying out works on or near the public highways and footpaths in the
borough.
789

20/02066/AMDT - 71 Chalkwell Esplanade, Westcliff-on-Sea (Chalkwell
Ward)
Proposal: Application to vary condition number 13 to remove the requirement
for the front bay window to be glazed with obscure glass (Minor Material
Amendment of planning permission 19/00390/FUL dated 03.05.2019)
(Retrospective).
Applicant: Mr & Mrs G Allison
Agent: Mr Tim Knight
162

Resolved: That PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED for the following reason:
The retention of the clear glazed first floor flank window would result in continued
harmful levels of actual and perceived overlooking of the neighbouring garden area
and habitable accommodation at No.73 Chalkwell Esplanade to the detriment of
neighbours’ amenity in terms of a material loss of privacy. This is unacceptable and
contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies KP2 and CP4 of the
Core Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Development Management
Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Design and Townscape
Guide (2009).
Informative:
The existing clear glazed first floor window is unauthorised and failure to resolve
this issue is likely to result in the council considering the expediency of enforcement
action to remedy the currently identified harm.
790

20/02080/FUL - 4 Merilies Close, Westcliff-on-Sea (Prittlewell Ward)
Proposal:
Enlarge
existing
outbuilding
(garage)
tutoring/schooling (Retrospective).
Applicant: Mr King
Agent: Mr Luis Mulry of Edith Garland Architecture

and

use

for

Resolved: That PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED and ENFORCMENT ACTION (with a
compliance period of 3 months) be authorised to require cessation of the
unauthorised educational use for the following reasons:
01
The development has introduced a significant education use within a purely
residential cul-de-sac to the material detriment of the character of site and the wider
area. The development is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea
Core Strategy (2007), Polices DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development
Management Document (2015) and the advice contained within the National
Design Guide (2019) and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
02
The application fails to demonstrate that the development would not have a
materially detrimental impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers
as a result of noise and disturbance arising from activities and vehicle movements
associated with the education element of the mixed use. The development is
therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework
(2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy (2007) and
Polices DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development Management
Document (2015) and the advice contained within the Southend Design and
Townscape Guide (2009).
03
The application fails to demonstrate that the development would provide
sufficient on-site parking and waiting facilities to meet the needs of future
163

employees, occupiers and users of the premises, which would be likely to result in
additional vehicles parked within the public highway, to the material detriment of
parking conditions in the locality, highway safety and the free flow of traffic. The
development is therefore unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning Policy
Framework (2019), Policies CP3 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core Strategy
(2007) and Polices DM1, DM3 and DM15 of the Southend-on-Sea Development
Management Document (2015).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern with the proposal and determining
the application within a timely manner, clearly setting out the reason(s) for refusal,
allowing the Applicant the opportunity to consider the harm caused and whether or
not it can be remedied by a revision to the proposal. The detailed analysis is set
out in a report prepared by officers. In the circumstances the proposal is not
considered to be sustainable development. The Local Planning Authority is willing
to discuss the best course of action via the pre-application service available at
https://www.southend.gov.uk/info/200155/make_a_planning_application_and_plan
ning_advice/365/planning_advice_and_guidance/2
Informatives:
1
You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace, and does not involve the
creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See the Planning Portal
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infras
tructure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil) for further details
about CIL.
2
Failure to regularise the unauthorised use is likely to result in the Council
considering it expedient to take enforcement action to seek to remedy the identified
harm.
791

20/01972/FULH - The Lodge by The Bridge, Eastern Avenue, Southend on
Sea (St Luke's Ward)
Proposal: Erect three single storey outbuildings to rear and covert existing
outbuilding to be used as ancillary to main dwelling (Class use C3)
(Retrospective).
Applicant: Mr Brian Ayling
Agent: N/A
Cllr Ayling withdrew from the meeting for this item.
Mr Newman spoke as an objector to the application. A written response from Mr
Ayling was read to the committee by an officer.
Resolved: That PLANNING PERMISSION be REFUSED for the following reasons:

164

01
The outbuildings, by virtue of their design, are not found to be ancillary to the
main dwelling and represent an overdevelopment of the site to the detriment of its
prevailing character. This is unacceptable and contrary to the National Planning
Policy Framework (2019), Policies KP2 and CP4 of the Southend-on-Sea Core
Strategy (2007), Policies DM1 and DM3 of the Southend-on-Sea Development
Management Document (2015) and the advice contained within the National
Design Guide (2019) and the Southend Design and Townscape Guide (2009).
The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining
this application by identifying matters of concern with the proposal and clearly
setting these out in the reason(s) for refusal. Furthermore, Members of the planning
committee which took the decision to refuse planning permission based their view
on a detailed report prepared by officers and have considered whether there are
opportunities to amend the development to address this harm. Where a potential
way forward has been identified, this has been communicated to the Applicant.
Informatives:
1 You are advised that as the proposed extension(s) or change of use to your
property equates to less than 100sqm of new floorspace, and does not involve the
creation of a new dwelling (Class C3), the development benefits from a Minor
Development Exemption under the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010 (as amended) and as such no charge is payable. See the Planning Portal
(www.planningportal.co.uk/info/200136/policy_and_legislation/70/community_infras
tructure_levy) or the Council's website (www.southend.gov.uk/cil) for further details
about CIL.
Chairman:

165

This page is intentionally left blank

SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL
Meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee B
Date: Tuesday, 16th February, 2021
Place: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams
Present:

Councillor H McDonald (Chair)
Councillors D Cowan and D McGlone

In Attendance:

E Anakwue, T Row, A Penn, P Richards and E Cook

Start/End Time:

10.00 am - 12.15 pm

792

22

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies for absence.

793

Declarations of Interest

No interests were declared at the meeting.
794

Birdwood, 125 Leigh Road, Leigh on Sea SS9 1JH - Application for
Grant of Premises Licence
The sub-committee received a report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods
and Environment) concerning an application by Jason Richard Rogers for the
grant of a Premises Licence at Birdwood, 125 Leigh Road, Leigh-on-Sea, SS9
1JH.
The application was presented by Mr M Bell (21st Century Licensing) the
applicants licensing consultant. Mr Rogers (applicant) was also in attendance and
gave evidence.
The sub-committee noted that no letters of objection to this application had been
received from any of the Responsible Authorities, however, measures had been
agreed between the Licensing Authority, Environmental Health and the Applicant,
should the application be granted. These were included in Appendix 2 to the
report of the Executive Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment).
Seven (7) representations were received from local residents, objecting to the
application. Three (3) out of the seven residents withdrew their representation
following communication with the applicants licensing consultant. Leigh-on-Sea
Town Council had also submitted an objection to the application but also withdrew
it after communication with the applicants licensing consultant. A further resident,
Mr Ridgwell, also withdrew his representation after the publication of the Agenda.
None of the objectors attended the meeting.
Their objections/representations related to concerns of noise and public nuisance,
particularly the potential blocking of the footway by patrons using the outside area,
the noise of patrons attending and leaving the premises, the disturbance caused
by customers using the external areas, the nuisance caused by intoxicated
167

patrons and the potential for anti-social behaviour. The need for another licensed
premises in the area was also questioned.
The need for licensed premises and the rationale for making the application are
not matters for the sub-committee to consider. The sub-committee heard that
there had been no record of incidents of crime and disorder at the premises over
the last two years and that the police had not objected to the application. The
sub-committee also heard that a revised plan illustrating the extent of the private
outdoor space to the premises had been submitted to ensure consistency
between licensing and planning consents. Furthermore, rope barriers would be
installed to clearly mark the extent of the outside area and smokers would be
encouraged to use the area fronting Leigh Road after 9.00 p.m.
On the basis of the evidence presented to it, the sub-committee did not consider
that the promotion of the licensing objectives would be undermined by the granting
of the application, subject to the imposition of conditions. The sub-committee
therefore:
Resolved:1. That the application be granted subject to:
(i) The Mandatory Conditions set out in Appendix 1 to the report of the Executive
Director (Neighbourhoods and Environment).
(ii) The conditions drawn from the Operating Schedule, together with the
conditions agreed between the Licensing Authority, Environmental Health and the
Applicant as set out in Appendix 2 to the report of the Executive Director
(Neighbourhoods and Environment), subject to the amendment of Conditions 4
and 5 to now read as follows:
Condition 4
“There shall be no use of the outside areas between 21:00 and 09:00 the following
day except by customers smoking at the front of the premises (Leigh Road).
During those times the maximum capacity permitted within that area shall not
exceed six persons. Waste receptacles shall be made available for smokers to
use and the area swept of associated litter at the end of each trading session.
Rope barriers, clearly marking the extent of the outside area, shall be in situ at all
times the area is in use”
Condition 5
“Furniture in the external area not permanently fixed and shall be stored in an area
not accessible by the public and not be available for use between 21.00 and 09:00
the following day.
(iii) The following additional condition:
“Rope barriers, clearly marking the extent of the outside licensed areas, shall be in
situ at all times the area is open for the provision of food and drink.”
2. That applicant’s intention to surrender the existing licence be noted.
Chair:
168

169

This page is intentionally left blank

Motion for traffic carbon emission reduction
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council:

23

Declared a climate emergency in 2019 and continue to develop and implement policies
across council functions to reduce its carbon footprint, with a low carbon growth strategy.
It is important that the council now recognises:
That until all energy supply comes from sustainable renewable sources even a rapid
transition to electric vehicles is not enough on its own to reduce carbon emission sufficiently
to protect us from excess levels of climate change as reported by Friends of the Earth.
If the predicted growth in electric vehicles as reported in an article by Thompson Reuters is
correct, we could see a 300 fold increase in demand of electricity consumption by 2040.
That increasing road capacity encourages more vehicles and thereby increases the release
of damaging greenhouse gasses into the atmosphere. Conversely greater investment in
publicly owned, clean energy public transport significantly reduces traffic congestion and
pollutants.
That more vehicles negatively impact the health of our residents by traffic carbon emissions
and figures for respiratory diseases in Southend was considerably higher than the national
average in the public health report of 2018/19 prior to COVID 19.
Recently a coroner in South London changed the death certificate for a child to state that
she had died as a result of traffic related air pollution. Locally increases in air pollution can
impact respiratory illnesses, heart disease and lung cancer with cars contributing 25% of the
nitrogen dioxide.
Rather than being anti car we should seek to support sustainable car use and protect the
health of Southends population with particular attention to the impact of air quality on our
developing children.
To further support Southends low carbon growth and green city status the council resolves
to:
Draw on Friends of the earth actions for local authorities and set a locally led carbon
reduction target that includes reducing traffic a minimum of 20% by


Increasing incentives for cycle to work using an improved cycle network, and trial
low cost or free use of ebikes for key workers and job seekers.



Giving greater parking concessions to car club vehicles.



Providing transport and delivery hubs while increasing the opportunity for cargo bike
deliveries and to move to electric vehicles across the Council fleet & contractors as
soon as possible.

171



Setting local planning requirements for all new developments to provide sufficient EV
charging points and source renewable energy supplies.
and



Working with local businesses to provide incentives for visitors to access Southend
by public transport.



To continue to lobby government and identify opportunities to work with the fossil
fuel industry to promote a just transition to renewable energy including a local
supply.
Proposed by: Councillor Kay Mitchell
Councillor Stephen George
Councillor Peter Wexham

172

Southend Labour
Motion to reduce fuel poverty in Southend

24

Southend-on-Sea Borough Council:
We have achieved some success in reducing fuel bills through Southend energy however
in 2018 a government report gave figures of one in ten households in Southend
experiencing fuel poverty. We know that poor housing conditions lead to poor health and
increase the pressure on the NHS and Social services.
Since the Covid 19 pandemic many people have lost their jobs and face increasing risks of
financial exclusion.
The council therefore resolves:
(i) To set local development controls on minimum expectations of insulation and glazing
requirements for private landlords.
(ii) To use the government guidance from the Department for Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy 2018-22 ECO3 that allows local authorities to identify fuel poor homes.
(iii) To work with energy companies to fulfil their role to insulate fuel poor homes under
their legal ‘ECO’ energy company obligations.
(iv) To lobby government to support the local electricity bill to succeed, and by doing so
make the set up and running costs of selling renewable electricity to local customers
proportionate by establishing a right to ‘Local Supply.’

Proposed by: Councillor Kay Mitchell
Second: Councillor Stephen George

173

This page is intentionally left blank

To Full Council
Notice of Motion

25

Sustainable future funding for Local Welfare Assistance

Until 2013, emergency financial assistance was principally provided by central government
through the Discretionary Social Fund. From 2013, the government implemented wholesale
reform of the Discretionary Social Fund. Some parts were kept, however, the government
abolished Crisis Loans (other than Alignment Payments) and Community Care Grants.
Responsibility for emergency financial assistance was devolved to the local level and
funding transferred to local authorities in England on a non-ring-fenced basis, with the
intention that they establish their own Local Welfare Assistance (LWA) Schemes to support
local people facing a crisis.
The Government then decided that from 2015/16 onwards there would be no separate LWA
funding stream. Instead, it would become part of the general Revenue Support Grant that
central government provides to councils to support their spending on any local services.
In the intervening years, with reduced overall funding for councils, a lack of guidance from
central government, and the absence of a statutory requirement for local authorities to
deliver emergency financial assistance, local authorities faced difficult decisions about
funding and maintaining LWA schemes. In many areas local welfare provision was either
significantly reduced or closed completely.
In 2020/21, in response to significant levels of need during the COVID-19 pandemic,
Government provided additional funding to local authorities to deliver emergency financial
assistance. £63million was provided through the Local Authority Emergency Assistance
Grant for food and essential items, whilst a further £170million was provided through the
COVID Winter Support Scheme.
As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and its economic impacts, we can expect there to be
significant ongoing need for emergency financial assistance, with many families in this
country at some time facing a ‘financial crisis’ point – a financial problem which puts the
immediate health and wellbeing of family members at risk.
If properly resourced, local authorities are uniquely placed to support residents facing
financial crisis, with LWA schemes central to that support. . Local schemes can be
underpinned by the existing knowledge that councils have of need in their communities,
alongside the relationships they hold with local voluntary and community sector partners.
Whilst local authorities have other mechanisms such as Discretionary Housing Payments
and Local Council Tax Support Schemes to support low income households, Covid-19 has
demonstrated how important it is for councils to have the capacity to deliver timely and
discretionary emergency support to households reaching crisis point.

175

Central government should therefore provide sustainable, long-term funding for local welfare
assistance- to give councils the confidence and certainty that they need to develop an
effective local welfare offer.

This Council therefore resolves that it should:
1. To [establish/maintain] a Local Welfare Assistance Scheme to support residents facing
financial crisis.
2. To campaign for a new funding allocation for councils from central government to provide
Local Welfare Assistance schemes to be made available at the next comprehensive
spending review and protected in real terms over the following years.
3.

To write to the Chancellor, the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local
Government and Secretary of State for Work and Pensions to request that they make
such a funding allocation avaialble to local authorities.

Proposed By:

Cllr Garston
Cllr Cox

Seconded By

Cllr Buck
Cllr Bright
Cllr Nelson
Cllr Boyd
Cllr Cox
Cllr Burzotta
Cllr Davidson
Cllr Dear
Cllr Evans
Cllr Flewitt
Cllr Folkard
Cllr Garne
Cllr Nelson
Cllr Habermel
Cllr Jarvis
Cllr Bright
Cllr McGlone
Cllr Moring
Cllr Salter
Cllr Walker

176

To Full Council
Notice of Motion
Government Levelling Up Fund

26

During the Chancellor’s Spending Review on the 25th November 2020, a new £4 Billion Levelling
Up Fund was announced.
The Chancellor announced that the fund would be available for infrastructure projects for local
authorities as long as proposals had MP support.
During his speech in the House of Commons, bypasses were given as example schemes which
would be acceptable for funding from the Levelling Up Fund.
It has been well documented that Southend is in urgent need of a bypass to the East of the Town
and both the Rochford & Southend East and Southend West MP’s have been publicly supportive.
This Council therefore resolves that it should:
1. Submit a bid for a Shoebury bypass to connect the East of the town to the north of the
river crouch to Central Government when the Levelling Up Fund is opened for
submissions.

Proposed By:

Cllr Cox
Cllr Nelson

Seconded By

Cllr Buck
Cllr Bright
Cllr Nelson
Cllr Boyd
Cllr Cox
Cllr Burzotta
Cllr Davidson
Cllr Dear
Cllr Evans
Cllr Flewitt
Cllr Folkard
Cllr Garne
Cllr Garston
Cllr Habermel
Cllr Jarvis
Cllr Bright
Cllr McGlone
Cllr Moring
Cllr Salter
Cllr Walker

177

This page is intentionally left blank

To Full Council
Notice of Motion

27

Development & Control Committee Members Representation

The recent Development & Control Committee on the 3rd February 2021 highlighted the
inappropriateness of Portfolio Holders being members of Development & Control Committee
– especially the Portfolio Holder for Planning.
Allowing Portfolio Holders to be members of Development & Control is a recent
phenomenon and potentially poses conflicts of interest.
This Council therefore resolves that it should:
1. Amend the Constitution so that all Portfolio Holders and members of Cabinet are
prohibited from being a member or substituting for a member of Development & Control
Committee
Proposed By:

Cllr Garston
Cllr Cox

Seconded By

Cllr Buck
Cllr Bright
Cllr Nelson
Cllr Boyd
Cllr Cox
Cllr Burzotta
Cllr Davidson
Cllr Dear
Cllr Evans
Cllr Flewitt
Cllr Folkard
Cllr Garne
Cllr Nelson
Cllr Habermel
Cllr Jarvis
Cllr Bright
Cllr McGlone
Cllr Moring
Cllr Salter
Cllr Walker

179

This page is intentionally left blank

To Full Council
Notice of Motion

Death Certificate Compassionate Fund

28

In response to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic and the tragic deaths that occur because of the virus,
Southend-on-Sea Borough Council’s Register Office administers associated death certificates requested
by the next of kin or executor, as it does for all instances of death where copies of a certificate are
requested.
In England, whilst there is no fee associated with the statutory responsibility of registering a death,
certified copies of the registration are provided on request at a cost to the next of kin or executor of
£11.00 per copy. This is a statutory fee approved by Parliament. In most instances, the next of kin or
executor requires more than one copy of the certification – even as many as ten, fifteen or twenty
individual copies. This is, therefore, already a costly burden. Additionally, the next of kin or executor will
often need the certificates promptly to assist them in addressing the administrative matters that arise
from the death of a relative or loved one.
However, despite the efficiency and exemplary professionalism of Southend-on-Sea’s Register Office in
dealing with such matters, issues may still arise in administering death certificates due to no fault of the
Council’s Register Office, causing lengthy delays to the next of kin or executor receiving the certificates.
For example, in cases of the postal service failing to deliver the certificates in a timely fashion or at all.
Subsequently, this can have a detrimental impact on the next of kin or executor’s ability to handle the
administrative matters associated with the death. In such an instance, they are, therefore, resorting to
purchasing replacement copies at additional expense, simply so that they can obtain them quicker. At
present, there are no means by which the Council’s Register Office may refund or waive the fee - as it is
a statutory charge and not one set by the Local Authority.
As such, this motion calls for:
The introduction of a Death Certificate Compassionate Fund – an annual ring-fenced budget
made available to Southend-on-Sea Borough Council’s Register Office for the purpose of covering
the cost of replacement death certificates. This budget would be provided for use only in cases of
exceptional circumstances and would be utilised at the sole discretion of Officers on a case-bycase basis. To use this budget efficiently, Officers in the Register Office may wish to consider
introducing a cap on the number of replacement certificates that could be provided per instance.
Additionally, Officers would be given the freedom and discretion of back-dating reimbursements
for replacement certificates where the cause of death was COVID-19.
This motion would go a long way to improving the already distressing and difficult process that relatives
of the deceased must go through. Therefore, I hope that the Council approves this motion.
Proposer:
Cllr Alex Bright
Seconder:
Cllr Boyd
Cllr Buck
Cllr Burzotta
Cllr Cox
Cllr Davidson
Cllr Dear

Cllr Evans
Cllr Flewitt
Cllr Folkard
Cllr Garne
Cllr Garston
Cllr Habermel

Cllr Jarvis
Cllr McGlone
Cllr Moring
Cllr Nelson
Cllr Salter
Cllr Walker

181
1

This page is intentionally left blank

NOTICE OF MOTION – NORTH-SOUTH PUBLIC TRANSPORT SERVICE
This council notes the importance of robust public transport to service the needs of our communities
and meet our climate change objectives and 2050 Road Map ambitions. Direct links between coastal
wards such as Leigh and West Leigh and the largely residential wards of Belfairs, Eastwood Park and
St Laurence are non-existent.

29

The current options for our residents require two or three separate bus journeys to complete a 2- or
3-mile journey taking over an hour or to take a single-passenger journey in their own vehicle or by
taxi.
This is a barrier to economic growth, environmental improvements, education and employment, and
creates social isolation for our residents.
MOTION
This council supports the ambition to establish a viable single Public Transport service to align
directly London Southend Airport, The Airport Business Park, St. Laurence Ward, Eastwood Park
Ward, Belfairs Ward, Blenheim Park Ward, Leigh & West Leigh Wards and Leigh Railway Station.
This council agrees to achieve this on its own behalf or with commercial partners.
Council recognises this would help to rebuild our local economy and will:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Provide a ‘more integrated transport provision’;
Help reduce car journeys, supporting the Council’s zero emissions by 2030 ambition;
Aid the 2050 ‘Localities – integrated health and care services provided locally’ target;
Improve and enable employment mobility across the Borough;
Reduce social isolation and enable those who would otherwise be isolated to be part of
our success as a Borough of choice to live, work and play.

Council agrees to raise awareness of public transport and accessibility through regular updates and
features in internal and external communications.
Proposer:

Cllr Aylen

Seconders:

Cllr Ayling
Cllr Beck
Cllr Bright
Cllr Buck
Cllr Burton
Cllr Burzotta
Cllr Collins
Cllr Cowan
Cllr Cox
Cllr Davidson
Cllr Dear
Cllr F Evans
Cllr K Evans
Cllr Flewitt
Cllr Folkard

Cllr Garne
Cllr Garston
Cllr Habermel
Cllr Harp
Cllr Hooper
Cllr McGlone
Cllr Moring
Cllr Nelson
Cllr Salter
Cllr Shead
Cllr Thompson
Cllr Walker
Cllr Wexham

183

This page is intentionally left blank

